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Vision

An Internationally Renowned Center in South
Asia for Higher Learning and Innovations in
Sciences, Technologies and

Humanities.






Mission

To Provide Expanded Opportunities for Higher
Learning of International Standards through
Generation and Dissemination of Knowledge
and Innovations Focused on Regional and
National Needs Social Harmony and
Stakeholders' Empowerment and

Satisfaction.






Vice Chancellor’s Message

South Eastern University of Sri Lanka presents the Annual Report for the year
2017 highlighting the achievements of the university based on the achievements
of students, academics and non-academic staff. The Annual Report also
highlights the contributions made by the university in the social and national
development. This Annual Report constructively analyses the achievements

while emphasizing the shortcomings with reasonable justifications for those.

The University swiftly improved the performance and the quality of services
provided in the year 2017. The university also contributed with its capacities
and capabilities in building the nation. The university inaugurated its 6t Faculty,
Faculty of Technology paving way for the development of technological
knowledge of the nation. The university also has seen many well qualified
academics and other staff joining the team bringing enhancing the capacity of

the university with its expansion.

| would like to take this opportunity to invite all of you to explore the Annual
Report of the South Eastern University of Sri Lanka presented for the year 2017.
| also would like to express my sincere thanks to all those worked hard to

elevate the performance of the university in the year 2017.

Prof. M.M.M. Najim
Vice Chancellor
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1. Vice Chancellor’s Review

Brief introduction

The South Eastern University of Sri Lanka (SEUSL) was established in 1995. The
main campus, which strategically located along the coastal belt of Oluvil,
extends over 182.48 acres of green pasture. The Faculty of Applied Sciences is
located in Sammanthurai at an extent of 6.71 acres, whereas the Faculty of
Technology is temporarily housed at the Mahapola Center, Oluvil. The
Malwaththa farm (extent of 38 acres), which comes under the purview of the
Faculty of Technology, is used to conducting practical classes on Agricultural
Technology. The University has recorded a tremendous progress in the higher

education sector.

The South Eastern University of Sri Lanka has the focus on achieving academic
excellence and producing employable graduates to cater to the demands of both
private and public sectors in Sri Lanka and abroad. It endeavors to enhance
multidisciplinary research culture, serving the needs of different stakeholders and
the community. In addition, the University is greatly contributing to the peace
and harmony of the region. Presently, SEUSL has six faculties with 4331
undergraduates, 322 postgraduates, 14 Postgraduate Diploma students including
six undergraduate and two postgraduate foreign students. The University has

587 permanent staff which includes 158 academic staff.

The SEUSL is devoted to earn its name and make it an internationally renowned

university with its excellent academic caliber.
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University Council

The University Council is the Chief Executive Body and governing authority.

Vice Chancellor is the Chairman by the virtue of the power vested on him. It is

the final authority to approve the proposals submitted by the Senate and the

Faculty Boards. The Sub - Committees of the council include Finance

Committee, Lands, Building & Maintenance Committee, Audit and Management

Committee, Tender Board and Selection Committees. Registrar is the Secretary

of the Council.

Ex-Officio Members

Prof. MMM. Najim
Dr. UL. Zainudeen

Mr. ML. Fouzul Ameer
Dr. SMM. Mazahir

Dr. S. Gunapalan

Dr. SM. Junaideen

Dr. MFM. Thariq

Senate Nominees

Dr. ALA. Rauf

Prof. MAM. Rameez

Mr. MHA. Munas

Dr. AM. Muzathik,

- Vice Chancellor
- Dean / FAS

- Dean/FAC

- Dean / FIA

- Dean / FMC

- Dean/FE

- Dean/FT

- Head / Dept. of Accountancy and
Finance (from 27.05.2017)

- Professor in Tamil (from 27.05.2017)

- Head / Dept. of Arabic Language
(until 18.05.2017)

- Head / Dept. of Mechanical Engineering
(until 18.05.2017)
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Appointed Members

Dr. PKCL. Jayasinghe

Mr. MMSK. Bandara Mapa
Rev. Prof. GF. Rajendram
Dr. MAM. Nuhman

Dr. DARK. Dayaratne

Mr. MS. Razzaaq

Eng. S. Abdul Rasheed

Mr. RM. Gunawardena

Eng. ZAM. Nawzar (from 09.02.2017)
Mr. DM. Siriwardene (from 09.02.2017)
Secretary

Mr. H. Abdul Saththar, Registrar



Annual Report 2017 | South Eastern University of Sri Lanka

University Senate

The Senate is the academic authoritative body. It controls and generally directs
the activities of teaching, learning, research, designing curriculum and
examination systems of the University through the channels of faculties,
Departments and Units empowered with the responsibilities for good academic
results and to the University communities and public. It approves and
recommends the proposals submitted by the Faculties to the Council for final
approval. Sub - Committees of the Senate include Library Committee, Study
Leave and Awards Committee, Admission Committee, Research & Publication
Committee and Curriculum and Evaluation Committee. Registrar is the Secretary

of the Senate.

Ex-Officio Members

Prof. MMM. Najim - Vice Chancellor

Dr. UL. Zainudeen - Dean / Faculty of Applied Sciences

Mr. ML. Fouzul Ameer - Dean/FAC

Mr. SMM. Mazahir - Dean / FIA

Dr. S. Gunapalan - Dean / Faculty of Management and
Commerce

Dr. SM. Junaideen - Dean/FE

Dr. MFM. Thariq - Dean/FT

Prof. MAM. Rameez

Prof. Ms. FHA. Rauf

Mr. MM Rifaudeen - Librarian (until 17.02.2017)

Mrs. MM. Mashroofa - Actg. Librarian (from 18.02.2017)

Dr. ALA. Rauf - Head / Dept. of Accountancy and
Finance

Mr. MHA. Munas - Head / Dept. of Arabic Language

Mr. AN. Ahmed - Head / Dept. of Biological Sciences

Dr. BGN. Sewwandi - Head / Dept. of Biosystems Technology

Dr. SM. Ahamed Lebbe - Head / Dept. of Economics and Statistics

Dr. AMM. Navaz - Head / Dept. of ELT (from 14.06.2017)
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Mr. MHM. Nairoos - Head / Dept. of Islamic Studies

Prof. MAM Rameez - Head / Dept. of Languages
(until 26.05.2017)

Ms. MASF. Saadiya - Head / Dept. of Languages

(from 27.05.2017)

Mrs. Safeena MG Hassan - Head / Dept. of Management
Dr. K. Komathiraj - Head / Dept. of Mathematical Sciences
Mr. MF. Nawas - Head / Dept. of Physical Sciences
Mr. ILM. Mabhir - Head / Dept. of Social Sciences
Dr. A. Rameez - Head / Dept. of Sociology
(from 16.10.2017)
Dr. AM. Muzathik - Head / Dept. of Mechanical
Engineering
Mr. MBM. Irshad - Head / Dept. of MIT
Dr. JA. Thambo - Head / Dept. of Civil Engineering
Prof. MIM. Kaleel - Head / Dept. of Geography
Eng. MI. llham Jazeel - Head / Dept. of IDS
Mr. SL. Abdul Haleem - Head / Dept. of ICT (from 02.01.2017)
Mr. SM. Aliff - Head / Political Science
(until 02.10.2017)
Mr. MM. Fazil - Acting Head / Political Science

(from 02.10.2017)

Elected members

Faculty of Applies Sciences

Dr. MJM. Jafeen
Mr. AL. Hanees (from 16.05.2017)
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Faculty of Arts and Culture

Mr. A. Wickramaratne (until 24.09.2017)

Dr. S. Anuzsiya (from 28.09.2017)

Dr. ALM. Riyal (until 24.02.2017)

Dr. A. Rameez (from 13.03.2017 to until 20.11.2017)
Dr. AFM. Ashraff (from 21.11.2017)

Faculty of Islamic Studies and Arabic Language

Dr. MIM. Jazeel (until 26.12.2017)
Mr. AM. Razick (until 04.05.2017)
Mr. MSM. Jalaldeen (from 05.05.2017)

Faculty of Management and Commerce

Mr. ALMA. Shameem
Mrs. MAC. Salfiya Ummah

Faculty of Engineering

Eng. ALM. Risath
Eng. MB. Murshid

Faculty of Technology

Dr. UL. Abdul Majeed (from 18.04.2017)
Dr. ANM. Mubarak (from 18.04.2017)
Secretary

Mr. H. Abdul Saththar, Registrar
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Study Programs at SEUSL

SEUSL has six Faculties namely Arts and Culture, Management and Commerce,
Applied Sciences, Islamic Studies and Arabic Language, Engineering and
Technology. SEUSL offers Bachelor and Master Degrees, Diploma, Certificate,
and different Training programs. The University collaborates with local and
international organizations in conducting programmes to cater to the needs of
the local community. Academic departments, Units and degree programs

offered by the faculties are shown in the tables given below.

Table 1.1 Details of Academic Department and Units

Faculties Departments

Social Sciences, Languages, Political Sciences, Sociology,

Faculty of Arts & Economics & Statistics ,Geography, English Language

Culture Teaching, Computer Unit and Postgraduate Unit
Faculty of .
Accountancy & Finance, Management and Management
Management & . -
Information Technology and Postgraduate Unit
Commerce

Faculty of Applied | Biological Sciences, Mathematical Sciences and Physical
Sciences Sciences

Islamic Studies and
Arabic Language
Faculty of Civil Eng., Mechanical Eng. ,Electrical & Electronic Eng.,
Engineering Computer Science& Eng. and Interdisciplinary Studies
Information and Communication Technology and
BioSystems Technology

Islamic Studies and Arabic Language

Technology

Table 1.2 Degree Programs offered by the Faculties

Faculties Undergraduate Degree Programs Duration Pc;stgraduate
rograms
BA (General) (14+2) Years
BA (Special) in Political Science and
Peace Studies M. Phil. in
BA (Special) in Economics Tamil (02
BA (Special) in Philosophy and Years)
psychological Counseling
BA (Special) in Sociology
BA (Special) in Geography (1+3) Years M.A. in Tamil
o | BA (Special) in Tamil (02 Years)
3 | BA (Special) in ICT
kS 3 BA (Special) in Hindu Civilization Pg D‘ip. in
2@ BA (Special) in Trilingual Studies Tamil (01
§ E‘ BA (Special) in Teaching English as a Year)
[y

Second Language (TESL)
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Faculties Undergraduate Degree Programs Duration REEECITS
Programs
BBA 4 Years Master of
s B. Com Business
QE’ B.Sc. in Management and Information 3 Years Administratio
@ Technology n (MBA)
g BBA (Special) in Accounting (02 Years)
R BBA (Special) in Finance
K] g BBA (Special) in Marketing Management (2+2) Pg Dip. in
Z E BBA (Special) in Human Resource Years | Management
3 8 Management (PGDM)
C BBA (Special) in Information System (01 Year)
Faculties Undergraduate Degree Programs Duration
- Bachelor of Science in Biological Science 3 Years
§ Bachelor of Science in Physical Science 3 Years
§ Bachelor of Science Special in Applied Biology (2+2) Years
9 Bachelor of Science Special in Botany (2+2) Years
o Bachelor of Science Special in Applied Statistics (2+2) Years
<Q' Bachelor of Science Special in Computer Science (2+2) Years
© Bachelor of Science Special in Chemistry (2+2) Years
z Bachelor of Science Special in Physics (2+2) Years
§ Bachelor of Science Special in Mathematics (2+2) Years
o Bachelor of Science in Applied Sciences (3+1) Years
& B.A. (General) in Islamic Studies 3 Years
S o B.A. (General) in Arabic Language
& & B.A. (Special) in Islamic Thoughts and Civilization
v 3
‘E @ | B.A. (Special) in Islamic Banking and Finance
L8 B.A. (Special) in Islamic Law & Legislation
% _B—’ B.A. (Special) in Arabic Language and Literature (1+3) Years
> g B.A. (Special) in Linguistics and Translation (Arabic)
T:)s .<é B.A. (Special) in Trilingual Studies (Collaboration
S5 Programme with Faculty of Arts and Culture)

Honours Degree of Bachelor of the Science of

o0 Engineering in Civil Engineering
= Honours Degree of Bachelor of the Science of
> ¥ . L . . . 4 Years
=2 Engineering in Mechanical Engineering
§ 0 | Honours Degree of Bachelor of the Science of
b Engineering in Electrical and Electronic Engineering
Bachelor of Biosystems Technology in Agricultural
Technology — BBST Hons (Agricultural Technology) 4y
ears

Bachelor of Information and Communication
Technology - BICT Hons

Faculty of
Technology
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Postgraduate Studies

The Faculty of Arts and Culture (FAC) commenced its first postgraduate
programmes in the year 2013 with 14 students. Since then, FAC is offering
degree programs such as Master of Arts (MA), Postgraduate Diploma (PG Dip)
and Master of Philosophy (MPhil) in Tamil. The Faculty of Management &
Commerce has been offering Master of Business Administration (MBA) and
Postgraduate Diploma in Management (PGDM) from 2010. University has
produced 2 Postgraduate Diploma holders in Tamil and 18 MBA holders in the
year 2017.

New study programs to be commenced

SEUSL has taken steps to offer many new degree programs in order to cater to
the needs of the country. The UGC approval for Postgraduate Diploma in
Applied Statistics has been obtained by the Faculty of Applied Sciences. FAC has
submitted proposal to commence PhD programme in Tamil to the UGC and

awaiting approval. Further, FAS is commencing a Special Degree in Botany.

World Ranking

Webomatrics ranking of the South Eastern University of Sri Lanka is 8,510 in
January 2018. Measures are being taken to improve the world ranking of the
SEUSL in a very competitive world where educational institutions are striving

hard to offer better services.
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Distribution of Academic Staff

First
Degree/Pg
Diploma,

25.00¢

PhD,

Mphil,
9.87%

Master,
36.18%

Distribution of Academic Staff (Teaching Staff) based on their

Educational level as at 31t December 2017

Memorandum of Understanding (MOUs) signed in 2017

The University in its wider effort to deliver quality education has signed

Memorandum of Understanding (MOUs) with the following institutions in

2017.

University/Faculty  Role of the Activity

University of
Malaya

E.G.S. Pillay
Groups of
Institutions

University of
Huddersfield

Selcuk University,
Konya

Name of the activity
Student, academic
and administrative
staff exchange

Academic Cooperation

Academic Research

Research Project / and Enhancing

.. Educational

Training "
opportunities for
Students

Academic Staff Mobility for Learners

Exchange and Staff

Student, academic

and administrative Educational

staff exchange and
Research

Cooperation

Country

Malaysia

India

United
Kingdom

Turkey
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Entrepreneurship Culture among Graduates

The university is taking measures to enhance entrepreneurship culture among

the students. The students will be able to improve their entrepreneurial skills

through these interventions.

SEUSL has taken the following strategies to motivate entrepreneurial culture.

Established University Business Linkage Cell at the University.

Established Engineering Consultancy Services at the Faculty of

Engineering.

Students from faculties of Management and Commerce, Applied
Sciences, Engineering and Technology are provided internship trainings

in companies in private and public industries.

Organized Business Fair to enhance the entrepreneurial skills of students.

Workshops on Personality Development, Goal Setting & Professional
Development, Confidence Building, Self-Awareness, Self-Assessment,
How to overcome the challenges in the  work of world, Effective
Decision Making for successful Career life, Projecting the Right Image,
Facing Job Interviews, Dealing with conflicts and problems Resolution,
Entrepreneurship Development, Effective Decision making, Goal Setting
for Career Life, Positive thinking to overcome the challenges in the
work of world, Entering the work of world, Goal setting,
Entrepreneurship Development, Leadership Qualities and How to face
your Exam with grace were conducted by the career guidance unit for

the students to prepare them to face the competitive job market.

Short courses, Short Programmes and other programs were conducted
collaboratively ~ with  external organizations to enhance the

entrepreneurship skills of the students.
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Ethnic Cohesion

As the student population of the South Eastern University of Sri Lanka is
increasing, all the students and staff are provided with opportunities to develop
skills and awareness related to issues such as culture and language. Many cultural
activities are organized within the university to enhance ethnic harmony and

ethnic cohesion.

The University encouraged students to celebrate different religious and cultural
functions such as Sinhala and Hindu New Year, Vesak, Poson, Nawa Siwa
Rathri, Eid, Christmas etc. annually with the participation of all three
communities. All religions are provided with places of worship and religious

observances are conducted on regular basis supported by the university.

Libraries of South Eastern University of Sri Lanka

Libraries of South Eastern University of Sri Lanka provided various types of
services and conducted several activities in the year 2017 to support and add

value to the academic and research activities of the students and academia.

The e-repository of the university has been enriched with 2000 publications of
the academics, faculty publications, research materials, rare materials, images,
audio and video outputs, theses and conference proceedings. The printed
collection of the library at the end of the year 2017 was approximately
1,15,865. Library placed indents for 2658 books for an amount of Rs.
23,615,255.48 and 2131 books worth of Rs. 18,550,798.38 were newly
acquired during the year 2017 for all six faculties. More emphasis was given to
enrich the library with text books and recommended readings in order to
implement the student centered learning programme. SEUSL libraries have

received donations from the following donors.
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No. of books

Donor Address Value in Rs.
donated

Dr. Yousuf Y.M.Trust, Australia 615 2,552,170.50

Musthafa

King Fahad University
of Petrolium & 40 387,000.00
Minerals, Dhahran, KSA

Prof. Mohamed
Waseer

In addition, SEUSL libraries have received 220 books worth of Rs. 220,586.00
books from 67 donors. Similarly, these libraries have received 191 periodical
issues from 53 donors/ institutions for an amount of Rs. 25,862.00. A
collection of artifacts and rare materials were donated on 19th of May, 2017 to
the Cultural Museum of South Eastern University of Sri Lanka by Al-Haj P.M.
Zuhaib Aalim , Mattawa, Ukuwela, Matale.

During the past year 2017, the library has witnessed many noteworthy
achievements. One of such achievement is library sold 140 copies for an amount
of Rs.496,400.00 of university publication on ‘Exploring Sri Lankan Muslims;
selected writings of MMM. Mahroof’ edited by Prof. MLA. Cader, assisted by
late Mr. S. Rubasinghum and Mr. MM. Rifaudeen. SEUSL Libraries conducted

various programmes to inculcate the reading culture among undergraduates.

e Library conducted a grand exhibition on “Books on Technology” from
23 October to 28th October, 2017 to remark the National Reading
Month as well as the 22 University Founders’ Day. Late Dr. MHM.
Ashraf, his artifacts and collection of Ex_Libris were also exhibited to

honor the great leader as well as the founder of the university.

e SEUSL libraries in collaboration with Career Guidance Unit conducted
Information Literacy workshops for special degree students of the Faculty

of Arts & Culture on 28t of April 2017.

e Acting Librarian took Guest lectures for post graduate students who read
for MBA on ‘Scholarly Information Retrieval from e-databases’ and on

‘how to write literature Review’ on 13th August 2017.
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e SEUSL conducted a training programme on “Modern Library Services’ for
the School library staff of STR/ Muslim Madya Maha Vidyaala (National
School) Sammanthurai on 17t of May 2017.

e Awareness Seminar and Interactive session on “Gale Scholar” was
conducted on 07th November, 2017 and another on “SCOPUS
database” in order to motivate them to publish research papers in
indexed journals on 08th November, 2017 were also conducted by the
Library, SEUSL.

Libraries of SEUSL were provided with access to four full text online electronic
databases such as; Emerald; Oxford; and Wiley with the support of “Consortium
on Sri Lankan Academic Libraries” (CONSAL) organized by University Grants
Commission CONSAL has established a centralized Document Delivery Service
with funding from the UGC. SEUSL libraries have made arrangement to purchase
research papers from British Library Document Supply Service through this.
Library conducted regular Library academic Staff Meetings and two Library

Committee Meetings during the year 2017.
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Remarkable activities at SEUSL

e The foundation Stone laying ceremony for new buildings for the Faculty of

Technology was held at the Faculty premises on 20t September, 2017.

e A soft ball Cricket Ground in addition to the Leather Ball Cricket Pitch was
ceremonially declared open at South Eastern University in Oluvil. This

ground is located adjoining the students Hostels.

e A Successful Colloquium was conducted by the Faculty of Islamic Studies

and Arabic Language.

e A large number of students from all three communities willingly participated
in the mass Blood Donation campaign organized by South Eastern

University's Hindu Mamantram at the SEUSL's Medical Centre.

e  Muslim Majlis' of South Eastern University of Sri Lanka launched a magazine

called “Al Islah".

e A large number of female students responded enthusiastically to the call of
Blood Donation Campaign organized by the Social Service Department of
the Muslim Majlis of the SEUSL held at the Medical Centre of the University.

e Faculty of Management and Commerce emerged champions and won the
challenge trophy at the Inter Faculty Sports Festival of the South Eastern

University of Sri Lanka at the University Green.


http://www.seu.ac.lk/fia/news/index.php?fun=shownews&id=170301
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"Reading month" themed at "Reading is key to knowledge" organized by the

students of Faculty of Islamic Studies and Arabic Language.

A library established in front of the Faculty premises was declared open was

cynosure of the ceremony "Reading month".

The ceremonial launch of the book "Islam Belief and Concept" authored by
Ash-Sheikh SMM Mazahir (Dean of FIA) and Ms Ismiya Begum (Lecturer of
Islamic Studies) was organized by the Faculty of Islamic Studies and Arabic

Language(FIA).

Large number of female students actively participated in the Business fair
organized by the Faculty of Management and Commerce of South Eastern

University of Sri Lanka at the Faculty yards.

5th International Conference on the theme "Research and development for

a global knowledge society" organized by the Faculty of Arts and Culture.
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Office of the National Unity and reconciliation was ceremonially set up by the

former President Chandrika Bandaranayake Kumaratunga at SEUSL.

Office for the National Unity and Reconciliation (ONUR) has introduced a

project titled 'National Unity and Reconciliation through Higher Education.

The ceremonial opening of the Biosystems Technology Laboratories for
Technology Faculty of the South Eastern University of Sri Lanka was held on
23rd October, 2017.

The ceremonial opening of Taekwondo Gymnasium and demonstration by
SEUSL students and dragon Taekwondo Team were held at SEUSL Student
Recreation Centre, South Eastern University of Sri Lanka on 27t May 2017.

A four storied building with all amenities is to be constructed at South Eastern
University of Sri Lanka at a cost of Rs. 212 million set apart by the Ministry of
Higher Education. A simple ceremony to mark the laying of the foundation
stone was held at Oluvil on 9th February. This Hostel would accommodate 400

students conveniently.

The sixth Annual International Research Conference on the theme "Optimizing
Enterprise through Research excellence: Technological change and Innovation:"
organized by the Faculty of Management and Commerce of the South Eastern

University of Sri Lanka on 15t November, 2017.



http://www.seu.ac.lk/news/index.php?fun=shownews&id=170903
http://www.seu.ac.lk/news/index.php?fun=shownews&id=170903
http://www.seu.ac.lk/news/index.php?fun=shownews&id=170903
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In order to encourage the consumption of traditional food sans chemicals and
other insecticides, "Hela Bojun", an outlet of the Department of Agriculture with
all amenities housed at the newly built Common Canteen at South Eastern

University of Sri Lanka.

7th International Research Conference 2017 on the theme "Multidisciplinary
research for sustainable Development" of the South Eastern University of Sri

Lanka held on 7th December.

A Colorful event for Language Performance and Proficiency held at Staff

Development Centre (SDC).

South Eastern University of Sri Lanka remembered its Founder Late Minister and
Sri Lanka Muslim Congress leader MHM Ashraf on his 69t Birthday and to

coincide with 22nd Anniversary of this University on 23t October.



http://www.seu.ac.lk/events/index.php?fun=shownews&id=171201
http://www.seu.ac.lk/events/index.php?fun=shownews&id=171201
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International
Round Table on
the impact of
extreme natural
events; Science
and technology
for mitigation
organized by

Research Centre -

Technology

for Disaster Prevention, South Eastern University of Sri Lanka, National Science
and technology Commission, Sri Lanka and Centre for Science and technology
of nonaligned and other Developing Countries (NAM S&T Centre Countries). A
large number of internationally reputed experts, prominent academics from
various parts of the world including India, Malaysia, Pakistan, Bangladesh,

United Kingdom and Qatar were present.
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Achievements:

The strategic plan for the year 2014-2018 which was developed was

implemented in the year 2017 accordingly.

A research culture has been established by the establishment and facilitation of
the Research & Innovation Unit. The 7% International symposium was
conducted successfully with the participation of considerable number of foreign
participants, and the number of academic research done and published by the
staff has increased dramatically. Except the new faculties, other four faculties

conducted their annual research symposia continuously.

FAC has submitted a proposal to UGC to commence a PhD programme in Tamil

and awaiting approval.

Hostel facilities are developed and almost 90% of the students are given with

accommodation within the hostel campus.

Student enrollment has been increased by 68.06 % in 2017 as compared to the

Student enrollment in 2013.

The 11* General Convocation of the South Eastern University of Sri Lanka was
held on 19* February at Bandaranaike Memorial International Conference
Hall. Altogether 935 graduands were conferred with Degrees at this
Convocation by the Chancellor Prof. Achchi Mohamed Ishag which was held in

two sessions.

Approval for the Postgraduate Diploma programme in Applied Statistics was

obtained by the Faculty of Applied Sciences in 2017.

A scheme to provide research grants are established with more fund ceilings per
academic staff member per year and academics were encouraged to do research

with these grants and with grants obtained from other donors.

A scheme to fund the research dissemination is introduced and academic staff
members are utilizing these funds to present papers in overseas conferences and
publish papers in Journals. This facility was extended to academic staff from all

the faculties irrespective to faculties generating funds.
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Could recruit many well qualified academics even with PhDs (2 PhD holders
were recruited in 2017 and 5 PhD holders were recruited in 2016),

administrative staff and non-academic staff.

The University has developed sports facilities including a modern athletic
ground, football and rugby ground, volleyball and basketball courts, a softball
cricket ground, a gymnasium, indoor badminton court, taeckwondo and karate
facilities, etc. and action is being taken to construct a hardball cricket ground.

Sports facilities are given to hostels also.
Procurement plan was prepared.

In the process of implementing the social harmony among all three
communities, lands were allocated for building Buddhist temple, Hindu temple,
Church and Mosque. All the places of worship are constructed and utilized for
religious services of the University community except the church, which is under
construction. Places of worship are also being established in the Faculty of

Applied Sciences premises.

A canteen to cater to 1400 students was built and “Helabojun™ traditional food
products are being provided to University community. This action will
contribute to the community by giving them the benefit of selling their fresh
products while earning a profit as well as the university community will get fresh

and best meals at a lower price.

Engineering and Technology faculties are provided with modern laboratory
facilities. Library collection is equipped enhanced with necessary addition of new
books, Library also subscribed to online Journals and databases i.e. Tailor and

Francis.

Established a Research Center on Disaster Mitigation and an international

conference was organized in collaboration with NAM Center and NASTEC.

Many academics have completed their PhD and many more academics have

enrolled for their postgraduate studies.

The University has developed sports facilities including a modern athletic

ground, football and rugby ground, volleyball and basketball courts, a softball
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cricket ground, a gymnasium, indoor badminton court, taekwondo and karate
facilities, etc. and action is being taken to construct a hardball cricket ground.

Sports facilities are given to hostels also.

The University has provided 24 hour internet access to all the Faculties through

installation of WiFi facilities.

Students were encouraged to organize Variety of Entertainment Shows and
cultural shows in order to enhance their skills. The University supported these

programmes.

Student Support Services and Welfare Unit of the SEUSL organized and held
inter faculty arts and cultural competition in order to enhance the skills of the

students.

In order to enhance research culture among academic staff, a Vice Chancellor’s

award scheme was introduced.

With the objective of enhancing capacity of marketing and business among the

students community, Business Fair was organized.
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Failures and Justification

iii.

Could not recruit Chair Professors even though applications were called.
No one applied for the posts. The University is taking continuous effort to

recruit chair professors.

Could not recruit permanent doctors to the health center — Doctors are not
applying to join the university service as they have better opportunities at a
higher salary under the Ministry of Health. Anyhow, the medical center is

run with contract basis visiting doctors.

Could not recruit a project manager as engineers with relevant qualification

and experience are not willing to serve the University at a low salary.

Severe sea erosion is taking place and the University has already lost a big
swath of land — The University does not have capacity to prevent the sea
erosion. The University has informed this to the relevant authority several

times but no remedial action is instituted yet.

The university is facing the threat of floods during the rainy season due to
overflowing of the Gal Oya. — The University could not get the flood

protection bund established.
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Future Plans

Vi.

Vii.

viii.

Reviewing the academic programmes by UGC/QA Unit (Management
Degrees and Arts Degrees).

Qualifying new linkage with other international partners for collaborative

research.

Preparations and Method assessment for institutional review.

. To stimulate staff to make of University’s grants and other competitive

grants

Uploading the research articles of staff in popular research networks, such
as: Research Gate, Google Scholar, Academia, etc. to impact on

University’s ranking

To conduct Employability Survey to inform our teaching learning toward

improved employability
To introduce new special degree programme in Botany

To expedite the completion of Auditorium

ix. To codify comprehensively the University’s policies and regulations with

uploads.
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2. Details of Resources & Students

Student population and permanent staff details of all categories as at end of

December 2017 are shown in table 2.1.

Table 2.1: Frequency distribution of Students and Permanent Staff

Total No. of
X Academic Adminis | Non -
ety Students g;a:emlc Supportive trative Academic
Staff Staff Staff

Faculty of Applied Sciences 592 31 3 1
Faculty of Arts & Culture 904 36 3 1
Facul.ty of Islamic Studies & 1069 55 1
Arabic Language
Faculty of Management & 138 32 3 1
Commerce
Faculty of Engineering 470 19 1
Faculty of Technology 158 8 1
Library 6 1
General Administration 19 387
Centre for External Degrees 1
and Professional Learning
Physical Education Unit 3
Information and Statistics

- 1
Unit
Career guidance Unit 1
Network Operations

1
Centre
Other Departments
Total 4331 158 15 27 387

3. Details of Local Students

Table 3.1: Local Students (New Entrants to Internal Undergraduate Degree Programs)

Facult Programme of Year of Agreed = No. :)(I:;;)win
Y study Intake Intake = Registered g
the course
Faculty of Arts and Arts 2015/2016 368 355 350
Culture
Faculty of Applied Physical Science 150 103 100
Science Biological Science 2015/2016 150 108 97
Faculty of Islamic Arabic Language 200 196 186
Studies And Arabic . . 2015/2016
language Islamic Studies 250 180 171
Facultv of M : Management 140 134 134
aculty of Managemen
and Commerce Commerce 2015/2016 120 108 108
MIT 120 111 111

Faculty of Engineering Engineering 2016/2017 100 88 88
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Table 3.2: Local Students Enrolment (Total No. of Students) in Internal Undergraduate
Degree Programs

. . . . UGC Intake
B @ @ Local Students
Faculty Programme of study S Intake ( )
Male Female @ Total
Arts 1Ist Year 2015/2016 35 315 350
:atiu“\;Of Arts 2nd Year 2014/2015 23 244 267
rts an
Culture Arts 3rd Year 2013/2014 29 189 218
Arts (Special) 4th Year 2012/2013 9 60 69
Arabic L 65 121 186
e T e st Year 2015/2016
Islamic Studies 22 149 171
Faculty of | Arabic Language ond Y 2014/2015 60 14 174
i nd Year
Slenile Islamic Studies 13 151 164
Studies And I o pie L 49 97 146
7 rabic Language
Arabic ey 3rd Year 2013/2014
language Islamic Studies 30 166 196
Arabic Language 6 7 13
4th 'Y 2012/2013
Islamic Studies ear / 5 14 19
Management 59 75 134
Commerce 1st Year 2015/2016 33 75 108
MIT 23 88 m
Management 42 82 124
Faculty of ' Commerce 2nd Year 2014/2015 | 37 55 92
Manageme i1 23 73 9%
nt and
Commerce Management 53 55 108
Commerce 3rd Year 2013/2014 18 50 68
MIT 35 70 105
M t 42 63 105
anagemen 4th Year 2012/2013
Commerce 37 50 87
Physical Sci 67 33 100
ysical >lence 15t Year 2015/2016
Biological Science 23 74 97
Physical Science 58 34 92
Faculty of . - - 2nd Year 2014/2015
Applied Biological Science 23 61 84
Science Physical Science 66 41 107
3rd Y 2013/2014
Biological Science ré vear 4 29 68 97
Physical Sci
hysical Science 4th Year 20122013 > 4 !
Biological Science 1 7 8
B.Sc. Engineering 1st Year 2016/2017 72 16 88
v of B.Sc. Engineering 2nd Year 2015/2016 76 21 97
Eicg‘i‘ntg’e:’mg B.Sc. Engineering 3rd Year 2014/2015 = 80 12 92
B.Sc. Engineering 4th Year 2013/2014 71 21 92
B.Sc. Engineering Final Year 2012/2013 83 18 101
Bio systems
14 69 83
Faculty of "/ Technology 15t Year 2015/2016
Technology

ICT 59 16 75
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Tab le 3.3: New Entrants and Enrolment (Total No. of Students) in External
Undergraduate Degree Fee Levying Programs

New Entrants Student Enrolment(total
Programme of Year of (January — December no. of registered students)
study study 2017) (as at 31 December2017)
Male Female @ Total Male Female Total
Bachelor of Arts 1st year 248 399 647
Bachelor of
Business 1st year 140 105 245
Administration
Bachelor of 1t year 92 61 153
Commerce
st nd rd
Bachelor of Arts 1%, 276 3 3,547 3,845 7,392
year
Bachelor of & Sndc 2rd
Business ]e:ag &3 2,364 1,023 3,387
Administration Y
s nd rd
Bachelor of 1st, 2nd& 3 327 293 620
Commerce year

Table 3.4: Local Students New Entrants and Enrolment (Total No .of Students) in
Postgraduate Degree Programs

Student Enrolment

Name p ; Full New Entrants (January | (total no. of registered
of the S: ogramme ° Time/ — December 2017) students)(as at 31+
Faculty udy Part Time December 2017)
Male | Female @ Total Male Female | Total
Postgraduate Diploma (PG.Dip ....)
Pg Dip in Tamil = Full Time - - 02 01 03
Master’s Degree (MSc, MA, MBA, ..... )
o -
S MAinTami | PatTime/ 1o - 06 05 | 1
£ Full Time
% MPhil
c Mphil in Part Time/
©
£ Tamil Full Time ol ol e 33 08 <l
< Grand Total 01 o1 02 41 14 55
Postgraduate Diploma (PG.Dip ....)
PG Dip in Full time 03 00 03 1 00 1
Management
= Master’s Degree
g 3 Master of
o 2 Business Full time 25 06 31 228 42 270
X . .
c E Administration
> 53  Grand Total 28 06 34 239 42 281
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4. Details of Foreign Students
Table 4.1: Foreign Students (students selected under foreign category) New Entrants
to Undergraduate Degree Programs

No. of students
registered

Year of
Intake

Programme of

Faculty S

Country

No new foreign students have registered in 2017

Table 4.2: Foreign Students (students selected under foreign category) Enrolment
(Total No. of Students) in Undergraduate Degree Programs

Student Enrolment(total
Year

Programme Year of no. of registered
Sy of study :)tfu g iy Intake students)
Y Male Female Total
3rd N
Year Nigeria 2014/2015 1 0 1
Faculty of | i ogical | #M | Bangladesh | 2013/2014 | 0 1
Applied . Year 1
Science Science
Final Kenya 1 0 1
2012/2013
Year | Bhutan 1 0 1
Faculty of
Bemie Islamic 4th
Studies and - Bangladesh 2012/2013 1 0 1
. Studies Year
Arabic
Language
Faculty of 4th
Arts and Arts Swaziland 2012/2013 0 1 1
Year
Culture

Table 4.3: Foreign Students New Entrants and Enrolment (Total No. of Students) in
Postgraduate Degree Programs

Student Enrolment

Faculty

Managemen
t and
Commerce

Program

of Study ety
MASTER’S DEGREE (MSc, MA,
Master of

Business Myanmar

Administration

New Entrants

(January —
December 2017)
Male = Female Total
MBA, .....)

0 00 00

(total no. of

registered

students)(as at 31+

December 2017)

Male Female Total
00 02 02
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Table 5.2: Undergraduate Output: External

Program of study C;‘::;i:::/ No- Graduated
Male Female Total
Bachelor of Arts General 107 169 276
Bachelor of Business Administration General 53 24 77
Bachelor of Commerce General 11 14 25
Total 171 207 378

Table 5.3: Postgraduate Output (From January - December 2017)

Name of the No. Graduated

Programme of Study Male Female Total

Faculty

Postgraduate Diploma

Arts & Culture . . 02 00 02
in Tamil
Management & | Master of Business
.. . 11 07 18
Commerce Administration

Total 13 07 20
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6. Academic Staff

Table 6.1: Details of Academic Staff Including Library Staff

Department/
Division/
Unit

Faculty

(Temp.)

SL1/ SL2/L (Temp/

Assignment)

SL1/ SL2/L
(Visiting)
Tutors /Instructors

Demonstrators/

AL (Temp.)

Vice Chancellor

Dept. of Political
Sciences

Dept. of Languages

Dept. of Geography

Dept. of Social
Sciences

Dept. of Sociology

Dept. of Economics
and Statistics

Computer Unit

Arts & Culture

Dept. of English
Language Teaching
Dept. of Islamic
Studies

Dept. of Arabic
Languages

Islamic
Studies &
Arabic
Language

Dept. of Accounting &
Finance

Dept. of Management

Management
&
Commerce

Dept. of MIT

Dept. of Mathematical
Sciences

Dept. of Physical
Sciences

Dept. of Biological
Sciences

Dept. of Civil
Engineering

Dept. of Mechanical
Engineering

Dept. of Electrical &
Telecommunication
Engineering

Dept. of Computer
Science & Engineering
Dept. of
Interdisciplinary
Studies

Dept. of BioSystems
Technology

Dept. of ICT

Applied
Sciences

Engineering

Techn

ology

Library

Total

SP-Senior Professor  P- Professor AP- Associate Professor SL1- Senior Lecturer Gr —I

SL2-Senior Lecturer Gr —lI L- Lecture/Lecturer (Prob)  LB-Librarian SALBI- Senior Assistant Librarian
Gr-l  SALB2- Senior Assistant Librarian- Gr-Il ALB —Assistant Librarian

AL- Assistant Lecturer
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Table 6.2: Details of Academic Supportive Staff

Faculty/ Department/ Designation Academic
Division/Unit & Supportive Staff
Career Guidance Unit Career Guidance Counselor 1
Faculty of Arts & Culture Instructors 3
Faculty of Management & Instructors 3
Commerce
Instructor in Computer 1
Faculty of Applied Sciences Educational Assistant 1
System Analyst 1
Physical Education Unit lnstruc?or in Physical 3
Education
lanrmatlon and Statistics Assistant Statistician 1
Unit
Network Operations Centre | Assistant Network Manager 1
Total 15

Table 6.3: Details of Approved Cadre and Present Staff -All Academic Staff

Faculty of Arts and Culture
Existing Staff
E wvy wv
. Z~ = —
g f f . P EE5 2%s
Staff category § I é_ £ s 82 282
g8 & £ 5 2 [ -
[11-12] ([21+[31+
L) P4 A = B G B ) [4]+[5])
§ Senior Professor
8= 5 5 5
[
& U | Professor
Senior Professor
Professor 1
Associate Professor 1
Senior Lecturer Gr.l 53 14 14 17 2
Senior Lecturer Gr.ll 8
Lecturer 4 1
Lecturer (Prob.) 8
Temporary Lecturer /
Temp. Asst. Lecturer e 21 2 2
Temporary Instructor 10 8 8 2 -6
Temporary Tutor 0 3 -3 -3
Total 87 36 32 14 9 19 -4
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Staff category

Actual Cadre
Vacancies

Permanent
Temporary

11 - (21+[3D)

—
N
—
—
w
—

Professor | Senior Professor
Chair Professor

Senior Professor

Professor

Associate Professor

Senior Lecturer Gr.l

Senior Lecturer Gr.ll
Lecturer

Lecturer (Prob.)

Temporary Lecturer / Temp.
Asst. Lecturer

o
T3
-+ @© =
5 g ©0 -
c 5 c < 8
Staff category g a = .g @
= £ S >
o 7] > <
o -t
[1]-
4
4 (121+[31+[4])
Senior
Professor
. Professor 2
Chair
Professor
Senior Professor
Professor
Associate Professor
Senior Lecturer Gr.l -2
Senior Lecturer Gr.ll
Lecturer
Lecturer (Prob.)
Temporary Lecturer / 3
Temp. Asst. Lecturer
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Existing Staff . o
e | > 2 | §,9 T
S © 8_ = c E © 3 [
Staff category o ow| E g £ w | §Y S £3
E. 's o (7] > A a <
[N ] o | o <
< v
[11-([21+[31]
2 3 4 5 11-[2
(21 B[S R ey
Professor | Senior Professor 3 3
Chair Professor
Senior Professor
Professor
Associate Professor
Senior Lecturer Gr.l 1 19 12 -8
Senior Lecturer Gr.ll 5
Lecturer 1 1
Lecturer (Prob.) 14
Temporary Lecturer / Temp. 6
Asst. Lecturer
Temporary Demonstrator 14 11 11
Temporary Tutor 3 -3 -3

'U %
s £ % W B 8,
°% & § £ E g
Staff category & £ g- G ) T
< o] o > Q S
o (] < <>
B[4 5] T
Professor | Senior Professor 3
Chair Professor
Senior Professor
Professor
Associate Professor
Senior Lecturer Gr.l 3
Senior Lecturer Gr.ll
Lecturer
Lecturer (Prob.)
Temporary Lecturer/ 14
Temp.Asst.Lecturer
Temporary Research 1
Assistant
Temporary Demonstrator 6
Temporary Instructor 13
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Actual Cadre

Staff category Vacancies

Permanent
Temporary
Visiting

—
N
—_

[3

e
~

~
.

[1-([21+[3] +[4]1)

Senior Professor
Professor
Associate Professor

Senior Lecturer Gr.l 6
Senior Lecturer Gr.ll

Lecturer

Lecturer (Prob.)

Temporary Lecturer / Temp. D

Asst. Lect

Temporary Demonstrator

Table 6.4: Details of Approved Cadre and Present Staff as at 31st December, 2017 —
Library Staff and Academic Supportive Staff

Existing Staff | Permanent Actual Cadre
Salary Scale Permanent Cadre Vacancies | Vacancies
[2] 11 -12] 1 -12]
U-AC 5 1
U-AC 4 1 1
U-AC 3 to U-AC 5

Table 6.5: Details of Approved Cadre and Present Staff as at 31st December, 2017 —
Academic Administrative Grades

Actual Cadre
Vacancies

Salary Scale Permanent

[2]

(1) — 2]

Allowance
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7. Details of Non-Academic Staff

Actual Cadre
Vacancies

(1) - [(2)+
(3)+ (4)]

Permanent
Contract
Assignment

—
N
—
W
—
—
N
—

Actual
Cadre
Vacancies

M) - [(2)-
) (3) (4) (3)- (4]

Permanent | Visiting Assignment
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8. The Employability of Graduands in 2017

Information regarding the employability is collected prior to every convocation
by issuing questionnaire to the graduands. As such, the survey results obtained
from the “Employability Survey - 2017” regarding their employability is given

below.

Table 8.1: Summary Report of Graduands

Approximate no
Degree Number . of days to find
el program | Conferred BiESCET the first
Employment
Special 33 23/12/2015, 21/05/2016,
FAS T Coreral 86 | 18/10/2016 and 25/11/2016 72-410
Special 47 14/05/2016 and
FAC 243-267
General 298 07/06/2016
Special 4 19/12/2015, 11/05/2016,
FIA 07/06/2016, 18/06/2016 115-414
Ceneral 170 and 13/10/2016
Special 159 24/12/2015, 07/05/2016
FMC T oneral o1 and 14/05/2016 267-409
Total 925
No Response,
16% Employed,
Under . 20,65%
Employed,

3.20% \

Unemployed,
60.11%

Figure 8.1: Overall Employment Status of Graduands in 2017
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100%
’ 7.83% 17355 9.92%
90% 5.22% 2.60% et 4.55%

0, 0,
80% |24% 3.57%
70%

60% 50.43% 48.76%

50%

40% 67.18% 68.37%

30%
20% 36.52% 36.78%
10%

0%

10.71%

8.98%

FAS FAC FIA FMC

®Employed ®Unemployed ®Under Employed ™ No Response

Figure 8.2: Faculty wise Employment Status of Graduands

Table 8.2: Summary Report of Job Sector Preference of Graduands

FIA 8 58 13 4 7 9 5 -
FMC 29 29 40 - 2 9 7 -

Table 8.3: Summary Report of Employment Sector of Graduands

FAS 23 40 25 4 - 8
FAC 39 36 11 - 11 4
FIA 12 54 8 12 8 8
FMC 4 73 5 9 1 7
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9. Details of Research, Innovation and Publications

No. of Full Papers
published in indexed
Journals

No. of Full Papers
published in non-indexed - - 6
refereed Journals

No. of. Publication in
refereed indexed e- - - - 2
journals

No. of. Publication in
refereed non-indexed e-
journals

02 o1

No. of conference Papers
published as full papers in 2
Conference Proceedings

67 3

42 | 02

No. of Abstract

Publications o )

20

No. of Book Chapters
published

Bya

No. of publisher

Books By the

Author 03

L-Published Local

F-Published Foreign

The details of the above research, Journal, books and article which were done
by academic staff members are given below.

VICE CHANCELLOR

Papers published as full papers in Conference
Proceedings

Najim, M.M.M. and Moragoda, N., 2017,
August. “Effects of Paddy Husk Biochar on
Selected Physical and Chemical Properties of
the Low Humic Gley Soil in the Low Country
Wet Zone”. International Forestry and
Environment Symposium (Vol. 21).

Udayanga, N.W.B.A.L., Najim, M.M.M. and
Kaleel, M.L.LM., 2017. “Variations in rainfall
patterns of Batticaloa (DL2b) in terms of
severity and frequency of occurrence of wet
and dry events”. 5% international conference,
SEUARS — 2016, FAC,SEUSL.

Book Chapter

MP Gunawardena, MMM Najim, (2017).
“Adapting Sri Lanka to Climate Change:
Approaches to Water Modeling in the Upper
Mahaweli Catchment Area” Climate Change
Research at Universities. BP: 95-115 Book
Polisher - Springer, Cham.

FACULTY OF ARTS AND CULTURE
Publications in refereed indexed Journals

Anuziya, S., (2017), the Commercial Activity in
Sri Lanka during Dutch on 17t & 18 Sen Juries.
The International Journal for Economic &
Business Management.

Nasliha, M.L.F., Rinos, M.H.M. and Mathanraj,
S., 2017. The management actions for the
effects of natural disasters: a study based on
Maruthamunai area. World News of Natural
Sciences, 15, pp.20-36.

Kaleel, M.ILM., 2017. Pipe-borne water
consumption and its wastage: A study based
on Panandura Urban Area in Sri Lanka. World
Scientific News, 66, pp.250-262.

Kaleel, M.LM., 2017. The Impact on
Wetlands: A Study Based on Selected Areas in
Ampara District of Sri Lanka. World News of
Natural Sciences, (7), pp.16-25.

Kaleel, M.LM. and Nijamir, K., 2017. The
environmental  challenges of  declining
mangroves: an analytical survey in Puttalam
District in Sri Lanka. World News of Natural
Sciences, 14, pp.106-115.



https://link.springer.com/chapter/10.1007/978-3-319-58214-6_6
https://link.springer.com/chapter/10.1007/978-3-319-58214-6_6
https://link.springer.com/chapter/10.1007/978-3-319-58214-6_6
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Kaleel, M.ILM., 2017. Eco Tourism as a Way
for Biodiversity Conservation: A Study Based
on Trincomalee District in Sri Lanka. World
News of Natural Sciences, 12, pp.82-91.

Mathanraj, S. and Kaleel, M.LLM., 2017.
Rainfall Variability in the wet-dry seasons. An
analysis in Batticaloa District, Sri Lanka. World
News of Natural Sciences, 9, pp.71-78.

Kaleel, M.ILM. and Reeza, M.R., 2017. The
Impact of Landslide on Environment and
Socio-Economy: GIS Based Study on Badulla
Districtc in  Sri  Lanka. World  Scientific
News, 88(2), pp.69-84.

Kaleel, M.LM. and Nijamir, K., 2017. The
Impact  of  Agricultural  Practices on
Groundwater Quality: A Critical Study Based
on Navithanveli Ds Division in Ampara Distr.
International journal of research-Grathaalayah

Kaleel, M.LM. and Nijamir, K., 2017. The
Impact of Drought: A Study Based on
Anuradhapra District in Sri Lanka. /nternational
journal of Environment, Agriculture and
Biotechnology.

Kaleel, M.I.M., 2017. The Land Use Change
Detection of Coastal Areas in Ampara District
in Sri Lanka. Journal of Education and Social
Science.

M. 1. M. Kaleel and M. Sathyaruban, (2017),
Influencing Spatial and Temporal Patterns of
Road Accidents: A Study on Nuwara — Eliya
District, World News of Natural Sciences,
Volume 10, Pages 09.

S. Nisthar and AAM. Nufile, (2017). AN
EMPIRICAL RELATIONSHIP AMONG TAX
REVENUE, NON-TAX REVENUE, GRANTS,
EXPENDITURES AND ECONOMIC GROWTH
IN SRI LANKA : An analysis of Co-integration
and Causality, Advance Research Journal of
Multi-Disciplinary Discoveries

Volume 17, Issue 1, Pages 1-7

S.Nisthar ~ V.Vaiharathan, A.A.M.Nufile.,
(2017).  The Relationship among Export,
Import and Economic Growth in Sri Lanka:
Granger Causality Analysis, International
Journal of Social Science and Technology,
Volume 2, Issue No. 2, Pages 1-15

Publications in refereed indexed e-journals
Kistan, A., Selvakumari, S., Sangeetha, P.,

Kanchana, V. and Thaminum Ansari, A., 2018.
Present-dayposition of heavy metal

adulteration in top soil Affected by Tannery
actions, Vaniyambadi, Vellore
district. /nternational Journal —of Current
Research in Life Sciences, 7(01), pp.843-849.

Publications in refereed non-indexed journals

Nisthar, S. and Nufile, A.A.M., (2017). An
Analysis of Tourism Competitiveness Indices of
Asia-Pacific Economies: A Study on the Global
Rank of the Tourism Competitiveness
Index. Journal of Tourism Economics and
Applied Research, 1(i).

FHA.Shibly and M. Riswan,
“(peroeLbaseiT (%31, 0y T 2
adljellenensend:  ‘@eomens  eneyeii. &6’
eI QomPAOUWIY  BITemey  enwLBSHSW
e Published in the full paper proceedings
(online) in the E-Repository of the Main
Library, SEUSL. Publication 20, September
2017, paper ID: IDUI4, Pp. (675-682). ISBN:
978-955-627-121-8.

(2017),).
L|6D6016) & (6THLD,

N.Subaraj, (2017), “Gevmimauied i, Fkisen
Lo& 6160t SILUTSH FflenwisepdalenLullsomer
ugerouysd  GeTLiysen”  for Magazine of
‘Aayathanam’ published by National Institute
of Education Maharagama, September 2017.

N.Subaraj, (2017), “@baIrs Heobdwkise
Oamiiumer el e AUlWB BB HI 68
audlunsd” for  Magazine of ‘Saasvatham’
published by Hindu Mamanram, South Eastern
University of Sri Lanka, May, 2017

N.Subaraj, (2017), “Quensm, Bb&I  D&EBEM6
LgleumLLiimpiiy LI6WTIg 60 & &
CFBMTEmILTL_L_Mid (G alenL_UTeuTe LJeroLy &
Q&L H6IT: SibUTenm LOTEUL L &H60&

enowiiu@saEwa” for Journal of ‘Piravaakam’
published by Department of Languages, SEUSL.

MASF.Saadhiya, (2017), “@erveomilulg
S0peEHWHBH0 Beler  HevbdWHBHe @R D™
Kalam.

Papers published as full papers in Conference
Proceedings

K. Kanesarajah (2017). “Educational
Counseling and its applicable problems”, 7
International  Symposium  (IntSym-2017),
SEUSL.

K.Kanesarajah (2017). “Multidisciplinary
Research for Sustainable Development” 7
International  Symposium (IntSym-2017),
SEUSL.
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I.L.M. Mahir (2017). “The Egocentrism of the
adolescence and its Cultural crisis in the
society” at the Inter Religious Scholar’s Forum,
School of Religion Philosophy and Humanist at
Madurai Kamaraj University , Madurai, India.

N.Subaraj, (2017), “Cultural Interaction
between Buddhist and Hindu peoples’ Funeral
Rituals: Based on Ampara District” 77
International  Symposium (IntSym-2017),
SEUSL.

N.Subaraj, (2017), “usiBsSalen HeiEGHBEHID
aueiieneuflell HmEGBEDHD - @f UL LTuiey” 39
international symposium, FIA, SEUSL  20%
September 2017.

N.Subaraj, (2017), “wsms@enmwssi” Research
Conference of Vipulananthar — 2017, Fastern
University of Sri Lanka and Department of
Hindu Cultural and affairs, Colombo.

N.Subaraj, (2017), “wmp mHTeded Gsmeury;”
Research Conference of Vipulananthar — 2017,
Eastern University of Sri Lanka and All Ceylon
Hindu Congress.

N.Subaraj, (2017), “@e0miIendu Tt
mFUFHHTHH  aueniFHullsd  emFeu  HTEUGVET
usAHiensulesr eudunsw” Second International
Saiva Conference - 2017, (ISC 2017),
Department of Hindu Civilization, FAC,
University of Jaffna, Sri Lanka. 21, 22, 23 April
2017.

N.Subaraj, (2017), “srdlend GFhHBHTengwIfe
SHSUITW  BoUbHID LOULBSSHID wFeudbHibs
uPsesneiens”  Second  International  Saiva
Conference — 2017, (ISC 2017), Department of
Hindu Civilization, FAC, University of Jaffna,
Sri Lanka. 21, 22, 23 April 2017.

Navaz, AMM. (2017). “Writing Difficulties: An
Investigation of Irregular Morpheme Errors
among the Student in the South Eastern

University of Sri Lanka.” 7% [International
Symposium (IntSym-2017), SEUSL.
Navaz, AMM and Sama, FRM. (2017).

“Teaching Grammar in the English Language
Classroom: Perception and Practices of
Students and Teachers.” 7 International
Symposium (IntSym-2017), SEUSL.

T.M.F. Wazeemaand and M.LF. Karema.
(2017). “Implication of Multimedia Audio-
Visual Aids In the English Language
Classroom.”

MM. Abdul Rahuman. (2017). “A Study of
Mother Tongue Influence on Learning English
as a Second Language by Tamil Speaking
Students.” 7 International  Symposium
(IntSym-2017), SEUSL.

S Nisthar, S Vijayakumar, AAM Nufile (2017).
Peace and tourism: an analysis of bidirectional
relationship, FAC, SEUSL.

AL Aslam, SM Ahamed Lebbe, (2017), Inflation
and economic growth in Sri Lanka: an ARDL
bound testing approach, FAC, SEUSL,

S. Anuzsiya, (2017). “INDO-SRI LANKA
RELATIONS WITH SPECIAL REFERENCE TO
NEHRU-KOTALAWALE PACT OF 1954”7 34
Ruhuna University International Conference
on Humanities and Social Sciences — 2017 held
on 28th and 29th March 2017, University of
Ruhuna, Matara.

S. Selvakumari,, (2017).“Siddhanda
Sasthiraththil manam — oru meiyeyal Nokku”
024 [nternational Saiva Conference held on
21, 22, 23 April 2017 at University of Jaffna.

Papers published as abstracts in Conference
Proceedings

I.L.M. Mahir (2017). Cultural Stress among the
Youth in Sri Lanka” at the 3th International
symposium about  Liberty and Human Rights
Conference 2017 in Cairo University, Egypt.

N.Subaraj, (2017), “SHméemseorus @hTen 2_6or
6T6RTEILD Re&Ha 1S3 60 allgelujsiten 26Ul
WIUBSSHBEHTHT  DIQLILENL.  SIDEFRIHET Sth
international conference, SEUARS — 2016, 17
January 2017, FAC,SEUSL.

N.Subaraj, (2017), “@pssowl  HHoHeIkIGTND
Loeofl @B QHEMLOLILITL 6D OeueMlLBSHSHID
FRsIhear  SiHmeusd CaTiur®: gemerwl @b
SHHOIRIBEHLATE @i @uuilLmue” 5%
international conference, SEUARS - 20i6,
FACSEUSL.

Fowsar, M.AM. (2017). “Institutional and
Non- Institutional Constraints Confronting
Local Government in Sri Lanka.” 6" Annual
International Research Conference -2017,
FMC, SEUSL.

Fowsar, M.A.M. (2017). “Changing Dynamics
of Minority Politics in Post — war Sri Lanka: A
Case Study of Muslim Politics. /n: Proceeding
of the Twenty Second Annual Conference and
International  Seminar, Organized  by:
Association of Third World Studies, South Asia
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Chaoter (ATWS,SAC) Collaboration with the
faculty of Arts, University of Jaffna, Sri Lanka.

lhjas, M.M. & Fowsar, M.A.M. (2017). Post —
War Peace in Sri Lanka: The Nexus between
Regimes, Approaches and Outcomes. /n:
Proceeding of the Twenty Second Annual
Conference  and  International  Seminar,
Organized by: Association of Third World
Studies, South Asia Chaoter (ATWS, SAC)
Collaboration with the faculty of Arts,
University of Jaffna, Sri Lanka.

Riswan. M., ALM. Riyal and MBM. Sufyan.
(2017). “A Research on Road Accident through
In-depth Accidents Analysis in the Ampara
Police Division™. 5" international conference,
SEUARS — 2016, FAC,SEUSL.

FHA. Shibly
“(peroelibdsit
6187 6)l6m6nT &b (GTHLD:

and M. Riswan, (2017).
OHTLFLITes L|6D60I6) & (6THLD,
‘Qevmiend  Llenaysii. &6y
slemild  QmAGuWIiY  HITeDeL  eOWILGHEW
ey 4% International Symposium 2017
FIA, SEUSL.

29

Riswan. M. and TMF. Wazeema (2017). A
sociology study on social Exclusion and
Vulnerabilities of Rural People in Ashraff
Nagar”, 6" Annual International Research
Conference, FMC, SEUSL.

Riswan. M. and TMF. Wazeema (2017). A
sociology study on Gender Equality and
Vulnerabilities of migrant Women in the Rural
Economy”, International Symposium on
Gender Equity and Equality (ISGEE 2017),
Eastern Uhniversity, Sri Lankan 30" November
2017.

Navas, AMM. (2017). “Analyzing English
Medium Undergraduate Lectures in Sri Lanka:
Developing an Analytical Framework.” Paper
Presented at the International Research
Symposium on English Languages Studies 2017,
Department of English Language Teaching,
university of Colombo. 28-29 September
2017.

Navas, AMM and Sama, FRM. (2017). “A
Study on Importance of Learning Grammar for
ESL University Students: Students’ Perspective.”
2nd  International Research Conference of
Trinco Campus, EUSL. 13 & 14 September
2017.

Nawaz, S.S., Rashida, M.F. and Sameem,
M.A.M., (2017). Students’ perspectives on use
Behaviour of learning management systems in
Sri Lankan universities.

Shalabi, M.M. and Sameem, M.A.M., (2017).
A classroom-based Psycholinguistic study.

Mansoor, C.M.M., (2017). An approach for
automatic design of application specific
instruction set processors (ASIP).

Rinos, M.H.M. and Nishanthi, K., (2017). GIS
based land wuse change detection of
Bandarawela DS division.

Fowzul Ameer, M.L (2017). Water-borne
diseases and their challenges in the coastal of
Ampara district in Sri Lanka.

Muneera, M.B. and Fowzul Ameer, M.L.,
(2017). Impacts of social media on Muslim
society: the research overview of Kalmunai
municipal council area.

Rosana, T. and Fowzul Ameer, M.L. (2017).
The livestock management problems in
Kanthale DS division of Trincomalee district.

Madurapperuma, B.D., Dellysse, J.E., Zahir,
I.LLLM. and lyoob, A.L., (2017). Mapping
shoreline wvulnerabilities using kite aerial
photographs at Oluvil harbour in Ampara.

Ashraff, A.F.M., (2017). Problems in teaching
Tamil as a second language to the Sinhala
speaking students: a research based on SEUSL
Sinhala speaking students.

Rameez, M.A.M. and Rameez, A., (2017).
weoedld  oflwed  BuibsdHler  Lietereniluisd
anfleroppraneler  @pdwed  yGeugib .South
Eastern University of Sri Lanka, University

Park, Oluvil.

Saadhiya, M.A.S.F. and Mafaz, M.S.M., (2017).
Fiisen  omewieNiseT  @yewiLmid  GomPlunassd
HLolemLp HBLSH6O 2_siTeN Fdb 605 ETHLD

SIQUBMIHBHTEN &5 6)|&HETHLD

Farween, S., (2017). Gozned owdsm @EDE
DT O®MOB Damw O ¢ @wde BEAC
@301 DBHDE Bwd@.

Naleefa, A.W.N., (2017). Cultural dimentions
of hot, cold and ‘Kirandi’in east coast Muslims’

gastronomy.

Mabhir, I.L.M. and Archana, B., (2017). seie)

LSl 6T6U0T 6NN b B (h: FlébL06wTL LAgmun’ 19 6ot
BHHSHHIHHMET  DQLILIDL WTHE QBTN @
U@Lumuie)

Kanesarajah, K., (2017). ey

CampsopIl Lbgammed  gBUBS B  @pdHelulsd
UTEHILILSH6T-@f U6
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Riswan, M., Riyal, A.LM. and Sufiyan,
M.B.M., (2017). g elusHsibsel  LBPIW
el swureny  Qureded  Lflallsd @ 1bGLM®
aid) NUGHIHHMET WL SHSHW Qb

L@Uumuiey.

Issadeen, M.L. and Shafra, A., (2017). An
analysis on Lacan’s concept of self.

Nisthar, S., Vijayakumar, S. and Nufile,

A.AM., (2017). Dark tourism and its potential
impacts on tourism industry in Sri Lanka.

Nisthar, S., Vijayakumar, S. and Nufile,
A.A.M., (2017). Peace and tourism: an analysis
of bidirectional relationship.

Milhana, U.L. and Nufile, A.A.M., (2017).
Determinants of assessment tax revenue of
municipalities in Sri Lanka: a case study in
Kalmunai municipal council.

Mahir, L.LLLM., (2017). Qe geflen 2 enaiuled
FMT BLSMSAUTHD o L 60 o eniiyFFlenendasmert
Fialed FLouTsd OCUMSHE DHHHHemen CHTHD)
BBTHMSI.

Books

FHA. Shibly and M. Riswan. (2017), “Gsdw
SFWID FFeuCHF 2 _MaydEnHhd: amleroppTaller
#GuUT®” , chapter publication in the book
Hpse eumgev  (Gateway to East) aipdadei
syflwed  eemewiuid  anfleoLypiorelsst 25 augmL
sfwed  uBeysenn, uBiy 2016 (us. 131 —
139) published by the Political Science
Association, South Eastern University of Sri
Lanka, Oluvil. Published on 10" April 2017 at
Hizbullah Hall, Kattankudy. (ISBN: 978-955-
627- 096-9).

AFM. Ashraff. (2017), A book published on
‘An Introductory Hand Book for Tamil
Language’ by Neha Publishers, Trincomalee,
2017.

AFM. Ashraff. (2017), A course manual
published on ‘Introduction to Tamil Language
and Practical Grammar’ by Centre for External
Degrees and professional Learning, SEUSL,
2017

FACULTY OF
COMMERCE

MANAGEMENT  AND

Publications in refereed indexed Journals

M.F. Rashida, (2017), “E Learning in higher
Education Institutions and lts Determinants”
Journal of Education and practice

ALMA  Shameem,Ishar Ali & MS. Mubarak,
(2017), Interior Atmosphere Does it really
Have an Impact Customer Purchasing Behavior
At self — Serving Convenience Stores? Journal
of Marketing and customer Research,
International Institute Science, Technology &
Education. UK, ISSN 2422-8451

ALMA  Shameem & C. David, (2017), The
Marketing Environment and Intention to
Adoption of Green Banking: Does it have
Relationships? GLOBAL Journal of Business and
Management Research, sai Ram Institute of
Management Studlies, Indlia, ISSN 2347- 7814

Hilal M.I.M (2017), Role of Word of Mouth in
the CBBE Components and Brand Loyalty of
Arugum Bay as Tourist Destination: A Study
among Local Tourists, Journal of Tourism
Economics and Applied Research, Vol. I, No.
1, pp. 16-30.

Hilal M.I.LM (2017), Strategic Orientation and
Performance of Social Entrepreneurships in Sri
Lanka, CSBM International Journal of
Entrepreneurship, Vol. 2, No. 2 (Proceedings
of the International Conference on Social
Entrepreneurship:  Innovations in  Social
Enterprise for Development), pp. 10— 19

AJahufer, (2017), Solving Stock Price-Gross
Domestic Product Puzzle: Evidence from Sri
Lanka. /nternational Journal of Economics and
Financial Issues 7 (5), 465-474.

Publications in refereed non - indexed Journals

Hilal MM and Kasum A (2017),
Organizational Characteristicc and Market
Orientation of Curd Industry of Kanthalai: A
Managerial Perspective, SEUSL Journal of
Marketing, Vol. 2, No. 1, pp. 26-32.

Ummah, M.A.C. and Jamaldeen, A., 2014.
Entrepreneurs’ perception towards technology
change: a study in small and medium sized
enterprises (SMEs) in Ampara district. Journal
of Management, 8(1).

Kalith, .M., Asirvatham, D. and Raisal, I.,
2017. Context-dependent Syllable Modeling of
Sentence-based Semi-continuous Speech
Recognition for the Tamil
Language. Information Technology
Journal, 16(3), pp.125-133.

HM.  Nijam and M. C. Nazar., (2017).

Sustainable Development Goals on Energy and
Environment: Key Issues in Sri Lanka, Asian
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Journal of Environment & Ecology 5(2): I-8,
2017; Article no.AJEE.36556 ISSN: 2456-690X

Papers published as full papers in Conference
Proceedings

S. Athambawa, APR. Wickramarachchi &
C.Pushpakumara chchi, (2017), “Business
Transformation through Technology adoption:
special reference to rice millers in Eastern
province, Sri Lanka” [/RSPAS- 2017, Faculty of
Science, University of Kelaniya.

S. Athambawa, APR. Wickramarachchi &
C.Pushpakumara chchi, (2017), Role of techno
ware and transforming capability adoption on
transforming the rice manufacturing business in
Sri  Lanka” ARSSSH- National Centre for
Advanced Studies in Humanities & Social
Sciences, Sri Lanka

M.l Rifaya, (2017), The Usefulness of
Structured Pediatric records on improving
documentation quality and staff performance
satisfaction in a District General Hospital, Sri
Lanka. National Health Research Symposium.

Habeeb Mohamed Nijam., (2017).” IFRAS
Adoption and Value Relevance of Earnings: A
Non-Market Model.” 6th Annual International
Research Conference- 2017, FMC, SEUSL.

AM.Inun Jariya., (2017).” Bank Specific Factors
and Profitability: The Case of Sri Lanka.”, 6th
Annual International Research Conference-
2017, FMC, SEUSL.

Athambawa Jahfer and Sumudu Inoshika
Madurasinghe., (2017). “Liquidity and Capital
Structure: The Case of Sri Lanka.)” 6th Annual
International Research Conference- 2017,
FMC, SEUSL.

Haleem. HMM, (2017). “Portfolio Structure &
Performance-A Study on Selected Financial
Organization in Sri Lanka”, 6th Annual
International Research Conference- 2017,
FMC, SEUSL.

G.Geekiyanage A.Jahfer, L.K. Wanigathunga
and S.l. Madurasinghe, (2017).”Stock Liquidity
and Firm Dividend Polices in The Colombo
Stock Market.” 6th Annual International
Research Conference- 2017, FMC, SEUSL.

Ahemed Lebbe Abdul Rauf, (2017). “Micro
Determinants and Share Prices: A Causal
Relationship Study among Listed Insurance
Companies in Sri Lanka.” 6th Annual

International Research Conference- 2017,
FMC, SEUSL.
Ahamed Lebbe Sarifudeen, (2017). *“Value

Relevance of Accounting Information: A
Literature Review.” 6th Annual International
Research Conference- 2017, FMC, SEUSL.

A.L Mohamed Najimudeen, (2017).
“Relationship  between Efficient Working
Capital Management and Profitability of Listed
Firms in Sri Lanka.” 6th Annual International
Research Conference- 2017, FMC, SEUSL.

MCA.Nazar and NBNS. Abeysinghe, (2017).
“The Impact of Working Capital Management
on Profitability of Sri Lanka Trading
Companies”.  6th  Annual  International
Research Conference- 2017, FMC, SEUSL.

Riswana and Mohamed Abdul Cader Salfiya
Ummah, (2017). “Relationship  between
Personal Entrepreneurial Characteristic and the
Organizational Development of Small Business
Entrepreneurs in Kattankudy”. 6th Annual
International Research Conference- 2017,
FMC, SEUSL.

Felavani.T, Sivarajasingham. And Muatafa
AMM, (2017). “The Intertemporal Dynamic
Relationship between Workers’ Remittances
and Economic Growth Evidence from Sri
Lanka:” 6th Annual International Research
Conference- 2017, FMC, SEUSL.

S.Gunapalan and B.G.H.Dilhani. (2017).
“Saving Behavior in Rural Area: Special
Emphasis on Ambalantota Area Hambantota
District.” 6th Annual International Research
Conference- 2017, FMC, SEUSL.

Sareena Umma M.A.G and Fathima Zahana
M.M., (2017). “Factors Affecting the Work Life
Balance of School Teachers: A Study on Assiraj
Maha Vidyalaya Akkaraipattu.” 6th Annual
International Research Conference- 2017,
FMC, SEUSL.

Hla Lay Nwe and S. Athambawa, (2017).
“Factors Affecting Occupational Safety and
Health Management System: Special Reference
to Cement Industries at the Mandaly Industry
Zone in Myanmar” 6th Annual International
Research Conference- 2017, FMC, SEUSL.

B.G.D.L. Bandarawaththa and M.A.M. Hussain
Ali, (2017). “Organizational Career Growth
And Employee Turnover Intention of
Managerial Employees: Special Reference to
People’s Banks in Ampara District” 6th Annual
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International Research Conference- 2017,

FMC, SEUSL.

F.H. Abdul Rauf and Moh Moh Lwin, (2017).
“Organizational Citizenship Behavior of Nurses
and patient satisfaction: A Study at Public
Hospitals in Ampara District of Sri Lanka” 6th
Annual International Research Conference-
2017, FMC, SEUSL.

MAA.Apsara and S.Athambawa, (2017). “The
Impact of Work Life Balance of Female
Employees on Job Stisfscstion:  Special
Reference Leasing Sector of Colombo District”
6th Annual International Research Conference-
2017, FMC, SEUSL.

T.Mayoori and M.A.C.Salfiya ummah, (2017).
“The Impact of Job Satisfaction on Employee
Work Performance: Special Reference to
Divisional Secretariat, Kluwanchikudy,” 6th
Annual International Research Conference-
2017, FMC, SEUSL.

M.T.H.Silva and Mohamed Abdul Cader
Salfiya Ummah, (2017). “The Impact of
Psychological Contract on Employee

Motivation with Reference to People’s Bank
Head Office,” 6th Annual International
Research Conference- 2017, FMC, SEUSL.

G.D.K.Somarathna and M.AM. Hussain Ali,
(2017). “Employee Demographic Factors and
Employee Turnover Intention of Operational
Level Employees of an Apparel Organization
in Ampara District,” 6th Annual International
Research Conference- 2017, FMC, SEUSL.

ALMA.Shameem, (2017). “The Role Internal
Marketing towards Improving Service Quality:
Empirical Setting from Eastern Based Hotels in
Sri Lanka” 6th Annual International Research
Conference- 2017, FMC, SEUSL.

Mohamed Isamail Mujahid Hilal, (2017). “The
Effect of Internal Marketing on the Employees’
Work Performance in Small Businesses,” 6th
Annual International Research Conference-
2017, FMC, SEUSL.

Mohamed Ismail Mujahid Hilal and Ajith
Medis, (2017). “Impact of Social Media
Marketing in Customer Based Brand Equity: A
Mediating Roal Brand Knowlaged in Sri Lanka
Fmcg Brands” 6th Annual International
Research Conference- 2017, FMC, SEUSL.

ALMA. Shameem, (2017).
Social Media Marketing
Medium  Size  Businesses,  6th

“Application of
in a Small and
Annual

International Research Conference- 2017,

FMC, SEUSL.

Samsudeen Sabraz Nawaz and Abdul Jabbar
Mohamed Hasmy, (2017). “What Decides the
Usage of Accounting Information Systems? A
SMEs’ Perspective in the Eastern Province of Sri
Lanka,” 6th Annual International Research
Conference- 2017, FMC, SEUSL.

M.B.M Irshad, (2017). “A Study on Factors
Influencing the Facebook Usage by the
Undergraduates of State Universities in the
North and Eastern part of Sri Lanka,” 6th
Annual International Research Conference-
2017, FMC, SEUSL.

M. Mohamed Shiraj, (2017). “The Impact of
Using Multimedia on Students’ Academic
Achievement in South Eastern University of Sri
Lanka,” 6th Annual International Research
Conference- 2017, FMC, SEUSL.

Mohamed Hussain Thowfeek and Samsudeen
Sabraz Nawas, (2017). “The Introduction of
Flipped Classroom: An Innovation Approach
to Transfer Knowledge,” 6th Annual
International Research Conference- 2017,
FMC, SEUSL.

M.A.M. Fowsar, (2017). “Institutional and
non-Institutional Constraints Confronting Local
Governments in Sri Lanka,” 6th Annual
International Research Conference- 2017,
FMC, SEUSL.

Gayathri Geekiyanage & Athambawa Jahfer,
(2017). “Srock Price Reaction to Merger and
Acquisition Announcement: Evidence from
Colombo Stock Market”, 7 International
Symposium (IntSym-2017), SEUSL.

Athambawa Jahfer & Tohru Inoue, (2017).
“Long-Run  Relationship between Macro
Economic  Factors and  Stock  Market
Performance in Sri Lanka”, 7 [International
Symposium (IntSym-2017), SEUSL.

S. Sahfana, M.R. Ahamed Mulaffer & S.L.
Abdul Haleem, (2017). “Web — Based Election
System for Students Unions of Faculties in Sri
Lankan.

A.R.F. Shafana, (2017). “Two Tier Shield
System for Hiding Sensitive Textual Data /"
International  Symposium (IntSym-2017),
SEUSL.
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A.R.F. Shafana & G.A.L Uwanthika, (2017).
“Critical Analysis on the Use of Computation
Tools for the Genomic Analysis of Oral
Carcinoma”. 7 International Symposium
(IntSym-2017), SEUSL.

S.M. Murshitha , (2017), “ A Study on Factors
Influencing Customer Trust in and Satisfaction
with Mobile Banking in Sri Lankan State
Commercial Bank”, 6th Annual International
Research Conference- 2017, FMC, SEUSL.

Hilal M.LM (2017), “The Role of Brand
Knowledge and Brand Loyalty in Creating
Brand Equity in the Telecommunication
Industry”,  International  Conference  on
Advanced Marketing — 2017 organized by
Department of Marketing, University of
Kelaniya. (This paper received best paper
award)

Hilal M.ILM. & Hittihamu S. (2017), “The
Effect of Relationship Marketing on Customer
Loyalty: A Study among Cellular Customers in
the Ampara District”, CPM  Regional
Management Conference 2017 organized by
Certified  Professional ~Managers, BMICH,
Colombo.

Hilal M.1.LM (2017), “Strategic Orientation and
Performance of Social Entrepreneurship in Sri
Lanka: A Review of Literature”, /nternational
Conference on  Social  Entrepreneurship
organized by Colombo School of Business &
Management, Sri Lanka Foundation, Colombo.

Hilal M.LM (2017), “The Effects of Internal
Marketing on the Employees’ Work
Performance in Small Businesses”, 6th Annual
International Research Conference- 2017,
FMC, SEUSL.

Hilal M.I.LM and Medis A (2017), “ Impact of
Social Media Marketing on Customer Based
brand Equity: A Mediating Role of Brand
Knowledge in Sri Lankan FMCG Brands”, 6th
Annual International Research Conference-
2017, FMC, SEUSL.

Hilal M.I.M. and Udovita P.V.M.V.D. (2017),
“Factors Determining Celebrity Endorsement
and Impact on Brand Loyalty: A Sri Lanka
Based Study on Cosmetic Advertising”,
Business Horizon, SRM University

Hilal M.1.LM. & Hittihamu §. (2017), The Effect
of Relationship Marketing on Customer
Loyalty: A Study among Cellular Customers in
the Ampara District, Certified Professional

Managers’ Regional Conference Proceedings,
pp. 12-28.

Shameem, ALMA. (2017), “Impact of Service
Delivery on Customer Satisfaction: A Study
Among the Telecommunication Networks in
Sri Lanka”, 4 International Conference on
Business & Management in Fin - Tech Driven
Age, Organized by The Skyline University
College, University of Sharjah, held on 26" —
27 March, 2017.

Shameem, ALMA. (2017), “Impacts of
Marketing Strategies on the Growth of Small
Medium Enterprises in Sri Lanka”, Asia Pacific
Multidisciplinary Research Conference,
Organized by Unique Conference Canada,
held on 29" — 30" July, 2017, ISBN: 978 1
988652 08 5.

David .C, and Shameem, ALMA. (2017), “The
Level of Influence of Economic Factors on the
Intention to Adoption of Green Banking
Practices in Commercials Banks”,
2nd International Research Conference,
Organized by Tricomalee Campus, Eastern
University  Sri Lanka, held on 13—
14 September, 2017, ISBN: 978 955 1443 87
0.

David .C, and Shameem, ALMA. (2017), “The
Influence of Management Commitment and
Support on the Intention to Adoption of
Green Banking Practices in Commercials
Banks”, 27 Interdisciplinary Conference of
Management Researchers in Collaboration
with 10% Tourism Outlook Conference and
It International ~ Environment  Sustainable
Conference, Organized by Faculty of
Management Studies, Sabaragamuwa
University of Sri lanka, held on 19" —
21" October, 2017, ISBN: 978 955 644 060 7.

Shameem, ALMA. (2017),
Social Media Marketing
Medium  Size  Businesses”,
International Research Conference-
FMC, SEUSL.

“Application of
in a Small and
6th  Annual
2017,

Shameem, ALMA. (2017), “The Role of
Internal Marketing Towards Improving Service
Quality: Empirical Settings From Eastern Based
Hotels in Sri Lanka”, 6th Annual International
Research Conference- 2017, FMC, SEUSL.

Shameem, ALMA. (2017), “Impact of Service
Delivery on Customer Satisfaction: A Study
Among the Telecommunication Networks in
Sri Lanka”, 4 International Conference on
Business & Management in Fin - Tech Driven
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Age, Organized by The Skyline University
College, University of Sharjah, held on 26" —
274 March, 2017.

Shameem, ALMA. (2017), “A Religious Based

Perspective of Cross Cultural Study on
Attitudes towards Advertisements”,
International — Conference on  Advanced

Marketing, Organized by The International
Institute of Knowledge Management and
Faculty of Commerce and Management
Studlies, University of Kelaniya, held on 26 —
27 January 2017, ISBN: 978 955 4903 67 8

Mubarak Kaldeen, (2017),“Impact of
Organizations communication on  work
Efficiency of management Level Employees in
Banking Sector” 6th Annual International
Research Conference- 2017, FMC, SEUSL.

Jariya, A.M., (2017). Bank specific factors and
profitability: the case of Sri Lanka.

Nijam, H.M. and Nazar, M.C. (2017).
Sustainable Development Goals on Energy and
Environment: Key [ssues in Sri Lanka.

Nijam, H.M., (2017). IFRS adoption and value
relevance of earnings: a non-market model.

Eelavani, T., Sivarajasingham, S. and Mustafa,
AM.M., (2017). The intertemporal dynamic
relationship between workers’ remittances and
economic growth evidence from Sri Lanka.

Rauf, F.A. and Lwin, MM., (2017).
Organizational citizenship behavior of nurses
and patient satisfaction: a study at public
hospitals in Ampara district of Sri Lanka.

Apsara, M.A.A. and Athambawa, S., (2017).
The impact of work life balance of female
employees on job satisfaction: special
reference to leasing sector of Colombo district

Thowfeek, M.H. and Nawaz, S.S., (2017). The
introduction of flipped classroom: an
innovative approach to transfer knowledge

Irshad, M.B.M., (2017). A study on factors
influencing the Facebook usage by the
undergraduates of state universities in the
north and eastern part of Sri Lanka

Nawaz, S.S., Rashida, M.F. and Sameem,
M.A.M., (2017). Students’ perspectives on use
behaviour of learning management systems in
Sri Lankan universities.

Nawaz, $.S. and Hasmy, A.J.M., (2017). What
decides the usage of accounting information
systems? A SMEs’ perspective in the Eastern
province of Sri Lanka.

Nawaz, §.S., Rashida, M.F. and Sameem,
M.A.M., (2017). Students’ perspectives on use
behaviour of learning management systems in
Sri Lankan universities.

Nawaz, S.S. and Hasmy, A.J.M., (2017). What
decides the usage of accounting information
systems? A SMEs’ perspective in the Eastern
province of Sri Lanka.

M. Mohamed Shiraj., (2017). Implementation
of Radio Frequency Identification (RFID)
Technology in Retail Business: An Empirical
Investigation in Eastern Province, Sri Lanka,4th
International Conference on Business and
Management (ICBM), Skyline University
College, Sharjah, UAE.

MBM Ismail, (2017), Reliability and validity
test for employee rewards & customer service
training and service recovery performance:
mediation of organizational commitment in
hotel industry, /ndian Academic Researchers
Association.

M.M. Shiraj, (2017).“An Empirical Analysis of
Online Marketing: (Special Reference to the
South-Eastern Region, Sri Lanka)” in the Znd
Interdisciplinary Conference of Management
Researchers (ICMR) held on 19 — 21 October
2017 at Sabaragamuwa University.

Sithy Safeena MGH,, (2017).“ “Factors
influencing integrating conflict management
strategy” in 4th International Conference on
Contemporary Management — 2017 held on
25th and 26th of July 2017 at University of
Jaffna.

M.ILM. Hilal, (2017).“The Role of Word of
Mouth within the CBBE Components and
Brand Loyalty of Arugum Bay as Tourist
Destination: A Study among Local Tourists ",
International  Research  Symposium  and
Tourism Leaders’ Summit held on 03 & 04
October 2017 at BMICH, Colombo organized
by the Dept. of Economics, University of
Colombo.

FACULTY OF APPLIED SCIENCES
Publications in refereed indexed Journals

K,Komathiraj & Ranjan Sharma (2017), “A
family of solutions the Einstein-Maxwell
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system of equation describing charged fluid
spheres”, Pramana Journal of physics.

Jahufer, A. (2017). “ldentifying Anomalous
Cases in Modified Liu Estimator.” Kasmera,
45(10). (ISl-Index Journal), (published in
Venezuela).

Arumukham Manjceevan, Jayasundera
Bandara (2017), “Optimization of
performance and stability of quantum dot
sensitized cells by manipulating the electrical
properties of different metal sulphide counter

electrodes” Flectrochemical Act 235 (2017)
390-398.
T.B.N.S. Madugalla, A. Pitawala, G.

Manthilake (2017), “Primary & Secondary
Textures at dolomite in Eppawala Carbonate
Sri Lanka: implications for their petro genetic
history” Journal at Geosciences.

A.M.N.M. Adikaram, Pitawala, H.M.T.G.A.,
Ishiga, H. an,d Jayawardana, D.T. (2017) “I-P2
O5 diagrams as an indicator of depositional
environment in marine sediment: preliminary”
Envirmental Earth Sciences.

AM.N.M. Adikaram, Pitawala, H.M.T.G.A.,
Ishiga, H. and Jayawardana, D.T. (2017),
“Chemical Composition and possible sources
of suspended particulate matter in the
peripheral envoirments of Batticaloa lagoon,
Sri Lanka.” Regional Studlies in Marine Science.

A.M.N.M. Adikaram, Pitawala, H.M.T.G.A.,
Ishiga, H. and Jayawardana, D.T. (2017),
“Spatial Distribution, enrichment, and source
of environmentally important element in
Batticaloa lagoon, Sri Lanka.” Environmental
Science and pollution Research.

AM.N.M. Adikaram, Pitawala, H.M.T.G.A.,
Ishiga, H. and Jayawardana, D.T. (2017),
“Paleo environmental Reconstruction using
trace- fossil burrows: A pioneer study for
Quaternary sediments of Eastern Sri” Journal
of Geological Society of India

A.M.N.M. Adikaram, Pitawala, H.M.T.G.A.
(2017) “An overview of heavy metal
contamination in coastal sediments of Sri
Lanka,” Journal of tropical forestry and
environment.

M.N.M. Farhath, A.Manjceevan, .J.M.S.
Bandara (2017), “Optimization of

performance and stability of quantum dot
sensitized cells by manipulating the electrical

properties of different metal sulfide counter
electrodes™ Electrochemical Acta.

ALF Rahman, AM Razmy, MMAA Rizath -
Open Access Library Journal, (2017), Obstetric
and Perinatal Outcomes of Teenage
Pregnancies: A Cross-Sectional Study, Open
Access Library Journal, Volume 4, 09, Pages I.

A.M. Razmy, A. Jabeer, (2017). Association
between the Performance of the University
Security Officers and Their Physical Fitness: A
Case Study, Open Access Library Journal,
Volume 4,Issue 06,Pages].

Papers published as full paper

Haalisha, A and Jahufer, A. (2017). “Modelling
and Forecasting Inflation Rates in Sri Lanka: An
Implementation  of  SARIMA  Models.”
International Statistical Conference. 28-19,
Dec. 2017, Taj Samudra Hotel, Colombo, Sri
Lanka.

Haalisha, A and Jahufer, A. (2017).
“Determinants of Low Birth Weight using
Logistic Regression Approach (case Study:
Ampara District).” Annual Research Session of
Eastern university of Sri lanka, 12-13, Oct.
2017, faculty of Health Care Sciences, Eastern
University of Sri Lanka.

HMM. Naleer, (2017) “Human Age
Identification via Machine Learning”
Multidisciplinary Research for sustainable
Development /7 [nternational Symposium
(IntSym-2017), SEUSL.

M.H. Haroon, S.R. Premaratne, M.l
Choudhry and H.R.\W Dharmaratne (2017) “In
Vitro T- cell inhibition of Aurasperone — A
from a marine derived fungus Aspergillus
fonsaceus” 7 International  Symposium
(IntSym-2017), SEUSL.

M.H. Haroon (2017) “Multidisciplinary
Research for Sustainable Development” 7
International  Symposium (IntSym-2017),
SEUSL.

K.K.L.B. Adikaram & P.A. Jayantha (2017).
Zero Mean Transformation Technique That
Not Effected By Missing.” 7" International
Symposium (IntSym-2017), SEUSL.

M.LS. Safeena & A.Cheanieha Queene (2017).
“Effect of Mycoherebicides on Waterhycinth
(Eichhornia Crassipes Mart. Solms.)” 7
International  Symposium (IntSym-2017),
SEUSL.
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A.M. Razmy (2017). “Exponentially weighted
Moving Average Distance Square Scheme for
Joint Monitoring of Process Mean and
Variance” 7 International  Symposium
(IntSym-2017), SEUSL.

MAC Akmal Jahan, and RG Ragel, (2017).
Separating tables from text and non-text

objects in printed documents for digital
reconstruction Industrial and Information
Systems (ICIIS), 2017 [EEE International
Conference,

Abstract publications

Haalisha, A and Jahufer, A. (2017).
“Forecasting Sri Lankan Inflation: Time Series
Approach”  Sixth Annual Science Research
Session. (ASRS). 2017, FAS, SEUSL.

Mayazir, NMM and Jahufer, A. (2017).
“Analyzing Relationship between Import and
Export of Sri  Lanka  Using  vector
Autoregressive  Approach.”  Sixth  Annual
Science Research Session. (ASRS). 2017, FAS,
SEUSL.

M.M. Mohamed Mufassrin and H.M.M
Naleer, (2017). “Vehicle Parking Space
Detection and Monitoring Using Image

Binarization and Segmentation”, Sixth Annual/
Science Research Session. (ASRS). 2017, FAS,
SEUSL.

M.A.M. Faham, (2017). “Helmholtz’s Equation
on a cubed sphere.” Sixth Annual Science
Research Session. (ASRS). 2017, FAS, SEUSL.

E.G.K.M. Gamlath, T.M.N.S Yapa, Z.A.M.S.
Juman, (2017), “On obtaining an Initial
feasible solution to the Transportation
problem: A comparative study” PGIS Research
Congress 2017.

K. Komathiraj, (2017), “An exact model for
relativistic sphere”, Sixth Annual Science
Research Session. (ASRS). 2017, FAS, SEUSL.

Rafee, C. (2017), Ontology — Based Agent
Communication for the Detection of Clinical
Activity, 1" Annual Postgraduate Research
Symposium 2017, Auckland University of
Technology, Auckland, New Zealand-2017.

T. Jasetharan, K. Balashangar and P. Ravirajan,
(2017). “Enhancement of the Photocurrent
Density in Day — Sensitized Solar Cells Using
Single- Wdalled Carbon Nanotubes” Sixth
Annual Science Research Session. (ASRS). 2017,
FAS, SEUSL.

M.AM. Ziyan, M.AK.L. Disanayake, U.L.
Zainudeen, G.K.R. Senadeera and C.A.
Thotawattage, (2017). “Efficiency

Improvement of Day- Sensitizwd Solar Cell by
the Composite of  Titanium  Doxide
Nanoprticles and  Electrospun  Titanium
Dioxeide Nanofiber” Sixth Annual Science
Research Session. (ASRS). 2017, FAS, SEUSL.

M.C. Alibuhtto, (2017). “Comparison of Time
Series Models to Forecast Tourist Arrivals in
Srilanka”™  Sixth Annual Science Research
Session. (ASRS). 2017, FAS, SEUSL.

A.N. Ahmed and Y.B. Igbal, (2017). “Problem
Caused by Weed Rice and Solution for
lismanagment in the Coastal Village of Ampara
District™ Sixth Annual Science Research Session.
(ASRS). 2017, FAS, SEUSL.

M.F. Fasmie, (2017). “A Pattern to Draw
Lattice Diagrams in a Fixed Field” Sixth Annual
Science Research Session. (ASRS). 2017, FAS,
SEUSL.

M.F. Nawas, (2017). “A Study of Soluble
Phosphate Content in Animal Wastes” Sixth
Annual Science Research Session. (ASRS). 2017,
FAS, SEUSL.

E.M.J.M. Rizvi, T.W.G.F. Mafaziya Nijamdeen
and A. Samsar, (2017). “Leaf Trait and
Growth Parameter Relationship of Three
Greenhouse Grown Dry Zone Tree Species at
Seedling Stage” Sixth Annual Science Research
Session. (ASRS). 2017, FAS, SEUSL.

W.A.A.W.P. Weerasuriya, U.L. zainudden and
P.A.N.S. Priyadhrshana, (2017). “A Study of
Sound Absorption Coefficient of Natural Fiber
Samples, Coir Fiber and Rice Dust at Dry and
Wet Conditions™ Sixth Annual Science Research
Session. (ASRS). 2017, FAS, SEUSL.

A.A. Muhammed and A.L. Hanees, (2017).
“lot Based Wdaste Collection Monitoring
System.” Sixth Annual Science Research
Session. (ASRS). 2017, FAS, SEUSL.

U. L. Zainudeen and M.J.M. Jafeen, (2017).
“A Study of Tensile Strength of Pedot and Ppy
Conducting Polymer Films™ Sixth Annual
Science Research Session. (ASRS). 2017, FAS,
SEUSL.

T.W.G.F. Mafaziya Nijamdeen, Tharanga
Wijewicrams, D.S.A. wijesundara and H.M.S.P.
Madawala, (2017). “Changes of Arbuscular
Mycorrhizal Fungal Community Following
Over-Dominance of Bambusa Bambos in
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Moist-Mixed Evergreen Forest in Moragolla
Srilanka.”  Sixth Annual Science Research
Session. (ASRS). 2017, FAS, SEUSL.

M.AM. Ziyan , M.AK.L. Disanayake , U.L.
Zainudeen G.K.R. Senadeera and C.A.
Thotawattage (2017) “Efficiency Improvement
of Day- Sensitized Solar Cell by the Composite
of Titanium Dioxide Nanoparticles and
Electrospun Titanium Dioxide Nanofiber”
Sixth Annual Science Research Session. (ASRS).
2017, FAS, SEUSL.

U.L. Zainudeen and M.J.M. Jafeen (2017) “A
Study of Tensile Strength of Pedot And Ppy
Conducting Polymer Films™ Sixth Annual
Science Research Session. (ASRS). 2017, FAS,
SEUSL.

W.A.A.W.P. Weerasuriya, U.L. Zainudeen and
P.A.N.S. Priyadharshana (2017) “A Study of
Sound Absorption Coefficient of Natural Fiber
Samples, Coir Fiber and Rice Dust at Dry and
Wet Conditions™ Sixth Annual Science Research
Session. (ASRS). 2017, FAS, SEUSL.

M.F. Nawas (2017) “Soluble Phosphate
Content in Animalwastes™ Sixth Annual Science
Research Session. (ASRS), 28, Nov. 2017, FAS,
SEUSL.

FACULTY OF ISLAMIC STUDIES AND ARABIC
LANGUAGE

Publication in refereed indexed Journals

Ahamed sarjoon Razick, Nagoor Gafoordeen,
Ahmad Sunawari Long, Kamarudin Salleh the
recent hate Campaigns whether Impacted the
Community Relationship between Buddhists
and Muslims in Sri Lanka? Saudi Journal of
Humanities and Social  Sciences, 2017;
2(7):483-496.

Ahmed Sunawari Long, Zaizul A Rahman,
Ahadmed Sarjoon Razick, Kamarudin
SallehMuslim  Socio-culture and Majority-
Minority Relations in recent Sri Lanka, Journal
of  Politics and  Law, 2017  doi:
10.5539/jpl.viOn2pl105URL:
https.//doi.org/10.5539/jpl.vi02pl105

Ahmad Sunawari Long, Ahadmed Sarjoon
Razick , Kamarudin Salleh, Kgidzir Hj. Ismail,
Saadiah  Kumain, Haliza ~ Omar.Recent
Campaigns against the Muslims in Sri Lanka
from Buddhist and Muslim Perspective,
Research Journal of Applied Science 12(1):14-
25,2017

Nairoos MHM, Nashath MRF (2017), Reasons
for failure of the practices in Islamic
Microfinance of Commercial Credit in Sri
Lanka: With Special reference to commercial
credit head office Colombo, /mperial Journal
of Interdisciplinary Research (IJIR ISSN 2554-
Vol-03. Issue-06, 2017.)

SMM. Nafees, (2017), Migrant Workers in
Malaysia and the Role of International Labor
Organization’s Conventions. American Science
Letter (Scopus), Vol.23Issue no.9, 2017.

SMM. Nafees, (2017), Right to Development,
American Science Letters (Scopus), Vol.23 Issue
no.9, 2017.

SMM Mazahir, A Ab Rahman, MI Ramzy
(2017). An Analysis Of Policy Compatibility
Between Conventional Insurance And Islamic
Insurance Policies: A Study Of Conceptual And
Operational  Differences, Jurnal  Syariah,
Volume 25, Issue 3,Pages 481-504.

Publications in refereed non-indexed Journals
Mazahir, SSM.M., 2017, Judge M.t. Akbar,
(Tamil), AL Islah- Journal of Muslim Majlis,
South Eastern University of Sri Lanka, 06"
Edition, pp.57-60

Mazahir, S.M.M., 2017 Appointment of
Female judges and its Implementation in Sri
Lanka (Tamil), Islamiya Sinthanai (Islamic
Thought), Special Issue on Muslim Personal
Law, Naleemiah Bureau of Islamic Publications,
Beruwala. Issue No: 150&151, Vol.39:02-03,
pp.73-84

Irfan, M.LM, 2017, “The Influence of
Governance in Management of Development
Effects: Sri Lanka Perspective”, Journal of Asian
and African Social Science and Humanities,
Vol. 3, No. 2, 2017, Pages 1-2 (ISSN: 2413-
2748).

Irfan, M.LLM, 2017, “The Role of E-
Governance in Administrative Efficiency and
Combating Corruption: Case of Sri Lanka”,
Global Journal of Management and Business
Research (USA) 17(2): Page 39-50 (Online
ISSN: 2249-4588 7 Print ISSSN: 0975-5853).

Mr M.S.M Jalaldeen, (2017). “Spreading and
Islam in Srilanka and Malaysia — A Case study”
Kalam. Vol X(1)



https://doi.org/10.5539/jpl.v102p105

Annual Report 2017 | South Eastern University of Sri Lanka

Publications in refereed non-indexed e-

Journals

Jalaldeen M.S.M, (2017), “Revivalist
Movements in Sri Lanka — A Comparative
study of Hindu and Islamic Revivalist
Movements”, Journal of Emerging Trends in
Education Research and Policy Studies
(JETERAPS), Vol. 7, NO. 6, 2017 (ISBN: 2141-
6990.)

Mohammad Ismath Ramzy Seyed Mohamed
Mohamed Mazahir, Asmak Ab Rahman,
(2017). An Analysis On Takaful Operation
Under Conventional Regulator: A Sri Lankan
Experience, Katha, Volume 13, Issue 1, Pages
54-72.

Papers published as full papers in Conference
Proceedings

Nairoos MHM, Ismiya Bagem MS, safnas |
(2017),  “contribution of Mosque in
community renovation: A study on Kekeirawa
Area Jum’aa Mosques: Fourth International
Symposium, FIA, SEUSL.

Ahamed Sarjoon Razick Socio-culture issues
and the relationships between Buddhists and
Muslims in  Sri  Lanka 4th International
Symposium. 20 September 2017. FIA,SEUSL.

M.J.F. Rukaiya, M.M.F. Shahana, M.A.R.
Askiya, M.S.F. Sabra, A.H. Nasmiya and
Ahamed  Sarjoon Razick  us@mevESHINS
oremellwiflesr (GOTAN Levend Lbpsiw g Th:
Qevendd  OHHMBIEGL  L6LHMEVEHHE0HHMBH
MWINILGSHSW W16 7" International
Symposium (IntSym-2017), SEUSL.

Nairoos MHM, Rifas, AH (2017) “Relationship
with Islamic financial Institutions of Rural
community people for their Banking Needs”
5" [nternational Conference of Faculty of arts
& culture of South Eastern university of Sri
Lanka on Research and Development for a
global Knowledge society, 17t January 2017,
FAC-SEUSL, ISBN: 978-955-627-100-3, p.20.

Nairoos MHM, Ismiya Begam MS, sifnas |
(2017), “Contribution of Mosque in
community renovation: A study on Kekeirawa
ArealJum’aa Mosques™: Fourth International
Symposium, FIA, SEUSL.

Sajna SF, Nairoos MHM, (2017), “Credit cards
on Islamic Legal view”, Fourth International
Symposium, FIA, SEUSL.

Helfan MLM, Mazahir SMMM, Nairoos
MHM, (2017) “Use of Druga and its effects on

women and children: A case study of eravur
police Area”, Fourth International Symposium,
FIA, SEUSL.

Nairoos MH. Inual hadiga MJ, Fathima
Naseeha MJ (2017), “Educational History of
Kanukediya  Muslim  women and its
Development: 1990-2015”, 7 International
Symposium (IntSym-2017), SEUSL.

Nasar AR, (2017) “The Impact of grammatical
and Linguistic structures in deduction the
jurisprudential ~ provisions: a  Descriptive
Applied study on the Holy Quran”, (thesis
PhD), Omdurman Islamic university, Republic
of Sudan: ministry of high education and
scientific Research.

Razick AM, Safiyullah  MIM, (2017)
“Importance of studying the relation between
Sentence and paragraphs in Arabic text”, 7
International  Symposium (IntSym-2017),
SEUSL.

Shathifa MCS, Shamila UH, (2017), “Sound
implication and its impact on understanding
the Sound miracle of the Holy Quran- Sura
ALAdhiyath as a sample ”, Fourth International
Symposium, FIA, SEUSL.

Shathifa MCS, Farwin ARFS, Asmath Haseena,
(2017), “contrastive study in the usage of
Numerals in Arabic and Tamil Language”. 7

International  Symposium  (IntSym-2017),
SEUSL.
lzzathbanu M,  Aliyar ABM, (2017),

“Translation of Terminology of Hadeeth from
Arabic into Tamil Problems and Solutions”,
Fourth International Symposium, FIA, SEUSL.

Sajith  Husain AL, MHA,

Munas (2017),

“Analytical study of Student’s fear and
unwillingness in acquiring Morphology at
Arabic Colleges in Sri Lanka”, Fourth

International Symposium, FIA, SEUSL.

Safiullah MIM, Munas MHA, (2017), “Machine
Translation into Tamil Language from Arabic
by using Google translate Software: Problems

and solutions”, Fourth International
Symposium, FIA, SEUSL.
ShathifaMCS, Shamila UH, (2017), “Sound

implication and its impact on understanding
the Sound miracle of the Holy Quran- Surah
AL-Adhiyath as a sample Fourth International
Symposium, FIA, SEUSL.
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Shathifa MCS, Farwin ARFS, AsmathHaseena,
(2017), “contrastive study in the usage of
Numerals in Arabic and Tamil Language”. 7
International  Symposium (IntSym-2017),
SEUSL.

Sajith Husain AL, Farwin ARFS (2017) “The
present status of Arabic Language in the
teaching in the state school of Erawur,
Batticaloa District.”  Fourth International
Symposium, FIA, SEUSL.

Fathima shameera AW, Fathima nadhira AQ,
Shibly FHA, (2017), “Digitalization of Holy
Quran (Quranic Applications): Challenge and
Concerns, Special Reference With 4t vyear
Students of South Eastern University of Sri
Lanka”, Fourth International Symposium, FIA,
SEUSL.

Shibly FHA, Riswan M, (2017), “ @eomiemnasuisd
(PeO6ID&EST  QOBHTLIUTEN  LIeD&6YHEHD 618
efleneaysEnld” Bevmiend LleTeewiL &6  6lenid
QumAOUWIFIY  HITme WILGHHW  Syule).
Fourth International Symposium, FIA, SEUSL.

Shibly FHA, Ashraff YM, Fahima MMF, Nuha

MMF,  (2017) “(pervedd E,616M0T &35 63T
FAUT6LBHGIHLD, GUTUILIL| & @TLD: noolaham.org
GTEUT6UONLD mITevshHms (digital library)

mWNILGSHW apiiey ” Fourth International

Symposium, FIA, SEUSL.

Rifa Mahroof S, (2017) “integrating short
video films in Teaching English to the
Undergraduates pursuing a degree on Arabic

Studies And Islamic  Studies”, Forth
International Symposium, FIA SEUSL.
Rifa Mahroof S. ((2017), “Scaffolding

international in English as a second Language
classroom: a socio — cultural Analysis”. 7
International Symposium 2017, (intsym2017),
SEUSL.

Zahira MIF, Rifa AH, Faroosha MAF, Nimsith
SI, (2017), “Customer Perception on Islamic
System: Based on Sainthamarathu Division”,
Fourth International Symposium, FIA, SEUSL.

Mohamed Nasirm MS, Habeebullah MT,
(2017), “slamic Banking Formulas and its
Experience in Sri Lanka”, Fourth International
Symposium, FIA, SEUSL.

SMM. Nafees, MRP. Risna, MF. Rukshana &
MFF. Zahira (2017), “South Eastern University
Community’s Perception on Takaful: An
Empirical Study Based on Oluvil Campus”,
Fourth International Symposium, FIA, SEUSL.

Shariah  Governance of Islamic Financial
Institutions: A Comparative Study among
Malaysia, Bahrain and Sri Lanka, /nternational
Symposium Held on 7& 8 December 2017,
South Eastern University of Sri Lanka. Oluvil,
Sri Lanka

Helfan, M.L.M., Mazahir, S.M.M., and
Nairoos, M.H.M., (2017 September 20),
Consumption of Drugs and its effect on
Women and Children: A Field Research based
on Eravur Police Area, Fourth International
Symposium, FIA, SEUSL.

Nisfa, M.S.F., and Mazahir, S.M.M., (2017
September 20), Islamic Law of Inheritance in
Sri Lanka: A Research Based on Kalutara
Muslim  Society, Abstract Submitted in the
Fourth International Symposium, FIA, SEUSL.

Sajith Husain A.L & Farwin A.R.F.S, (2017),
Y e dans gD, XY K gl LY 4
MR bl e e Yue Ll uua i
o S L P S

Fourth International Symposium, FIA, SEUSL.

MCS.Shathifa and UH. Shamila,

i . L

(2017),
L e -

Fourth International Symposium, FIA, SEUSL.

Husain AL & Munas. M.H.A.
el ey i oA W o
Fourth International Symposium, FIA,
SEUSL.

Sajith
e W

»

Sainulabdeen Fathima Sajna and MHF.
Nairoos. (2017), “Credit Cards on Islamic Legal
View” Fourth International Symposium, FIA,
SEUSL.

MFF. Zahira, AH.Rifas, MAF. Faroosha & SI.
NImsith. (2017), Costumer Perception on
Islamic ~ Pawning  System: Based on
Sainthamaruthu Division. Fourth International
Symposium, FIA, SEUSL.

M. lzzath Banu & MR. ABM. Aliyar, (2017),

N Lo W e b L W g

Fourth International Symposium, FIA, SEUSL.

Fathima Shameera Abdul Wahid Fathima
Nadhira Abdul Kuddoos & FHA. Shibly,
(2017), “Digitalization of Holy Quran (Quranic
Application): Challenges and Concerns. Special
Reference with 4t Year Students of South
Eastern University of Sri Lanka,” Fourth
International Symposium, FIA, SEUSL.

MNF. Nisrin, BF.Sifara and AH.Rifas, (2017),
“H. . Glempuled Guewt yelibsdeme LG
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R6omINSH (OFT0 AL 3G LIVBEM6VBHLDHHNSH
oLWLILGSHW  ewiey. Fourth International
Symposium, FIA, SEUSL.

38. 1 Safeek, MR Kalideen, 2017).Pre-
processing on Facebook data for sentiment
analysis, South Eastern University of Sri Lanka,
University Park, Oluvil, Sri Lanka.

39. AH Rifas, MHM Nairoos, (2017), eumu&lg
CH6meUs @ &ETS &ymolym LD&&6IT
@erveomilil 1)) THIM) 1607 (@ L_ 65T
Qaram(heien 2 Mey:  ULMeO(EnsTT  SJTDGens
mWWILTES Gsmem oule|, FAC, SEUSL.

MHM Muzlifa, AH Rifas, IM Sahthees, (2017),
Possibilities of Halal Tourism in Sri Lanka,
FIA,SEUSL.

K Dehigama, MIM Jazeel (2017).Usage of
Wikipedia by health science and social sciences
& humanities undergraduates of University of
Peradeniya and South Eastern University of Sri
Lanka, SEUSL.

MIM Jazeel, K Dehigama, (2017). Usage and
awareness of EIRs by the Islamic studies and
Arabic language students at South Eastern
University of Sri Lanka, Faculty of Arts &
Culture, SEUSL.

JI. Hasan, MIM Jazeel, (2017), @p&eS1
MyCHESHed SIOID-(Wervedlh BOYIMEY:
(Wervedlbsefssr QeueNCLMHMSHNS (LIS SHTevLd
-1990, FAC, SEUSI.

Ahamed Sarjoon Razick, (2017). Muslim socio-
culture and majority-minority relations in
recent Sri Lanka, Canadian Center of Science
and Education.

Books

Mazahir, S.M.M. and Ismiya Begam, (2017)
Islam: Beliefs and Concept (Tamil), Colombo;
AL Hadaf Publishers.

Rooly, M.S.A.R., & Banda, Y.K.W (2017).
Management and firm characteristics: an
empirical study of capital structure practices of
Listed Companies in Sri Lanka, LAP LAMBERT
Academic Publishing.

Rooly, M.S.A.R., & Buvanendre, s. (2017).
Board structure, agency costs and shareholder
wealth: an empirical study on corporate
governance practices of companies Listed on
Colombo Stock Exchange in Sri Lanka, LAP
LAMBERT Academic Publishing.

Jalaldeen M.S.M, (2017), “Jama’at-l-Islamic
and MawlanaMawdudi: A Historical Review
(English). Colombo:Ilqra Book Publishers. ISBN:
978-955-3904-06-5.

Jalaldeen M.S.M, (2017), “Sri Lanka Muslim
Education: Achievements and challenges
(Tamil), Maruthamunai: Fast  Muslim
Education Forum. 1SBN: 978-955-7367-03-3.

Jalaldeen M.S.M, (2017), “Origin of Islamic
Movement in Sri Lanka (English). Colombo;
Igra Book Publishers. 1SBN:978-955-3904-04-1

Jalaldeen M.S.M, (2017), “Brief introduction
to Arabic Language (Arabic). Colombo; Iqra
Book Publishers. 1SBN: 978-955-3904-08-9

Jalaldeen M.S.M, (2017), “Jamath-i-Islami of
Sri Lanka: A critical Review. Colombo; Igra
Book Publishers. 1SBN: 978-955-3904-07-2

Jalaldeen M.S.M, (2017), “Role of Islamic
scholars in Islamic Society (Arabic) jamath-i-
Islami of Sri Lanka: A critical Review.
Colombo; Igqra Book Publishers. 1SBN: 978-
955-3904-11-9

Jalaldeen M.S.M, (2017), “History of Sri Lanka
Muslims, at a glance (English) Role of Islamic
scholars in Islamic  Society (Arabic)
Maruthamunai: ast Muslim Education Forum.
ISBN: 978-955-7367-00-2.

Jalaldeen M.S.M, (2017), “Arabic Tamil: A
History Review (Tamil). Colombo; Iqra Book
Publishers. 1SBN: 978-955-3904-05-8.

FACULTY OF ENGINEERING
Publications in refereed indexed Journals

T.G Jayakaran, Rekha, C.V.Annamalai, S,
Baghkomeh, P.N. and Sharmin, D.D, (2017),
Preferences and Choices of a child Concerning
the environment in a pediatric dental
operatory  Dental Research Journal, 14(3),
p.183.

A.M Muzathik, P.D.C. Kumara, M.P.C. Viraj,
S.K.K. Suraweera, H.H.E. Jayaweera and T.R.
Ariyarathina, (2017), Mechanical design and
flow simulation of a steam generator for
parabolic trough solar thermal energy
harnessing plant. In Advance in ICT for
Emerging Regions (ICTer), 2017 Seventeenth
International Conference on (pp.1-5). IEEE.
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A.M Muzathik, (2017), Ocean Wave Energy
Hydrogen System for Electrification.
International journal of Sustainable and Green
Energy, 6(2), p.19.

F.R Munas, G.Melory, C.B. Abeyenayake, H.L.
Chathuranga, P. Kumaranga, R.Amarasinghe,
V.T. Dau and Dao, (2017), Open Access Article
Development of PZT Actuated Valveless
Micropump. Sensors, 18(5).

P Balthazar Tucunduva, D.C., Luce, M.J. and
Scott, M.S, (2017), Widespread pre-
translational regulation of the inclusion of
signal peptides in human proteins Genomics,
109(2), pp.113-122.

P Balthazar, Konstantopoulos, C., Wick, C.A.,
DeSimone, A.K., Tridandapani, S., Simoneaux,
S. and Applegate, K.ETrainees, (2017), May
Add Value to Patient Care by Decreasing
Addendum Utilization in Radiology Reports
American Journal of Roenigenology, 209(5),
pp.976-981.

P Balthazar Lacson, R., Ip, l., Hentel,
K.D., Malhotra, Langlotz, C.P., Raja, A.S. and
Khorasani, R, (2017), Medicare imaging
demonstration:  assessing  attributes  of
appropriate use criteria and their American
Journal of Roentgenology, 208(5), pp.1051-
1057.

AM.Z. Zimar, Jayakody, S and Ranaweera,
(2017), Potential use of recycled construction
and demolition waste aggregates for non-
structural concrete applications. Journal of the
National Science Foundation of Sri Lanka,
46(2).

A Saja, (2017). Community learning needs in
gender based violence with special reference to
Northern districts in Sri Lanka, International
Journal of multidisciplinary Studies (IJMS),
Faculty of Graduate Studies, University of Sri
Jayewardnepura, Sri Lanka, Volume 4,lIssue 2,
http://journals.sjp.ac.lk/index.php/ijms/article/
view/3382/2661

Papers published as full papers in Conference
Proceedings

Ajmal Hinas, (2017). “Comparison of Focus
Measures for Collision Avoidance Application
of Mobile Robots”. 7t International
Symposium, SEUSL.

M.B.Murshid, (2017).
Engineering for  Human
International Symposium, SEUSL.

“Electromagnetic
Health” 7t

M.B. Murshid, (2017). “Conceptual Design of
Wireless Feeder”. 7t International Symposium,
SEUSL.

M.B. Murshid, (2017). “Interconnectedness of
Telecommunication and Islam: Literature

Review ” 4 [nternational Symposium 207
September-2017, SEUSL.

M.B. Murshid, (2017). “Relativistic Scientism of
Islamic: Literature Review” 4" [nternational
Symposium 207 September-2017, SEUSL.

M. Aboobucker Mufizal, (2017). “Empiricism
and Islamic philosophical Thoughts: A
Philosophical Approach™ 4% [International

Symposium 20 September-2017, SEUSL.

M.B. Murshid, (2017). “Technology
Management in Telecommunication Context”
6" Annual International Research Conference
2017, November 15, 16 -2017, SEUSL.

M.B. Murshid, (2017). “Telecommunication
Policy in the Context of Rural World” 6t
Annual International Research Conference
2017, November 15, 16 -2017, SEUSL.

M.H.F. Ahamed, U.D.S.D Dissanayake, H.M.P
De silval, H.R.C.G. P Kumara, N.W.A Lidula,
Member, [EEE, (2017). “MPSCAD/EMTDC-
based Simulation for fault Analysis and Fault
Identification in 380V Ring DC System”

Zimar, A.M.Z. and Sanjeevan, C., 2017.
Feasible solutions for reducing traffic from
Meeramakkam mosque junction to
Thopawana temple area in Kandy

Risath, A.L.M., Sivatharsan, S. and Thishanth,
P., 2017. Perception of construction workers
on work motivation towards safety practices
at building construction site: a case study in
Oluvil

Risath, A.L.M., Sivatharsan, S. and Thishanth,
P., 2017. Perception of construction workers
on work motivation towards safety practices
at building construction site: a case study in
Oluvil.

AM. Zarafath Zimar, (2017). “Effect of
Manufactured Sand as a Replacement for Fine
Aggregates in  Concrete” at the 8th
International ~ Conference on  Structural
Engineering and Construction Management
(ICSECM) — 2017, organized by the
Department of Civil Engineering, University of
Peradeniya held on 07th — 09th of December
2017 at Earl’s Regency Hotel, Kandy.



http://journals.sjp.ac.lk/index.php/ijms/article/view/3382/2661
http://journals.sjp.ac.lk/index.php/ijms/article/view/3382/2661
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FACULTY OF TECHNOLOGY

Publications in refereed indexed
Journals

Yohan Jayawardana, S.S. Mayakaduwa,
Prasanna Kumarathilaka, Sewwandi Gamage,
and Meththika Vithanage, 2017. “Municipal
solid waste derived biochar for the removal of
benzene from landfill leachate ” Fnvironmental
Geochemistry and Health.

Musthafa Naja and M.LI. Moahmed, 2017.
“Time Based Random Encryption for Inter
apps Communication in Enterprise Mobile
Application™ Scholars Journal of Engineering
and Technology.

Abstract Publications

E. Pavithra, MG Mohamed Thariq, ML Fowzul
Ameer and K Nijamir, 2017. “The effect of
floods on livestock in Ampara District in Sri
Lanka” [International Roundtable on the
Impact of Extreme natural  Events: Science
and Technology for mitigation, SEUSL.

A. Narmilan, B.G.N Sewwandi and S.
Puvanitha, 2017. “Impact of Extreme Climate
on Crop Production and Management
Techniques in Batticaloa District, Sri Lanka:
Review on Flood and Drought. ” /nternational
Roundltable on the Impacts of Extreme Natural
Events: Science and Technology for Mitigation,
SEUSL.

M.M.F. Naja, M.L.I Mohamed, 2017. “Analysis
of Systematic Data Mining Approaches for
Achieving ~ Competitive ~ Advantage by
Monitoring Social Media” KDU International
Research Conference - 2017.

M.M.F. Naja, M.l Mohamed, 2017.
“Personal POl Recommender with Social Data
and  Augmented Reality” International
Research  Symposium of Uva Wellassa
University — IRSUWU 2017.

M.M.F. Naja, M.L.I. Mohamed and MIF Nihla,
2017. “Machine Assisted Surveillance and
Alerting System to Prevent Mosquito-borne
Diseases”  International = Conference  of
Sabaragamuwa  University —of Sri  Lanka
(ICSUSL) 2017, SEUSL.

Papers published as full papers in Conference
Proceedings

N. Nusrathali and MG Mohamed Thariq,
2017. “Study of impact of cattle rearing

livelyhood project at Kahatagasdigiliya and
Horawapothana DS divisions” 7th
International Symposium — 2017. SEUSL.

S. Puvanitha and A.Narmilan, 2017. “Pesticides
Usage and Socioeconomic Characteristics of
Paddy Farmers with Special Reference to
Sammanthurai Divisional Secretariat Area in
Ampara District.” 7th International Symposium
—2017. SEUSL.

M.J Sabani and SL. Roshan Rukshana, 2017.
“Real Time Price Comparing System for Room
Reservation; a Web Content Mining
Approach” 7th International Symposium -
2017. SEUSL.

S Sivathmeega, R Kariapper, R Rathnayaka,(
2018), Computer aided segmentation
approach for Melanoma skin cancer detection,
International Research Conference, Smart
Computing and System Engineering, Pages
209-212.

S.L.Roshan Rukshana,Sulaima Lebbe Abdul
Haleem & C.M.M. Mansoor, (2017). “The
Design of Efficient and Synergetic Attendance
System Using Fingerprint Techniques”, 7th
International Symposium — 2017. SEUSL.

Isma Lebbe Mohamed Sabri, (2017). “Study on
the Variation of Subgrade Strength with the
Number of Days Soaked”, 7th International
Symposium — 2017, SEUSL.

LIBRARY

Papers published as full papers in Conference
Proceedings

SL.Mohammed Sajeer, (2017). “Expectation of
User in using Electronic Resources:

A Case Study of South Eastern University of Sri
Lanka

A.LM. Mustaq & M.M. Mashroofa, (2017).
Access to Sammanthurai Public Library through
Social Media.



https://www.researchgate.net/project/KDU-Internation-Research-Conference-2017?_esc=publicationHeaderMeta
https://www.researchgate.net/project/KDU-Internation-Research-Conference-2017?_esc=publicationHeaderMeta
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10. Details of Creative works

Details of Creative works with regard to Poems, Songs etc., Lyrics and music
composed and dances, plays, films etc. Product, reviews of appreciations by

authoritative persons in 2017 are shown below.

Product/

Faculty Description of the Creative work Review/

Appreciations
Published an article on ‘@nulws GCETEasd  FIRHSHIF
Aupisenssen’ llakkiyam, Visada Malar — 2017, published by
the Department of Hindu Religious and Cultural Affairs,
Colombo, 2017.
Published an article on ‘mpselssrer”  wny? wewriBCamemw
(Bopsepl s Goysist  Gsmely), published by the Review
Kogulam, Karihanan (Thaniyaar) Institute, Jaffna, 2017.
Published an article on ‘@nulws GCETEasd  FIRHSHIF
fpsmasst’ llakkiyam, Visada Malar — 2017, published by
the Department of Hindu Religious and Cultural Affairs,
Colombo, 2017.
Published an article on ‘mpselsste’ wry?  wemBGsew
(BopsepL s Goyseist GsHT@ly), published by the Review
Kogulam, Karihanan (Thaniyaar) Institute, Jaffna, 2017.

Review

Review

Faculty of Arts and Culture

11. Details of Program, Seminars & Workshops

Table 11.1: Information of International Staff visited for Undergraduate Teaching/ Postgraduate

Teaching/ Symposium/ Workshop in the year 2017.

Faculty Name of the Programme Country No. of Staff
h - I -
SEUSL 7t International Symposium India . 15
(IntSym- 2017) Malaysia 02
Management and | Annual International Research .
. India 10
Commerce Symposium-2017
Islamic Studies and . . Bangladesh 01
. 4" International Symposium -
Arabic Language Malaysia 02
KSA 01
Engineering Undergraduate Teaching

Jamaica 01
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Table 11.2: Details of the Program, Seminars and Workshops conducted by Career Guidance Unit
(CGU) of SEUSL are given below.

No Title of the program
Workshops
1 Personality Development
Goal Setting & Professional
2
Development
3 Confidence Building
4 Self-Awareness
5 Self-Assessment
How to overcome the challenges in the
6
work of world.
7 Effective Decision Making for successful
Career life
8 Projecting the Right Image
9 Facing Job Interviews
Dealing with conflicts and problems
10 .
Resolution
N Entrepreneurship Development
12 Effective Decision making
13 Goal Setting for Career Life
14 Positive thinking to overcome the
challenges in the work of world.
15  Entering the work of world.
16 = Goal setting
17 Entrepreneurship Development
18 | Leadership Qualities
19 | How to face your Exam with grace

Short Term courses

Participation Certificates course in

19 | Tamil Language for Sinhala speaking
students.
20  Short Term course in Professional writing
Short programmes
21 Information Literacy
22  Career Development

Number of
Participants

140

182
46
107
85
85
97
9%

99

69

91
81

56
48
175
69

40

300

95

44

33

Target group

1t year
students /F T

1t year
students /FAC
1t year
students/FMC
1t year
students / FAS

Final year
students / FIA

1t year
students/FMC

1t year
students /FAC

First year
students /FIA

3rd year
students/FMC
All students/
SEUSL

2nd and 3rd
year students /
FAS

Final year
students from
all faculties

Final year
students /FAC
Final year
students /FAS

Date

17.01.2017

23.01.2017
28.04.2017
28.04.2017
29.04.2017
06.05.2017
06.05.2017
29.04.2017
29.04.2017

30.04.2017

30.04.2017
30.04.2017

23.03.2017
03.06.2017
04.06.2017
03.10.2017
11.11.2017

23.11.2017

09.11.2017

2017.01.25
(40 hours
completed)

45 hours ,
In progress

28.04.2017

17.02.2017
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Collaborative programs

24

25

Capacity building program for trained youths

youth Leadership development program funded by
European Union facilitated by UNDP- Ampara

Exposure visit for trained youths

Development Program. funded by European Union

facilitated By UNDP- Ampara

under by

21 Youths

under by Youth Leadership

75 youths

13t &14t May
2017

25t & 26t
May 2017

Table 11.3: The details of the Program, Seminars and Workshops conducted by Staff Development
Centre (SDC) of SEUSL.

Work-oriented Traini
Wz:ks:::)lenoi Mr?;:olzgﬂ Access” 29, 30 April, Administrative (01),
01 Databasei\/lanagement 13,14 & 20 May | Clerical & Allied 15
2017 (05d Grade (14) Staff
(Preliminary Level) ( ay) rade (14) Sta
Workshop on “Office
Management for Productivity
Enhancement” (Filing System, . .
Ad trat 04),
Office System and 5 S System) 06 & 07 May ministrative (04)
. . Technical (04),
02 organized by the SDC in 2017 . . 40
. . . Clerical and Allied
collaboration with the National (02 day) Grade (32) Staff
Institute of Labor Studies (NILS),
Ministry of Labor and Trade
Union Relations
03 | Workshop on “Academic ?:all:ljz o Academic Staff 33
Excellence for Academic Staff” . Y
session)
A Preparation Course on “Official | Commencement . .
| L. Technical, Clerical &

04 Language Proficiency Examination | 20.09.2016 Allied Grade Staff 18 out of
(Written/ Oral) Sinhala” Level — 1Il | Concluded on 59
Duration of the course: 150 hrs. 30.01.2018
A Preparation Course on “Official | Commencement

05 Language Proficiency Examination | 30.09.2016 Primary Level Staff 25 out of
(Written/ Oral) Sinhala” Level — IV | Concluded on 66
Duration of the course: 100 hrs. 12.01.2018
A Preparation Course on “Official (()I;rﬂn;%r;ce)ement Administrative,

Language Proficiency Examination T Technical, Primary

06 . i 99 V2 hrs. . 09 of 16

(Written/ Oral) Tamil covered till Level, Clerical &
Duration: 150 hrs. 28.12.2017 Allied Grade Staff
Residential Workshop on

Essentla'l Soft S,kI”S for Non 04. 05 & 06
Academic Staff” — Phase VI .
. March 2017 Primary Level Staff

07 held at Talawa Training Centre, (03 day) 34
National Institute of Social Y
Development, Moragoda,

Anuradhapura
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Induction Programme for Commenced on Academic Staff
Academic Staff (This programme is | 26.05.2017
08 i Internal — 22 23
compulsory for all academic Concluded on External — Ol
recruits to obtain confirmation) 19.05.2018

Technical, Clerical &
J . «E. ”
09 02nd KESS Session on “E-Safety 28.08.2017 Allied Grade Staff 40

Induction Training Programme 07, 08th, 14th & Newly recruited non-
10 (Phase V) for new recruits of non- | 22" of October Y . 55 of 74
. academic staff
academic staff 2017
Work-oriented Training Session Adrr}nnlstratlv'e (02),
on “Digitization of Students’ Clerical & Allied
11 g, . 11.10.2017 Grade Staff (31) who 33
Academic & Support Services in .
. are handling the
SEUSL .
subject concerned.
Academi
034 Knowledge, Experience & CIC:riceaTz flzz)ed
12 Skills Sharing (KESS) Session on 02.11.2017 Grade (27) 38

Unicode Primary Level (04)

Residential Workshop on

13 ° L. December 2017 Non Academic Staff 32
at Integrated Farm & Training (03 day)
Centre, Parasankulam, 4

Puliyankulam

Table 11.4 Sponsored Activities of SDC

a. Overseas Workshop/ Semninar/ Training Programme/ Short Courses

Place
Designati Titl
S/N esignation itle participated
O1. Deputy Registrar
02. Snr. Asst. Registrar
Managerial & Administrative .
Malaysia
03. Snr. Asst. Registrar Competency Development
04. Assistant Registrar
05. Deputy Registrar - Australia
E iti Hostel tructi
06. Works Engineer xpeditious Hostel Construction Singapore

Project (EHCP)



b.

S/N

o1.

02.

03.

04.

05.

06.

07.

08.

09.

10.
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Local Workshop/ Seminar/ Training Programme/ Short Courses

Programme

Workshop on “Stock Verification in University Libraries”
organized by the Academic Libraries Group of the Sri
Lanka Library Association on 27t January 2017 at
Seminar Room, University of Colombo.

Workshop for “Library Supportive Staff in University
System” organized by the University Librarians
Association (ULA) on 23 and 24t March 2017 at
University of Ruhuna, Library Auditorium.

Workshop on “Leadership Training” organized by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka on 05
April 2017 at CA SRl LANKA Members Lounge, Colombo.
Induction Programme for Academic Staff — 2017 held at
from 23t January to 31t March 2017 at SDC, University
of Peradeniya.

Training Programme on “Formal Letter Writing Skills”
conducted by the Miloda Academy of Financial Studies,
Colombo on 02 & 03 May 2017.

Short Course in “Academic Writing” organized by the
National Centre for Advanced Studies (NCAS), Colombo
Activity 1-Workshop | May 19 (Friday)

Activity 2-Completion of individual assignment May 20 —
June 1

Activity 3-Workshop Il June 2 (Friday)

Activity 4-Revision and submission of assignment

June 3 —June 12

Workshop on “Hands on training on advanced scientific
instruments for material characterization” conducted by
the Industrial Technological Institute, Colombo on 18t
and 19t of May 2017

CPD Programme on “Practical Finite Element Analysis
and Computer Aided Design” held on 27t and 28" June
2017 at the Head of Office, The Institute of Engineering,
Sri Lanka (IESL), Colombo.

One day training on “Risk Assessment, Audit Plan and
Internal Controls” held on 03.08.2017 at the CIDA, 123,
Wijerama Mawatha, Colombo 7 organized by the PRAG
SERVICE (PVT) LTD.

Workshop on “Abstract and Article Reviewing” held on
30t November 2017 at OPA Centre, 275/75, Stanley
Wijesundara Mw, Colombo 07 organized by the
Academic Libraries Group (2017/2018) of the Sri Lanka
Library Association.

Participant/s

—

Snr. Asst. Librarian
AR/ Library Services

Library Attendant, Special
Gr.

Library Attendant, Gr.l
Library Attendant, Gr. |

Assistant Registrar
Faculty of Technology

Lecturer (Prob.)/ FAS

—_

—_

CAA, Establishment (NA)
CAA, Establishment (NA)
CAA, Establishment (A)

Lecturer (Prob.), FMC
Lecturer (Prob.), FT
Lecturer (Unconfirmed), FT

Lecturer (Prob.)/ FAS

Lecturer (Prob.)/ FE

Acting Asst. Internal Auditor

Assistant Librarian
Main Library
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S/N Programme Participant/s

Seminar on “Technologies of Fourth Industrial
Revolution: Impact on Sri Lankan Business and Industries”

11. organized by the Japanese Graduates’ Alumni Association
of Sri Lanka (JAGAAS) held on 30t November 2017 at
Hotel Miraj, Marine Drive, Colombo

Lecturer, FT

Lecturer (Prob.), FT
Lecturer (Prob.), FE
Lecturer (Prob.), FE

Hwh =

Workshop on “Time Series Analysis in Data Science”
organized by the Board of Study in Statistics and
12. Computer Science of the Postraduate Institute of Science
(PGIS) and International Society for Business and
Industrial Statistics (ISBIS) on 20 — 22 December 2017

Snr. Lecturer in Statistics
FAS

Conference/ Symposium

S/N | Title of the paper and Name of the Conference/ Symposium | Presenter/ Participant

“INDO-SRI LANKA RELATIONS WITH SPECIAL REFERENCE Dr. 5. Anuzsiva
TO NEHRU-KOTALAWALE PACT OF 1954 in 3¢ Ruhuna | _ > Cosva

ol1. . R . . Senior Lecturer/ FAC
University International Conference on Humanities and

Social Sciences — 2017

1.  Mr. ALMA. Shameem
Snr. Lecturer/ FMC

2.  Mr. MM. Shiraj
Lecturer (Prob.)/ FMC

“The Impacts of Marketing Strategies on the Growth of
02. | Small Medium Enterprises in Sri Lanka” presented at 2" Asia
Pacific Conference (APMR2017).

“Role of Saiva Kavalan Paper to promote Saiva
03. | Siththantham of Sri Lanka” 0274 International Saiva
Conference, University of Jaffna.

Mr. N. Subaraj,
Lecturer (Prob.)/ FAC

A research paper entitled “Siddhanda Sasthiraththil manam —
04. | oru meiyeyal Nokku” 02 International Saiva Conference,
University of Jaffna.

Mes. S. Selvakumari
Lecturer (Prob.)/ FAC

Mrs. Sithy Safeena MGH,
Senior Lecturer in Management
Dept. of Management

FMC

“Factors influencing integrating conflicc management
05. | strategy” in 4" International Conference on Contemporary
Management — 2017, University of Jaffna.

1.  “A Study on importance of learning grammar for ESL
University  students:  Students’  Perspectives” 2
International Research Conference (TRInCo) — 2017
Dr. A.M.M. Navaz
2. “Analyzing English-medium undergraduate lecturers in | Snr. Lecturer, Dept. of ELT, FAC
Sri Lanka: Developing an Analytical framework”
International Research Symposium on English Language
Studies — 2017, University of Colombo

06é.



S/N

07.

08.

09.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.
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Conference/ Symposium

“The Effect of Relationship Marketing on Customer Loyalty:
A Study among Cellular Customers in the Ampara District”,
CPM Regional Management Conference 2017

“The Role of Word of Mouth within the CBBE Components
and Brand Loyalty of Arugum Bay as Tourist Destination: A
Study among Local Tourists’, International Research
Symposium and Tourism Leaders’ Summit

“The Level of Influence of Economic Factors on the
Intention to Adoption of Green Banking Practices in
Commercial Banks”, 02 International Research Conference
— TRInCo 2017.

“The Influence of Management Commitment and Support
on the Intention to Adoption of Green Banking Practices in
Commercial ~ Banks:  Marketing  Perspectives” 2
Interdisciplinary Conference of Management Researchers
(ICMR) held, Sabaragamuwa University

“An Empirical Analysis of Online Marketing: (Special
Reference to the South-Fastern Region, Sri Lanka)’, 2
Interdisciplinary Conference of Management Researchers
(ICMR), Sabaragamuwa University

“A Sociological Study on Gender Quality and Vulnerability
of Migrant Women in the Rural Economy’, International
Symposium on Gender Equity and Equality (ISGEE) — 2017,
Eastern University, Sri Lanka

“Effect of Manufactured Sand as a Replacement for Fine
Aggregates in Concrete”, 8" International Conference on
Structural Engineering and Construction Management
(ICSECM) — 2017, University of Peradeniya

“Modeling and Forecasting Inflation Rates in Sri Lanka: An
implementation of Sarima Models’, 3 International
Statistical Conference, Institute of Applied Statistics Sri Lanka
(IASSL).

“Study of dye-sensitized solar cells with TiOz nanoparticles/
nanofibers composite electrode using photovoltaic and EIS
measurements”, Solar Asia 2018 international conference ,
National Institute of Fundamental Studies (NIFS).

Presenter/ Participant

Dr. M.I.M. Hilal,
Senior Lecturer

Dept. of Management
FMC

Dr. M.I.M. Hilal,
Senior Lecturer

Dept. of Management
FMC

Mr. ALMA. Shameem,
Senior Lecturer

Dept. of Management
FMC

Mr. ALMA. Shameem,
Senior Lecturer

Dept. of Management
FMC

Mr. M.M. Shiraj,
Lecturer (Prob.)
FMC

Mr. M. Riswan,

Lecturer in Sociology,
Department of Sociology,
Faculty of Arts and Culture

Eng. A.M. Zarafath Zimar
Lecturer (Probationary),
Department of Civil Eng,
Faculty of Engineering

Dr. A. Jahufer
Snr. Lecturer in Statistics
FAS

Dr. U.L. Zainudeen
Snr. Lecturer
FAS
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Table 11.4: The details of the Program, Seminars and Workshops conducted by Student
Support Services and Welfare Unit (SSS&W) of SEUSL.

S.No

01

02

03
04

05

06
07

08

09

10

n
12

13

14

15

16

17
18

19

20

21

22
23

Date

01.01.2017

03.01.2017

03-
04.01.2017

04.01.2017

05.01.2017
05.01.2017

06.01.2018

14.01.2017 -
15.01.2017

20.01.2017

22.01.2017
01.03.2017
17-

19.03.2017

February &
March 2018

22.03.2017

28.03.2017

05.04.2017

11.04.2017 -
20.04.2017

21.04.2017

22.04.2017

26.04.2017

29.04.2017

Program

“YOHA” Exercise Program

at Exam Hall, SEUSL, Oluvil

“Dharma Chanting Program” at Buddhist Temple,
SEUSL, Oluvil

“Bangalawadi” Music concert at FAS

History day programme, Arts Theatre, FAC, SEUSL
“Guest lecture program on Rebooting Democracy in
the age of populism” at Conference Hall, FAC, SEUSL
by Dr. Kopa Kumar Thambi — Director/ Asia
Foundation

“Kalai Mulankum Kalam” cultural competition
(Final)

“Roots of Rhythems” at Exam Hall

Cricket Tournament at Ground, SEUSL

Opening of the status of Buddha, Pirith Chanting
function and Alms giving at FAS, Sammanthurai

“Wella Beach Musical Programme” at Beach side,
SEUSL

Thai Pongal Celebration at FE premises.
E-Ablaze 2017 Concert at SEUSL

Actively Participated with the team of students
making Huts in the Business Clinic 2017 for promote
SEUSL at Ampara Urban Council play ground

Collaborative Research of South Eastern University
on Women’s participation in Local Governance: Case
study of Selected local government areas in Eastern
Sri Lanka

Welcome function and Ragging free Zone Program at
Exam Hall, SEUSL

“Workshop on Social Harmony” at SDC

“Cultural program” at Beach side, SEUSL

“Musical Program” at SEUSL

“Annual Sri Sithivinayahar Maha Utsafa Vila” at
Tamil temple, SEUSL

Public lecture on Islamic Economic System at FIA,
Auditorium by ldries de Vries/ Author and
international speaker on the topics economics,
Islamic economics, philosophy and history

IESL-Day program at FE premises

Signing of Memorandum of Understanding between
University of Malaya and SEUSL at APC

Sinhala and Tamil New Year function at SEUSL,

Collaborative
programme of Office
of the Director/ SSS&W
and

Hindu Society

Sinhala Literary
Association
Student Union, FAS

History Society

Sociology Unit, SEUSL

Sinhala Literary
Association

FAC 2nd year students

Student Union, FE

Student Union, FAS

FE 14 Batch

Tamil Students

Student Union, FE

Career Guidance Unit

Asia foundation

2nd Year students, FIA

University of
Colombo.

Student Union, FMC

Hindu Society

Dean/ FIA

Students, FE

office of the Vice
Chancellor

FMC students




24

25
26
27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41
42

43
44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51
52
53

04.05.2017

06.05.2017
07.05.2017

08.05.2017

15.05.2017

17.05.2017

19.05.2017

23.05.2017

24.05.2017

28.05.2017

04.06.2017
05.06.2017
06.06.2017
07.06.2017
08.06.2017

05.07.2017
04.07.2017
19.07.2017
02.08.2017
09.08.2017

23-
25.08.2017

14.09.2017
25.08.2017

28.08.2017

26-
27.08.2017

30.08.2017

30.08.2017
14.09.2017
16.09.2017
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Oluvil

“Aruntha Vealy” book lounging ceremony at Arts
theatre, FAC, SEUSL

Opening Ceremony of Taekwondo Gymnasium at
Student Recreation Centre, SEUSL

Cricket Tournament at play ground

Sinhala and Tamil New Year function at FAS,
Sammanthurai
“Dharma Deshana™ Buddist program at FAS,
Sammanthurai

“Short film - SAHA™ at SEUSL premises

“Vesak Celebration” at SEUSL

“Dharmma Deshanaya” Vesak Ceremony at Buddhist
temple premises, SEUSL

Cultural function at Examination Hall, SEUSL

“Blood Donation Camp-2017” at Recreation Centre,
SEUSL

Sinhala and Tamil new Year Festival and DJ Musical
Program at SEUSL-Oluvil

Alms giving for the Adults in Elders’ home at
Ampara.

Ifthar Program

Social Harmony Community Service Project
(Workshop-02) at RKM Girls School, Karaitheevu

“Ifthar Program™ at SEUSL premises

“Maha Poson Ice Cream Dansala” program at Main
entrance of SEUSL

“Bhakthi Geetha” Musical function at Gratuation
memento premises

“Bhakthy Keethaya” program

“Saha” short film making at SEUSL premises

“Blood donation campaign” at Medical Centre

“Inter University Essay competition”

Workshop on “Career Guidance and Counseling
Program” at SDC, SEUSL

“Tree plantation Program”™ at SEUSL

Welcome function for E14 Batch at Engineering
faculty premises

“Tree plantation Program™ at SEUSL

“Cricket Tournament” at SEUSL

Bodhi-Pooja program at Buddhist Temple and
Shiramadhana program

Social Harmony in Religion (Workshop-03) at
Auditorium, FAC

“Sweet function” at Common Canteen

“Soft ball friendship Cricket Tournament” at SEUSL
ground

Tamil Sangam

KOICA
FIA students

FAS students

Student Union, FAS

Mr. NM. Azaru Deen
and team

Students /FE

2013/2014 Batch

Hindu Society

Student Union, FMC

Muslim Majlis

University of
Colombo.

Student Union, FMC

Student Union, FE

Student Union, FMC

Mr. NM. Azaru Deen
and group

Student Union, FE

Tamil Sangam

Department of man
power & Employment
and Divisional
Secretariat
Addalaichenai

Tamil Sangam

Students, Faculty of
Engineering,

Student Union, FE

Student Union, FIA

Student Union, FE

University of
Colombo.
Student Union, FIA

Hindu Society




54
55

56
57

58

59

60
61
62

63
64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

17.09.2017
03.10.2017
04.10.2017
11.10.2017

14.10.2017

14-
15.10.2017

15.10.2017

25.10.2017

27.10.2017
28.10.2017

29.10.2017

31.10.2017

01.11.2017

03.11.2017

03-
04.11.2017

09-
10.11.2017
10-
11.11.2017

13.11.2017

14.11.2017

20.11.2017

15-
16.12.2017

19.12.2017

20.12.2017
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“Cricket Tournament™ at SEUSL ground
“Preach” Buddhist function at Buddhist temple,
SEUSL

“Debate competition” at FAC Auditorium

Work shop on “Responsible youth and brighten
Island”

Hijab Day Program for all girl students at Exam Hall,
SEUSL

“Cricket Tournament” at SEUSL

“Girls Sports Meet” at Girls Hostel-Villa-02
Musical Program at in front of CEDPL
Hostel Night Program at Exam Hall, SEUSL

“Annual cultural festival program™ at Exam Hall
“Night Cricket Tournament”

“Agni Premir League - APL Cricket Tournament at
SEUSL Ground

Musical Program at Examination Hall
Blood Donation Campaign at Medical Centre, SEUSL

“Cultural Program”™ at Exam Hall, SEUSL

“Sadbudu Wandana” Buddist Program at FAS
premises

Joint Cultural Program at Auditorium, FIA and
Visiting significant religious and cultural places in
Ampara District

Inter faculty cultural competition 2017 Audition at
Recreation Centre, SEUSL

“Pirith Chanting Program” at Exam Hall, SEUSL

Cultural program and Annual price giving Cermony
at Exam Hall, SEUSL

Girls Get together and cultural program at Girls
Hostel Villa-02, SEUSL, Oluvil

“Workshop on Pathways to Women’s
Empowerment” at Auditorium, FIA, SEUSL

‘Pathways to Women’s Empowerment’ police Porum
at FIA Auditorium, SEUSL

Shiramadhana Campaign and Tree plantation
program at SEUSL
“Night Cricket Tournament”

Inter faculty Cultural Competition 2017 final
program at Exam Hall, SEUSL

Christmas Carrol Eva Program

Student Union,

Student Union,

Tamil Sangam

Muslim Majlis

Student Union,

Student Union,
Student Union,

Hindu Society

Student Union,

Student Union,

Muslim Majlis,

Student Union,

Student Union,

University of
Colombo.

Student Union

Student Union,

Hindu Society

FIA
FMC

FIA

FMC
FAC

FAC

FMC

SEUSL
FAC

FAS

, SEUSL.

FMC

03rd Year Students

International Centre
for Ethnic Studies

(ICES)

Student Union

Student Union

Student Union

Student Union

FMC

, FIA

, SEUSL.

, FMC
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12. Details of Awards Received:

The all Ceylon
Research “Vithuva Siromani National Kampan Prof: MMM. Najim
Ponnampalappillai” Kalaham, Vice Chancellor
Sri Lanka
Department of
Cultural Affairs,
Research Young Artist National Easte‘rn‘ Mr. FHA. Shibly
rovincial
Council,
Sri Lanka
Dr. TBNS.
NRC Merit award ;]::;z:cal'i/ Madugalla, Lecturer
Research for Scientific National . in Earth Science Dept.
Publication 2015 Coundl, f. Physical Sci
Sti Lanka of. Physical Science,
SEUSL
13. Details of New Courses Started
Faculty Department Course Duration Medium
A;?plled B|9Iog|cal !Sachelor of Science Special (2+2) Years | English
Sciences Sciences in Botany
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14. Details of Project Expenditure

(]
E g_ bo > % -é g = 94
© 2 ks - £ = N S 9
> < 0O 0 a a0 L < [ -4 Ui om S oo
Construction of
2015 Hydrological Lab at Loan L 263.334,385.00 | 268,530,139.58 100
SEUSL — Oluvil g
Construction of Proposed &
2015 Girl’s Hostel Complex at Loan ﬁ - 117.558,557.00 124,577,589.61 100
Sammanthurai % 5
Construction of Common <T: g_
2015 Loan . O 99.191,445.50 96,204,267.26 100
Canteen at SEUSL e
Construction of Pavilion b2 g)
2015 | Extension Ground loan | T 65.202,833.82 | 71.137.667.86 100
Faculties Project at SEUSL .%
— Oluvil =
. =
201 | Sonstruction of loan | ¥ 265.357.167.50 | 207.684.425.41 78
Auditorium
Construction of Four
2017 ﬁgig;gﬁ) di?go:t]sSEU ( | GCrant GOSL | 21274861250 @ 21074861250 = 100
(ICC Hostel - 05), Oluvil
Construction of Four
Storied 100 Rooms
2017 Hostel Building at SEUSL Grant | GOSL 212.748,512.50 185,567,879.88 87%
(ICC Hostel - 06),
Sammanthurai
Design, Construction and
2017 | Commissioning of Crant | GOSL | 443,624.004.30 | 122.294.088.81 | 7%

Building Complex for
Technology Studies

15. Details of Financial Progress

15.1 Income

(Rs. Million)

year Government Grant @ Other Income @ Total
2016 1,704.042 16.269 1,720.311
2017 1,456.716 47.058 1,503.773
Notes:

(1) "Government Grant" refers to treasury grant received for Recurrent Expenditure, Capital
Expenditure, Mahapola & Bursaries.
(2) "Other Income" refers to Income from interests, fees, sales and miscellaneous receipts and
generated income from extension programmes & other activities too.
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15.1.1 Generated Income (Extension Programmes and Postgraduate Studies)

Undergraduate Studies 24,978,750.00
Diploma Programmes 66,000.00
Certificate Programmes 10,000.00
Postgraduate Studies 9,246,400.00
Total 34,301,105.00

15.2 Recurrent Expenditure of Major Programmes

(Rs. Million)

2016 225.277 510.106 199.645 61.666 | 29.208 1,025.902

2017 299,31 583,752 187,690 69,188 | 20,754 1,160.695

(Excludes Depreciation)

Notes:

(1) "Others" refers to expenditure on Postgraduate Studies, Research Expenses, Research Publications,
External Examinations, Ancillary Activities, Extension Courses, Advanced Accounts, Physical
Education, Farms, etc.

cademic Services" includes Teaching Resources as well.
2) "Academic Services" includes Teaching R Il

elfare Services" includes expenditure incurred on Mahapola & Bursaries too.
3) "Welfare Services" includ penditure i d on Mahapola & B fes t

15.2.1  Recurrent Expenditure on Academic Services
(Rs. Million)

108.694 | 97.438 | 107.090 | 55.605 85.064 5.970 | 36.192 | 14,054 | 510.106

2016

120.660 | 98.651 113.921 | 67.949 | 103.000 | 29.410 | 36.394 | 13.767 | 583.753

2017
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15.3 Capital Expenditure

(Rs. Million)
Lands, Equipments, | Rehabilitation &
Constructi | Furniture, Library Maintenance of | Other Total
Year on Books, Periodicals Capital Capital Capital
& Vehicles Assets Projects (1) | Expenditure
Government Grant
2016 50.000 316.000 45.000 293.068 704.068
2017 10.374 327.009 45.000 7.616 390,000
Note:

(1) "Other Capital Projects" refers to grants for Technology stream, postgraduate research,
knowledge enhancement & institutional development, staff development, etc

15.4 Expenditure

Subject

Provision in 2017
Rs.

Expenditure in 2017
Rs.

Savings / Excess Rs.

Recurrent Except Project

906,366,000.00

964,819,467.00

(58,453,467.00)

Capital Except Project

390,000,000.00

390,000,000.00

Total

1,296,366,000.00

1,354,819,467.00

(58,453,467.00)

16.  Financial Performance Analysis — 2017

16.1 Cost per student (Recurrent expenses)

Faculty No. of Students Cost per Student Rs

Arts and Culture 904 133,474.27
Management and Commerce 1,138 86,687.62
Applied Sciences 592 192,434.21
Islamic Studies and Arabic Languages 1,069 63,563.37
Engineering 470 219,149.65
Technology 158 186,136.97
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16.2 Sources of Income and Expenditure of University Education —

Income
Government
Grant
96.87%
Expenditure

Capital
25.15%

Recurrent
74.85%

\

Capital Expenditure Recurrent Expenditure

Construction
2.66%
Other Capital
Projects
1.95%
Rehabilitation =
&Maintenance Lands,

Welfare

Services
16.17%

of Capital Equipments, Acade..'mic
Assets Furniture, ;g’;‘;ﬁ/s
11.54% Library Books, .29%

Periodicals &

Vehicles
83.85%

2017

Maintenance
Services
6%

Others
2%

General
Administratio
n & Staff
Services

25.79%
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17.  Annual Accounts — 2017

South Eastern University of Sri Lanka

Annual Accounts 2017

CERTIFICATE OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER ON
ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR 2017

The Final Statement of Accounts of the South Eastern University of Sri Lanka
for the Financial Year ended 31st December 2017 has been prepared in the
form and manner specified by the University Grants Commission in terms of
section 106 and 107 of the University Act No. 16 of 1978 and in terms of the
Finance Act No. 38 of 1971 and has been rendered to the Auditor General
together with the notes and schedules referred to in the Income and
Expenditure Accounts and the Balance sheet.

Financial rules and procedures prescribed by the University Grants
Commission have been complied with and the systems of control have been
maintained as far as practicable to ensure propriety of transactions and

efficiency in expenditure.

To the best of my knowledge, the statement in respect of the year 2017 has
been prepared satisfactorily and exhibits a true and fair view of the financial

position of the University.

O NO—

Prof.M.M.M. Najim
Vice Chancellor
(Accounting Officer)
28.022018
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South Fastern Universaty of Sn Lanka

Statement of Financial Position

As at 315t December Note 2007 2016
P P A S ol Rs - NS
ASSETS
Non Current Assets .
Property, Plant an Equipment o 4981651682 3412587470
6,482,389,437 4.516,098,741
Net Non current Assets 4,981,651,682 3,412,587 470
Work in Progress 02 129,560,293 78,425,599
!nvmmem: o~
Financial Assets 03 2,472,942 2,472,942
Total Non Current Assets 5,113,684,918 3,493,486,011
Current Assets
Inventories / Stocks 04 12,174,638 8,844 300
Accounts Receivables 05 112,756,265 123,717,790
Cash and Cash Equivalents 06 41,805,463 360,475,690
Total Current Assets 166,736,366 493,037,780
Total Assets 5,280,421,283 3,986,523,791
FUNDS & LIABILITIES
A R s R oy, 3
Restricted Fund =S o7 1,680,976 254008
Capital Grant T s 6.361423,788 4,685,173,932
Reserves . ey
Accumalated Fund 09 (1,710,911,738) (1,268,910,937)
Revaluation Reserves 450,200,000 423,700,000
Non Current Liabilities -
Provision for Gratuity 10 115,201,365 81,708 509
Curvent Lisbilities e
Accounts Payables 11 51,848,805 50,163,799
Accrued Expenses 10,978,089 12,148,472
Total Funds & Liabilities 5,280,421,283 3,986,523,791

The accounting policies and notes on pages 06 to 14 form an integral part of these financial
Statements. These financial statements have been prepared and presented in compliances
with Sri lanaka Public Sector Accounting Standards (SLPSAS) issued by the Institute of
Charted Accountants of Sri lanka and in terms of Sections 106 (i) and 107 (ii) (b) of the
Universities Act No:16 of 1978 and section 13 (6) of the Finance Act No: 38 of 1971.
Signed for and on behalf of the Council.

A= %;;f,’ ~ Q‘“—’_::“___—
o et

Vice Chancellor Bursar
1, M
Prot' s -
Souh Eastauon &/ M.I. FASIL-UR-RAHMAN
O BURSAR
SOUTH EASTERN UNIVERSITY OF SRI LANKA

oLuvIL
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South Fastern University of Sn Lanka

Statement of Financial Performance

i e o ms_-_-
As at 11" Devember Note g
R Rs ~ BRs

Income
.R«urnnlcnnl 906,366,000 829,000,000
Mahapola & Bursary Grant 160,349,500 170,973,800
Other Income 12 w0ssM 16268962
1,113,773,084 1,016,242,762
Expenditure e e e e,
Personal Emoluments 717,854 816 615.2?9240
Tovellngand Subsisience ass 2
Swpplies  a0asa20 3631745
Maintenance 29723419 32308875
o T imees e
Other Recurrent Experses 47872 4996833
Depreciation o wmemsTs  MeM1A0
Wrteoft o ames -
Gratulty .|, AT | .
Financial Assistance to Students 160,349,500 170,973,800
1,540,694,060 1,272,044,652
Excess of Income over
E Siture (426,921,016) (255,801,890)
Prior Year Adjustment 15,079,785 2,604,217
Net surplus/(Deficit) for the period (442,000,801) (253,157,673)
Certified Correct

OO %_,.. {‘*\—”7

-~
Vice Chancellor { T
Pref trre e
N M.1. FASIL-UR-RAHMAN
Souh € il Vg WA o8 BURSAR
Cluvd SOUTH EASTERN UNIVERSITY OF SRI LANKA

oLuUvIL



Annual Report 2017 | South Eastern University of Sri Lanka

South Eastern University of Sri Lanka

Cash Flow Statement
For the Year ended 31" December 2017 2 2016
eI e THIETY "R, WA - i
Cash Flows from Operating Activities ’ |
Surplus from Ordinary Activities (442,000,801) (253,157,673)
Non - Cash movements
Depriciation 397,226,484 246,141,803
Provision for Gratuity 33,492,856 6,009.424
)|
| (11,251,461) (1,006,446)
Decrease in Accounts Receivables ‘ 10,961,525 (65,576,488)
Increase in Inventory (3.330,338) 360,010
Increase in Current Liability i 514,623 3,519,837
T 8,145,511 (61,696,641)
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities | (3,135,650) (62,703,087)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities :
Purchase of Plant and Equipment | g9092539) (419,060,863
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities L (1.990,925391) (419,060,863)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Capital Grant 1,676,249,85 704,068,093
Restricted Fund (859,042) (543,832)
Net Cash Flows from w 1,675,390 814 703,524,261
Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (318,670,227) 221,760,312
wwwwmuwauw 360,475,690 138,715378
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period 41805463 360,475,690
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South Eastern University of S Lanka

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

As at 31 st December 2017
i —  Accumolated  Revaluvation ___ T
: Fund Serplus

Balance as at 31 December 2016 _ (126891097) 423700000 (8452109%7)
Changes in Accounting policy : T
S _ (268910937) 423700000 (845210957)
Deficite /Surplus on revaluation properties - 26,500,000 26,500,000
Deficle/Surplus onrevalustion of vesternts . - -
Currency translation differences ; - s
Surplus/ Defici for the period T emoso) - (42000801)

Balance as at 31st December 2017 (1710911,738) 450,200,000  (1,260,711,738)
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South Eastern University of Sri Lanka

Accounting Policies

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT POLICIES
1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

1.1. General Information
South Eastern university of Sri Lanka (SEUSL) is established under the Universities Act
No 16 of 1978, and located in the Eastern Province, Ampara District, Oluvil in Sri Lanka.

1.2. Principal activities and nature of operations
South Eastern University of Sri Lanka is a national university mainly operates on
Government funds and promoting higher education and research in the field of
Engineering, Social Sciences, Applied Sciences, Islamic and Arabic Languages, Commerce
and Management and Technology.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1, Statement of Compliance
The statement of financial Position, statement of financial performance, statement of

changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the accounting policies
and notes have been prepared in compliance with the Sri Lanka Public Sector
Accounting Standards (SLPSAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accounts of Sri
Lanka and the requirements of the Universities Act No 16 of 1978 and subsequence
amendments thereto. The financial Statements comprise the financial statements of the
University as at 31* December 2017,

2.2. Basis of Measurement
The financial statements of SEUSL have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the

historical cost convention unless stated otherwise.

2.3. Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees (SLR), which is the

functional currency and presentation currency and all values are rounded to the nearest
rupees except when otherwise.

2.4. Comparative Information
The comparative figures have been re-arranged where necessary to conform to the

presentation in the current year.

2.5. Use of Estimates and Judgments
The presentation and preparation of financial statements in conformity with SLPSASs

requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of the accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates and judgmental
discussions.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
tocccounﬁngesﬁmatesmmog\ued in the period in which the estimate is revised if
ﬂ\cmisiondfecumd\ltpeﬁodorlnﬁ\cpedodof!hemisionlndlumrepeﬁod,“
the revision affects both current and future periods.
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South Lastern University of Sri Lanka

Accounting Policies
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
31. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(a) Recognition and Measurement

Properties, plant & equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of
property, plant & equipment is the cost of purchase or construction together with any
incidental expenses thereon.

(b) Cost

The cost of property, plant & equipment comprise its purchase or construction cost and any
directly contributable cost of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.

(¢) Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to the income statement on the straight line basis at the following
rates per annum in order to write off the cost of such assets over their estimated useful lives.
Depndaﬂonbpmvidedmpcor&hsbon&emdpmdnnd/ca&uded/dwd

during the year.

Buildings 5%
Fumiture & Fittings 10%
Lab & Teaching Equipments 20%
Motor Vehicles 20%
Water & Electricity Supply 10%
Library books & Periodicals 20%
Cloaks 20%
Machinery 20%
Others 20%

Land
Lands consist of around 224 acres at various Jocations as follows.

Oluvil 17898 acres
Samanthurai 672 acres
Malwatta 3525 acres
Weeramunai 3.00 acres
Mountlavinia APC 1764  perch

Land is valued at fair value in year 2011, as determined by the Valuation Department, Uva
Provincial Office. Meanwhile, Mountlavinia APC land is valued in 2016.

(d)Revaluation of the Property, Plant, &Equipments
The lands of the university have been revalued and recognized to the accounts with effect

from 31* December 2011.
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South Eastern University of Sri Lanka

Accounting Policies
32 TAX

(a) Income Tax

Ull\::ersity is not liable to pay income tax on its’ net income according to the prevailing tax
rules.

(b) Payee Tax

University currently remits payee tax after deducting from monthly salaries of the liable
employees for income tax which is not a part of the University expenditure. Hence, Payee tax
is not disclosed in the accounts of the University.

3.3. INVENTORIES

Inventories of the University have been physically verified and valued at cost as at 31*
December 2017, The cost incurred in bringing inventories to its percent location, are
accounted on FIFO basis.

34. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade and other receivables are stated at the amount they are estimated as per SLPSAS 01
that is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date. No provision has been
made for bad and doubtful receivables.

3.5. INVESTMENTS IN FIXED DEPOSITS
Investments in Fixed Deposits are stated at cost.
3.6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

mwmwdstmhmmxdwmmwmm
mmlmwwhmawm“vh\gmmwhcahhm

3.7. LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS
Anhmwuaultﬁnhhmﬂwdm“wudedhﬂbwmbmd

ndeqm&pmvbiaﬂmmadefmlhbmﬁawhkhmb\ownbamhnhmmto‘

cannot be determined accurately.
%Mpy&mdm«m”ymdhmmanmuu&da

Provision as made in accordance with gratuity Act No 12 of 1983. The Gratuity
s‘:;ﬁ:my funded nor actually valued. The gratuity fund Account is shown

liability . ke
m—CmmuthllﬁshtheSmememolﬁmndalpodmhndon month

mtghum&mwyﬂrdmmmhmmwymo‘

mke,comma\dmhomhﬂrnywofmke.
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South Eastern University of Sri Lanka

Accounting Policies

3.9. UNIVERSITY FROVIDENT AND EMPLOYEES’ TRUST FUND

Employees of the University are eligible for University Provident Fund (UPF) contributions
and Employees’ Trust Fund (ETF) contribution in line with respective status and regulations.
The University contributes the defined percentages (15%) and (3%) of gross emoluments of
employees to an approved employees’ provident fund and to the employees trust fund
respectively, which are operated extremely.

3.10. ACCOUNTING FOR GRANT
Gtmbunlmmnwummtylonxpawm"edmmpﬁudamhthe
Income Statement in the same period in which the expenses are recognized. Grants that
compensate the University for the Cost of as asset are recognized in the Income Statement on
a systematic basis over the useful life time of the related asset.

3.11. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
All material commitments and contingent liabilities are considered and where necessary
adjustments or disclosures are made in the financial statements.

3.12. DISCLOSE OF ACCOUNTING INFORMATION OF THE UNIT

Center for External Degrees and Professional Learning (CEDPL)

Accounts of Center for &mmwmmm.mmd
separately from the University accounts and disclosed with the University accounts.

Postgraduate Unit (MBA MA)
Accounts of Postgraduate Unit (MBAMA) have been prepared separately from the
University accounts.

3.13. INCOME STATEMENT

3.13.1. REVENUE RECOGNITION
MmbwﬂdwhmmnhMMhm&hﬁnﬁavab

the university and that it can be reliably measured.

(a) Enrolment fees from students are recognized as revenue on receipt.

(b) Fees on examinations, seminars, courses and other educational and activities are
Wummmﬂcﬁmdmm.

(<) Thefeaoafepkvyh;counsmogindbhhmsuwbmdonh
shgedmphﬂmdud\msahywa\d.w&amdw
which are related to future periods are shown in the Balance Sheet as income

received in advance under the Reserve & Restricted funds.

(d) Interest income is recognized on accrual basis.

() Revenue from grant is recognized when control of the contribution or right to
receive the contribution is confirmed.

U] Mnhﬁeduﬁviﬁammﬂndmm
® oanmbmoyindmmdbuh
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Accounting Policies

3.13.2. EXPENDITURE RECOGNITION

Expenses are recognized in the income statement on the basis of direct association bct.wcm
cost incurred and the earning of specific items of the income. All expenditures incurred in the
running of the university and maintaining the capital assets have been charged to revenue in
arriving at the surplus/ deficit for the year. Expenses on examinations, seminars, courses, and
other educational activities are recognized in the income statement on completion of such
activity.

3.14. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The materiality of events occurring after the Balance Sheet date has been considered and
appropriate adjustments, wherever necessary, have been made in the accounts.
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Notes to the Accounts

For the Year ended 3% Decomber Shedule 256
e —_— R s _haea.
Note 02 - Work in Progress
Kuwaith Fnendship Monument 2.100,000.00 2,100,000.00
Hostel & Stalf Quarters - FASc : 76,325,598 87
3 Store building for Department of Technology 122,521 006 47 -
Sea sade fence at Faculty of Technology 7343469
Hostel Sarasavi Madura 5 369,069 83 -
Hydrology lab at FOEn 166,504 00 -
Hostel Sarasavi Madura 6 06,949 89
Septic tank &pit(100 room Phase I1T) 1,561.011.49 -
Generator house 2 at Block *A* 77680919 -
Road to FIA Cultural Centre 72459533 -
129,560,293.19 78.425,598.87
Note 03 - Financial Assets
Fived Deposits o 247294219 247294219
247294219 247294219
Note 04 - Inventories/Stocks
Stores Advance Account - Supplies am 8,698,221 61 571664023
Stores Advance Accounts - Maintenance am 347641654 3,127 660.06
12,174.638.15 8,844,300.29
Note 05 - Accounts Receivable
Security Deposits 50 4,653,928.96 394191840
Distress Loan 502 3064391008 29,996,041 .67
Staff Loan 503 $9.25000 157,590.00
Vehicle Loan S 510,00000 618,000.00
Loan 505 885,500.00 1,078,000.00
Motor Cycle Loan 506 245,570.68 505,062 00
Festival Advance 507 828,750.00 806,750.00
Salary Advance 508 4145830 2009830
Special Advance 509 2.500.00 250000
Flood Relief Advance 510 2934750 61,035.00
Bond Violation s1n 14,216,334 81 10,667 83802
Mahapola Scholarship Advance 512 5,000.00 5,000 00
Miscellaneous Advance 513 523,593.60 96584000
Postal Franking Machine Advance 3642950 31,998 50
Supplies/Purchasing Advance 514 75.000.00 793,086.00
Research Advance 515 24,000.00 196.745.00
Advance For Road 2,951 815.00 25591,103.02
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South Eastern Ungverssty of Sei Lanka

Notes to the Accounts

For the Year ended 3™ Devember Shedule 2017 2016
Ep—y Rs Rs
Note 05 - Accounts Receivable Cont ... =
Advances For Electnaity . 10
O e For Water Sty 12,176,798
o e ) . 2,783,597 .08
Advance dings 9,600,516.93 22786425
Library Books Advance 516 2352500 S
Salary Receivable 517 .
i 5252.735.61
Pastal aoeiva §1,148.00 73,869.00
Dues to SEUSL 518 4173935432 10325213.11
Recervable from HETC
182,716.02 182.716.02
Dues from MBA 113,840 56 509,126 48
11275626487 | 123,717,789.95
Note 06 - Cash & Cash Equivalents
Peoples Bank - 228 1001 7000 1696 10823 440.76 12,176,049.78
Peoples Bank - 228 1001 7000 1700 16,037,079.00 202,666,955.30
Peoples Bank - 228 1001 9000 1704 1,581,209.45 39,702,860.30
Peoples Bank - 228 1001 0000 1708 306,272.55 388,167.55
Peoples Bank - 228 1001 5000 1715 1117731332 1.919.404.16
Peoples Bank - 064 1001 7000 0025 1,066,284 25 91848135
Peoples Bank - 004 1001 5021 0926 8137544 597,558 83
Peoples Bank - 064 1001 6000 0950 73248802 2,106,212.68
41,805,462.79 360,475,689.95
Note 07 - Restricted Funds
Memorial Price Funds 701 148,000.00 148,000.00
Short ICIT Course 43445400 43445400
Scholership for Foreign Students 52,500.00 120,000.00
UNDP Grant 16507750 747,939.50
Asia Foundation Research Grant 30,944 00 1,089,624.00
[Centre for Gender Equity 850,000.00 -
1,680,975.50 2,540,017.50 |
Note 08 - Capital Grant
Capital Grant Spent 801 339539870057 | 2692.978476.25
Capital Contribution - MRR 802 11904648493 103,046,484 93
Capital Grant Spent - IRQUE 803 117,123,396.96 117,123,396 9%
Capital Contribution - Kuwaith fund 8.04 1711,601,037.10 | 1,336,000,000.00
Capital Contribution - MOHE 8.05 887,104,648:30 ”
Capital Grant-Unspent 5,461,780.05 314,582,004 37
Diasatin 806 125,687,739.63 121,443.569.49
6,361423,787.54 |  4,685,173,932.00
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Notes to the Accounts

— ————————————————

Fox the Year endedd 31* December T;m""] 2017 l 006
- — Rs i Rs 4
Note 09 - Reserves l
Accumulated Fund {
. (1,268910937 26)  (1,015,753,264.31)
Net surphus/ Deficit for the period (442,00080097)] (253,157,672 95)
Aty e o o ——
(1,710,911,738.23)  (1,268,910,937.26)
Revaluation Reserves 09.01 45020000000 | 423,700,00000
450,200,000.00 423,700,000.00
Note 10 - Gratuity
Provision for Gratuity 1001 115,201,364 50 81,708,508 58
115,201,364.50 81,708,508.58
Note 11 - Accounts Payables
Science Lab Deposits 1.0 1,788.900.00 2,793,400.00
Library Deposits 11.02 393,900.00 611,900.00
Hostel Deposits 11.03 2,287,700.00 2,582,200.00
Refundable Deposit - Contractors 11.04 669,000.00 280,000,00
Refundable Deposit - Suppliers 11.05 460,000 00 505,000.00
Retention Money - Contractors 11.06 15,938,659 88 12527 87671
Retention Money - Supplier 1.07 1681344546 18487,76555
Dues from SEUSL 11.08 13497,199.39 12,288,984.15
Flood Relief Grant - UGC - 86,672.50
51,548,804.73 50,163,798.91
Note 12 - Other Income
Registration Fees 4,022.190.00 1,441,005.00
Interest 1,636,31063 1A452,238.14
Rent 2,398,100.00 2,849,815.00
Sales 1,958,523.77 633,956.70
Fines 2,857,579.06 246,758.34
Miscellaneous Income 3401039559 9,507,818.73
47,057,544.05 16,268,961.91
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Report of the Auditor General

 H5» SodHn MMOEIEE

Bapfl SHMBHTUIR] DIEVIAIEVBLD
NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

"",:‘-: } ENP/AWB/SEUSUOUU%? E }

The Vice-Chancellor,
South Eastern University of Sri Lanka

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the South Eastern University
of Sri Lanka for the year ended 31 December 2017 in terms of Section 108(1) of the
Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978.

The audit of financial statements of the South Eastern University of Sri Lanka (“the University™)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 comprising the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017 and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets and
smemauofmshﬂo\\sfonbeyearmenmdcdandammatyofsigniﬁcamaccmmingpolicies
andowexplamwryinfomﬁonwuwﬁedmundcrmydimioninp\nmmeofptovisionsin
Article 154(1) of the Constitution of the Democratic Sccialist Republic of Sri Lanka read in
conjunction with Section 107(5) of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978. My comments and
observations which I consider should be published with the Annual Report of the University in
terms of Section 108 (1) of the Universities Act appear in this report.

12  Management’s Responsibilities for tae Financial Starements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presemation of these financial
statements in accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards and for such
hnanalconmlasdummgmmddnmimsismymmb!elhepnpuﬂionof
financial statements that are free from material misstazements, whether due to fraud or error.

1.3  Auditor’s Responsibility
My respoasibility is to express an opinion on these financiai statements based on my audit. |
conducted my audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards consistent with
Internationz! Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions (ISSAI 1000-1310). Those Auditing
Standards require that | comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain rezsonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatements.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due 1o fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the University's preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
University's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
Section 111 of the Universities Act, No 16 of 1978 gives discretionary powers (o the
Auditor General to determine the scope and extent of the audit.

1 believe that the audit evidence 1 have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basic for my audit opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion
Myopitﬁonisqudiﬁedbasedmdtmmmdsm‘bcdinpungnphl!omxisupon.

Financia! Statements
Qualified Opinion

lnmyopinion.cxccptforthecﬂomofﬂnmucndacﬁbcdinmpnphﬂonhhm
the financial statements given a true and fair view of the financial position of the South
Eastemn University of Sri Lanka as at 31 December 2017 and its financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Sri Lanka Public Sector
Accounting Standards.

Comments on Financial Statements

Consolidated Financial Statements

The Centre for External Degrees and Professional Leaming (CEDPL), Postgraduate Unit of
Faculty of Ants and Culture and Postgraduaie Unit of Faculty of Management and
Commerce of the University had camed a net income of Rs.10,692,846 by conducting
cxlumldegncmdmmadewpmgnmmadmingdnywmdunvicwmdmed
total assets of Rs. 125,004,717 as at the end the year under review. However, the
mucﬁomofﬂmUniuMnubeenimpumdwithﬂnfmialmmofﬂn
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University. Hence, the accumulated fund and total assets of the University as at the end of
the year under review had been understated by Rs.125,004,717,

Compliance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards (SLPSAS)

The following non-compliances were observed.

(8) Outof 16 legal cases initiated against the University by outsiders since year 2005, four
cases were pending in the Courts and University Services Appeal Board as at 08
August 2018, However, the proper disclosures thereon had not been made in the
financial statements as per paragraph 129(d) (i) of SLPSAS 01.

(b) The fully depreciated assets costing Rs. 101,385,503 procured during the previous
years are being continuously used by the University without taking action to reassess
the useful economical lifetime of such assets and accounted accordingly. Further, the
estimated error thereon had not been revisea in terms of SLPSAS 03,

Accounting Deficiercies
The following accounting deficiencies were observed.

(a) Action had not been taken to account the amortization over the useful life of the assets
acquired by utilizing Government capital grants even though, the assets acquired by
utilizing those grants had been depreciated 'ip to the amount of Rs. ,500.74 million as
at the end of the year under review.

(b) Depreciation for the years from 2012 to 2016 had not been provided for the furniture
and equipment valued at Rs.65,568,093 which reccived from the Higher Education for
the Twenty First Century (HETC) Project. As a result, the net assets and the
accuniulated fund as at 31 December 2017 had been overstated by Rs. 22,421,768,

(¢) Capital works carried out and completed by the HETC Project on behalf of the
University to the value of Rs, 4,067,868 in the year 2016 had not been brought to the
accounts even up to 31 December 2017,

(d) One hundred and thirty one stock items to the value of Rs. 1,430,552 as at the end of
the vear under review had been treated s recervent expenditure instead of being

shown under current assets,
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2.2.4 Accounts Rectivable

NAOSL

mwwmm.mmmozmmmm”
ndunkmffwbohduuwdtbdrpomndamofhlnm“mmtbkﬁmm
Lmndnh‘huyAmiMdmlothehucbofmﬁrﬁtdgnmdyM
mmm.mmmm»nsmmmm
Further, the impairment on those balances had not been made.

225 Non - compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations

Th:fonowingmofmwnphmmobmvedinm&

Reference to Laws, Rules and
Regulations

(a) Section 8J(1), 8K(2) of the Urban
Development Authority Act. No.
41 of 1978 as amended by Act,
No. 4 of 1982.

(b) Section 16:5:3 of the Chapter VI of
the Establishment Code of the
University Grants Commission and
the Higher Educational Institutions
as amesded by Circular No. 720 of
17 October 1997.

(c) Circulss Leaters of the University

(i) No. 04/2013 dated 10 April
2015

Non - compliance

Permits and Certificate of Conformity for 21
hﬁldinssoustnmdindnmhsofu:
University had not been obtained.

Covuingupdmiaofnvmpostshouldh
limited to » period of 03 months. However, an
Instructor in Physical Education had been
appointed (o attend (he duties of Director/
Physical Education since 01 July 2016 and the
allowance equivalent to 10 per cent of basic salary
of Director / Physical Education is being paid up
to the date of this report.

The Annual Boards of Survey for the year under
review shou!d be conducted and the report thereon
shouid have been furnished 1o the Auditor General
on or before 17 IMarch 2018. However, such
report had not been furnished to audit even up to
08 August 2018.

OO DD DRAING
e roNAL AUDIT OPRICE



Annual Report 2017 | South Eastern University of Sri Lanka

Sl samantum Mmgoamchd
NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE
NAOSL

(i) No. 1072017 dated 10 July All staff should be entered their amivals and
2017 departures in the finger print scanner. However,
the academic staff had refused to enter their
auiv;lsanddepmuuhtheﬁngermnd
:smhthucmnomisfaclotymolqmin

that connection.
(iii) No. 03/1996 dated 06 According to the newspaper advertisement
February 1996 published on 11 June 2017 and 05 July 2017 for

the recruitment of Bursar and Director/ Physical
Education, the age limit for the applicants had
been delcrained as 45 years contrary to the
ptwisionsiud:eCixwhr.AsamﬂLthe
oppommityfo:muitingeompuzmwmpl
pasonsfmmcabovepombdbeenlosltolbc

University.
(d) Public Finance Circular Advances totaling Rs. 4,064,580 had been granted
No.03/2015 dated 14 July 2015 to 13 Officers in 22 instances exceeding the
maximum fmit of the ad-hoc advance of

Rs.100,C00.

Whatever amount requested by the staff as
advance had been granted by the University
withoat  ascertaining  the nature  and
rezsonab'sress of the smount requested. As a
result, rore than SO per cent of the advances
aggregatng Rs.479,084 paid in 16 instances had
been setiled by cash. This practice will provide
room for misappropriating the public funds.

(e) Treasury Circular No. IA12002/02 A Roegister of Fixed Assets had not been
dated 28 November 2002. mainained for computers and computer

acces Sones.
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Financial Review

Financial Results
Amﬁngwlbﬁmddwmmmofﬂtwmtymm
ywmdunviewhadmhedinawdcﬁdtofk“lﬂ&&lsmedumhme
corresponding net deficit of Rs. 233,157,673 for the preceding year, thus showing a
deterioration of Rs. l&“&ﬂtinlheﬁnmxiahmhsfwﬂnywmdumﬁcw.lmm
of depreciastion and personal emoluments by Rs. 133,836,772 and Rs. 10255276
mwﬁvdymthemhmmhmdfmlhism

deficit had continuously increased from Rs. 71,860,462 in the year 2013 to Rs.442,000,801
in the yea- 2017. Hmvu.aﬁcrmkinginwaecmmtbepamllmolmmdthe
depreciation aggregaiing Rs.1,097.853391, the value 2ddition of ths University for the year

“under revisw was Rs. 655,852,590 and it was Rs.508.283,670 in the previous year, thus

s!nwinganimptmtmmtofRs.47.563.920in:l'ru!madditionlsconwedwiththe
previous year.

Opa'aﬁ;:gkaiew

Performaiice

Achievement of Targets
Tl:fo(bwhgohsavaﬁonsuemtbmdnmhmmcuofmgdssaominthew
Plan prepased for the period of 2014 - 2018.

(a) ﬂnUni\usityhadnmmpamdthcpmgrsswhhmgmdeKcyPerformm
Indicators (KPI) out of 43 KPIs and the periodical review had not been carried out by
the Uaiversity during the year under review.

(b) Accardingwdtpmmwbminedwmdtfcnbcywmdcrmiew.dwUnimﬁty
had-:nlyabletowhicveuomd50:«@to€m:expeaedtxge|swimreprdw31
KPIis set out in the Strategic Plan.

(€) Aceouding 1o the webometric ranking, the University had able to obtain only 8.510*
plac: in the year 2017 even though it was targeted to achieve the place below the rank
of 5900 as at the end of the year 2017. Furtner. the University has been ranked at
8.437° place in the previous yea: and thus shwiug that te sanking of the University
lndgonedownascompamdwid\mepnviomyw.
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4.1.2  Degree Courses
The number of students enrolled for each Faculty during the last three years is shown

below.
Faculties Num nts Eny
2017 2016 2015
Applied Science (FAS) 245 228 329
Arts and Culture (FAC) 326 306 239
Management and Commerce (FMC) 362 334 369
Islamic and Arabic Language (FIA) 435 480 362
Engineering (FE) 88 092 101
Faculty of Technology (FOT) 10 _ - B
Total 1606 1440 1,400

The following observations are made in this connection,

(@) Enro!ment of students to the FAC and FIA during the year under review as compared
with the year 2015 had increased by 36 per cent and 20 pe- cent respectively whereas,
enrolment of students to the FAS. FMC an¢ FE during the year under review as
compared with the year 2015 had decreased by 25 per cent, 2 per cent and 13 per cent
respectively. The Faculty of Technology had newly established during the year under

review

(b) Enrciment of Students for all Faculties during :hic year under review had increased by
15 par cent as compared with the year 2015,
42  Operatin? Inefficiencies
The following observations are made.
(a) Conducting Lectures at the Department of Islamic Studies

The following observations were made.

(i) At the audit test check carried out with regard to 14 subjects of Semester II of
Academic Year 2015/2016 at the Department of Islamic Studies, it was revealed
that, no lecture had been conducted by the Lecturers-in-charge for 7 subjects and
lecture hours ranging from 3 hours to 16 hours had been completed by the
Lecturers-in-charge for remained 7 Subjects. Hence, most of lectures had been



(b)

(¢c)

(d)
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conducted by Temporary Assistant Lecturers. It was further observed that 112
lecture hours had not been conducted by the Lecturers with regard to above 14
subjects.

(i) Temporary Assistant Lecturers had been provided the letters of appointment
with the condition of undertaking at least 20 hours of teaching / practical per
week, However, the University had not introduced a proper mechanism to prove
whether those Lecturers had undertaken 20 hours of teaching / practical per
week.

Commencement of External Degree Programme

The Centre for External Degree and Professiona! Learning (CEDPL) of the University
had collected a sum of Rs. 41,686,060 from 1.042 students at a rate of Rs.40,000 per
student for conducting the first year external degree programme in the year 2017. The

following observations were made in this regand,

(i) The degree programme had not been commenced even up to 08 August 2018, As
a result, Uae students were bedly affected Juz to delay in commencement of the

degree programme.

(i) The approval of the Finance Commitiee and Council of the University for the
sollection of fee from the students had not baen obtained in terms of University

Grents Commission Circular No. 0172016 dated 01 January 2016.

Relewsing Results of the Examinations of Exieunl Degree Programmes

The sesults of the examinations conducted Juring the year under review for the
Semester 11 of first, second and third years external degree programmes of BA, BBA
and B.Com had been released after a delay o' 5 1o 11 months. In the meantime, the
resulis of the examination conductad in November 2016 for the Semester | of first year
extemal degree programme of BA had not been released for over 20 months. As a

result, the degree programme had delayed over one and half years.

Establishment of Laboratory for the Faculty of Applied Sciences
The constructicn works of a Laboratory Bleck fcr the Faculty of Applied Science had
been sommenced on 31 October 2011 and compizted on 15 February 2014 with the

cost of Rs.84.156,3935. Further. a sum of Fs, 1856467 had been spent for the

Gl Aawaarin mpwend
NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE
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chcuicalﬁningsmhachi!ingFmsandBulbsinwaOl&Hmm.d\c
LabmﬁoryBloekhadmlbemuﬁlizedfordxinwﬁedpumsecmupb 10 July
20!8andallowedmbeidlcform2ymdnewtlxddaysinuwpmcmauof
myhbumoryequipman.AsamﬂuhcnudamhadbemﬁceddiIEaﬂﬁﬁin
ma:mwmmmm»mmwwm
equipment.

(¢) Working Capital Management
ﬂmCEDPLoilheUnivusityhadk:p(mdunbkmomﬂofmoneyintheBmk
Cmmnlhcendofmhmmnhofﬂwywmﬂamkwmmﬁomks.l
nﬁllionwks.ﬂmﬂlimwiﬂmminveningthcmfwdinpmpainvemnﬂns
SOUICES, llwﬁnﬂuobwveddmﬂwUnim&iycmddhavcbeenumedanimme
-ppraxiumdyksl.ow,mouuﬁsmmywasinvcsacdinaﬁxeddcposit

Transactions of Contentious Nature

A lecture =ppeinted on 01 October 2010 to the Depe-tment of Accountancy and Finance of
the University hes taken medical leave since 27 Juze 2016 for 3 month periods due to his
serious iliness and he was reported 10 the duty on 28 September 2016 and the University
had allows=d to conduct lecture since that date withow obtaining a medical fitness report
ﬁunamgnizcdundialotfm.AlﬂwughhcwnsnMcademylecunﬁmem
date, salariss amounting to Rs.3,037 050 hed been paid to him for 21 months.

Idle and Under-utilized Assets
The following observations are made.

(2) Five iingerprint machines purchased ou 10 December 2014 at a total cost of
Rs.308,000 for the use of studenis and lecturers of the Faculty of Islamic Studies and
A:::iclmguag&hadmxbeenmdfmdtimmdedp\mmwtooam
2018.

(b) Hmﬂmdmdfmtymandﬂmbespmcmseddminglhepcdodof20081020|7m
a cost of Rs.1.932,646 had been kept idle in the store without being utilized for the
irtended purpose due to varidus issues such as unnecessary purchasing. mismatched
size with the requirements eic.
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(€) The road mark paints purchased at a cost of Rs. 148,227 in year 2016 had been lying
idle in the store for over 22 months due to not considering the items already included
in the BOQ of the contract awarded for the road works.

Management Weaknesses

One hundred and thirty one items worth Rs. Rs. 1,430,552 and over 100 items which value
MMMNMWMMM&WSMMMZMNM
wtilizing for the intended purposes. Furiher, those items aad not been included in the register
due 10 non-maintenance of stock regisier in the store. Hence, the possibility for misplace
these items could not be ruled-out in audit.

Human Resources Management
The following observations are made.

(a) Hundred and forty two vacancies out of 382 appreved cadre for Academic and library
staff were existed as at the end of the year under review without being take proper
action.

(b) mvmyfudnmolmmww&mhdmbmﬁudmn
years.

Achievem ot of Sustainable Development Goals (S1M5)

Every public institution should act in compliance with the Unit=d Nations Sustainable

er«ummmmmwummmmw

the Sri Lanka Sustainable Development Act, No. 19 of 2017. The following obscrvations
are made in this regard.

(a) Due 1o failure of the University is being aware of the said Agenda for the year 2030,
action had not been tzken 1o ide="ify the sustznusble development goals and targets
relat 53 to the o-tivities thezeof, along with ‘he milstones in respect of achieving those
mr.mdummmm&exﬁwmdsﬂm

(b) Even though the existence of accurate statistical data is compulsory for evaluating the
performance of a certain activity, it was observed that the University had not taken
actior: 1o maintain an accurate co''ection of data in view of eva'uating the achicvement
of su-ainable development goals. I was furer o* szrved that the reasons such as, lack
of no--availabitity of trained staf® o Sehalf uf the FDG had avributed thereto.
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Accountzbility and Good Governance

Procurement and Contract Process

Procurements Plan

Although 2 Procurement Plan had been prepared for the year under review, an adequate
attention had not been paid on the time schedule in the procurement plan. As a result, an
amount agaregating Rs.130,457,247 or 17 per cent of total capital expenditure had been
spent for trocurement of capital expenditure on 28 December 2017.

Procurement of Multimedia Projectors

Ten ultra-short throw multimedia projectors with installations of cable and brackets at a cost
of Rs. 2,737,500 and 28 multimedia projectors with brackets to the cost of Rs.1,946,000 had
been procered during the year 2017. The following observations are made in this regard.

(a)

(®)

(c)

(d)

The smount pa‘d for procurement of 28 multir«ia projectors had been included the
cost for supply, installations and commissioning of multimedia projectors with
brackets. However, the supplier »ad not completed the installation and commissioning
even up to 12 July 2018.

Six multimedia projectors including an Ultra Shert Throw had not been utilized for
the intended purpose and 10 multimedia projectors had been vsed without installed by
Wal! Mount Brackets.

The payment of Rs.287,500 had been recommsncad by TEC for installations of Wall
Mounting Brackets and Cables and other accessories even though the extended cables
connzction from the Projector to PC Desk relating to the HDMI, USB, Audio in,
Audis out, VCA out, RJ 45, RS 232, Mi: in and USB had not been done by the
suppiier even up to 18 July 2018.

The capacity of lecture hall, outside brightness, distance between screen and
prejectors were rot considzred wien prepaiing the specifications for this purpose and
the recommendation of relevent specialist ca such specifications was also not
obtzzaed. Further, the Projectors had been used without proper awareness with regard
to k.= special features.

o Do bomes

M’ m‘“ w‘
NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE
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Construction of Building Complex for Faculty of Management and Commerce

The University had awarded contract to construct a Building Complex to the Faculty of
Management and Commerce in 2010 at a contract value of Rs.112 million. The following
observations are made in this regard,

(8) According to the contract agreement, the construction works with extended should
have been completed on or before 28 February 2014, Although the construction works
were completed on 20 April 2014 the liquidated damages amounting to Rs. 2,977,412
had not been recovered from the contractor as per the agreement,

(b) A sum of Rs. 985,000 had been paid to the contractor for non- adjustable element for
preliminary items contrary 1o the clause 13.7 of condition of the contract agreement,

(¢) According to tie contract agreement, the Universiiy shoula pay the consultant fee at a
rate of 3.25 per cent on the totai contract price excluding Value Added Tax (VAT).
However, the University had culeulated this fee by using two different rates. As a
resu. 1, a sum of Rs.413,723 had been over paid w we Consaltant,

Construction of Building Complex for Main Library

The University had paid a sum of Rs. 1,510,837 to the contractor for non- adjustable
element {:: preliminary items in the constructicn of Euilding Complex for Main Library
contrary 1o the clause 13.7 of conditon of the contrace agreemert, Further, the consultant
fee shoulu be paid ot a rate of 525 or cent ou the wial contract price excluding Value
Added Tay (VAT), However, the Un. /cesity hae! cuicuiated this 2o by using two different
rates. As a result, a sum of Rs. 245,415 had been over paid to the Consultant,

Unresolved Matters Pointed ont in Peavious Andii Reports

The Univessity hed sustained a loss of Rs. 1.3 wnaiien due o the negligence of the
responsibi. officers /ho had delsyed for niore then six sears 10 ke action for recoveries of
the bond alue for breaching agreement by o leciurer. Howeve:, ao action had been taken
against such officers even up 1o 08 August 2018,

Systems £ ud Controls

Deficiencies observed in systems and controls during the course of audit were brought to
the notice of the Vice Chancellor of the University from time to time. Special attention is
needed in respect of the following areas of systems and rontrols.

HBD DOHOD MOEHED

NATIONAL AUDIT 8nlcl
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Areas of System and Control Observatioas
(i) Fixed Assets Management Failure to update the Register of Fixed
Assets.

(i) Management of Self Financing  Failure to use surplus money properly and
Courses. existence of accounting deficiencies.

(iii) Conol over Asreementsand  Not paying adeouate attention to expedite the

Bonds recoveries.
(iv) Mainienance of Student Due attention is needed in signing the
Attepdance Sheet Attendance Shest by the lecturers and HOD
and daily submission of them.
(v) Personnel Administration Incurring a ver' large cost for the service of
Visiting Lecturers due to failure in filling the
vacancies of the academic staff.

(vi) Stocks Control in Maintenance  Un-availability of proper recording and
Store reporting syster in the store

AFOD

H.M. Gamini Wijesinghe
Auditor Generza!
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Observations to the Report of the Auditor General

Auditor General

Auditor General’s Department

Colombo.

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the South Eastern

University of Sri Lanka for the year ended 31 December 2017 in terms of Section

108(1) of the Universities Act, No. 16 of 1978.

This has reference to your report dated 23 October 2018. We give below our

observations for the quires raised in the reports.

2.2.
2.2.1

2.2.2

Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

Comments on Financial Statements

Consolidated Financial Statements

The accounts of the Center for External Degrees and Professional
Learning (CEDPL), Postgraduate Unit of the Faculty of Arts and culture
and the Postgraduate Unit of Faculty of Management and Commerce
had been prepared separately from the University accounts. However,
action will be taken to incorporate the accounts of CEDPL and
Postgraduate Unit of Faculty of Management and Commerce in the

Financial Statements of the University from 2018 onward.

Compliance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards (SLPSAS)

(@) As stated by the Auditors we have identified few cases filed against
and by the University. Action will be taken to disclose the
contingent liabilities arising from these cases in the Financial

Statements for the year 2018.




Annual Report 2017 | South Eastern University of Sri Lanka

(b) Action will be taken to re-value the furniture and equipment of
which the useful economic life time had already lapsed and noted

for future compliance.

2.2.3 Accounting Deficiencies

(@ Action will be taken to amortize the Government grant on a
systematic basis over the useful life time of the related asset in

terms of the SLPSAS.

(b) These furniture and equipment had been transferred to the
University from HETC project during the year 2016. Therefore,
the above assets were depreciated for the years 2016 and 2017.
However, the Finance Division had taken appropriate action to
obtain the actual date of purchases from the relevant divisions and
to calculate the depreciation for the period for which the

depreciation was not charged in the Financial Statements - 2018.

(c) As already elaborated, the articles received under the HETC funded
project had not been incorporated to the final accounts as the
project unit had not declared the date of purchases of such articles.
However, this is noted for future compliance and will be rectified

in 2018 accounts.

(d) Action will be taken to rectify this matter in the Financial

Statement for the year 2018.

2.2.4 Accounts Receivable
Academic Staff
The loan balance of Mr.Rafeek’s Sum of Rs.96,161 has been recovered
from his UPF balance. Action has been already initiated by sending a
request to the Attorney General Department to take Legal action
against Mr.A.R.M.Imthiyaz to recover the balance amount and other

dues.
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Non-Academic Staff

Mr.Zahir Hussain has accepted to deduct the dues from his UPF by his
letter. The University has forwarded a letter to him requesting his
application form to reclaim the UPF balance and other documents on
08" October 2018. A letter has been forwarded to Attorney General in
order to institute legal action to recover the dues from Mr.Sathish

Kumaran (Mason) on 05t November 2018.

2.2.5 Non - compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations

The following instances of non-compliance were observed in audit.

Reference to Laws, Rules Non - compliance

and Regulations

(a) Section 8J(1), 8K(2) of
the Urban

Noted for future Compliance.

Development
Authority Act, No. 41
of 1978 as amended
by Act, No. 4 of 1982.

(b) Section 16:5:3 of the Physical education division is a very

Chapter VI of the
Establishment Code of
the University Grants
Commission and the
Higher Educational
Institutions as
amended by Circular
No. 720 of 17
October 1997.

important division that deals directly
with students and a responsible person
from the Unit should take the
responsibility of maintaining the affairs
of this unit in order to facilitate sports
activities and to prevent or minimize
student unrests. Ten per cent of the
basic salary of the Director was given
to a Physical Education Instructor for
covering up of the duties of this post.

However, the payment of this had

been already stopped according to the



Annual Report 2017 | South Eastern University of Sri Lanka

(c) Circular Letters of the
University Grants

Commission.

No. 04/2013 dated 10
April 2013

(i) No. 10/2017 dated
10 July 2017

instructions given to the Finance
Division. Further, the University will
take necessary steps to re-advertise to
fill the wvacancy for this post. The
University has sent a letter to the UGC

to clarify the ambiguity in the SOR.

Even though the Boards of Survey
report in respect of Library and Stores
for the year 2017 have already been
finalized, the Boards of Survey report
on General Administration had not
been finalized due to non-functioning
of the administrative building by recent
strikes of staffs and students. However,
action will be taken to submit the
Boards of Survey report within a

month.

As a common practice, the arrival and
departure of academic staff are not
maintained in the public University
system in Sri Lanka. Further, the
University system is facing challenges in
implementing this system to the
academic staffs even though this matter
is continuously raised by the audit

queries.

102
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(i) No. 03/1996
dated 06 February
1996

(d) Public Finance Circular
No0.03/2015 dated 14
July 2015

(e) Treasury Circular No.
1A1/2002/02 dated 28
November 2002.

The age limit does not apply to the
employees in the Government
Departments, State Corporations and
Statutory Bodies. Therefore, the upper
age limit is not applicable to the
administrative posts. Upper age limit
was mentioned in the above
advertisement of the university
mistakenly for both administrative and
non-academic  posts  that  were
advertised in the same advertisement
(upper age limit is applicable to non-
academic posts).

Based on the said advertisement,
recruitments for some non-academic
posts were made. However, in the
future this will be noted and rectified.

These advances were given mainly for
council meetings, study tours, field
visits, annual research sessions &
symposium, etc. Follow up actions
were taken and are settled within the
stipulated time. All the staff advances
already limited to Rs.100,000 in
future.

Finance Division maintains Fixed Assets
Register on a computerized system
along with the details such as date of
purchases, value of the fixed assets,
depreciation charges and net book
value of all the fixed assets including
the details of the computers and

accessories for the preparation of the




Annual Report 2017 | South Eastern University of Sri Lanka

Financial Statements. In addition to
this, steps have been taken to prepare
a separate Fixed Asset Register for
computers and accessories according to

the Circular.

Financial Review

Financial Results
Noted

Operating Review

Performance

4.1.1

(a)

(b)

Achievement of Targets

Our strategic plan 2014-2018 contained certain qualitative
indicators reporting of which requires a survey of perceptions of
stakeholders. We plan to conduct that survey in December which
might possibly provide the data on such KPIs unreported. It is also
stated that the University has taken action to address this problem
from recurring in future by including more realistic and measurable

indicators in the forthcoming strategic plan of 2019 to 2023

Though in certain areas in strategic plan 2014-2018, we observe
that the University had reported less progress as compared to the
target it envisioned to accomplish, it is noteworthy that the
University has made outstanding progress in certain cardinal areas
of Strategic Plan like research and publication. For example, Total
Number of Research articles published (Annual target) in the year
2017 was nearly 300 though our target in the said period was only
180.




(0)
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Importantly, the Average cumulative percentage of growth in
Student Enrolment as compared to based year is 68% though we
envisioned, as per our strategic plan 2014-2018, to grow only by
30% by the year 2017. That is, we accommodated and served a
student population which is 120% greater than our expectation.
This over expansion of student population was accommodated by
the University in national interest as our commitment to support to
the government policy to increase access to higher education. This
over expansion in terms of the students’ growth amidst the
unparallel increase in budget provision and resulting issues might
be attributed to less performance on certain other indicators in the
Strategic Plan 2014-2018. It is yet noted that the University has
conducted a comprehensive consultative and participatory session
with all Managerial Staff and Council Members of the University at
Strategic Planning workshop recently organized by the University
and identified the issues to be addressed and the main areas to be
focused in the Strategic Plan of the University in the next time
horizon 2019 to 2023.

Webometric ranking of Universities generally fluctuates over time.
Though the University’s current ranking is less as compared to what
we expected reach by the end of the reporting period, University
has achieved significant progress as compared to the base line year
of the present Strategic Plan. This fluctuation or decline may also
be attributed to changes in the evaluation criteria and weights
thereof being used by the organization operating this scheme
ranking. However, the University has made some reform to
achieve the desired target on Webometric ranking through
introduction of Learning Management Systems for each faculty,
reformation of e-repository of the University and constitution of
ICT advisory board formed for the purposes inter alia of
continuous monitoring of University website and its impact on

Webometric ranking.
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As the rankings such as Webometrics and QS are providing a

numbered league table and these rankings are not comparable due

to many shortcomings in those. Therefore, University Grants

Commission is in the process of introducing a localized ranking

system.

4.1.2 Degree Courses

(a) and (b) The University has no control over the number of students

enrolled as the UGC sends the list of students to the University

based on Z-score and as the applications received from the

students.

Operating Inefficiencies

(@) Conducting Lectures at the Department of Islamic Studies

(i)

Department of Islamic Studies maintains weekly Student
Attendance sheet on which only one signatory sets the
signature, while three hours of lectures are conducted by
different lecturers in many cases. Most of the time, the
signatory will be the third lecturer who conducts tutorials.
Temporary Assistant Lecturers are conducting lectures under
the supervision and guidance of a Senior Lecturer. Now, this
shortcoming of maintaining attendance records are rectified
and an updated system will be adopted and maintained. Each
lecturer who is conducting the lectures are now instructed to
sign the attendance sheets after their lecture hour(s) is/are
completed. Action is being taken to allocate more lecture
hours to Senior Lecturers. When a temporary assistant lecturer
or a visiting lecturer is allocated lectures due to the shortage
of staff or due to non-availability of expertise in that subject
area, a Senior Lecturer or a Permanent Lecturer is appointed

as the Lecturer-in-Charge for the purpose of coordination of




(b)

(c)
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the lecture schedules and conducting confidential
examination related works. In such instances, the Lecturer-in-

Charge will not engage in any lectures.

(ii) The duty of Temporary Assistant Lecturers is not only to take
lectures / practical classes, but also to conduct tutorial classes,
correct reports, assignments etc. These tasks are also
considered as part of their duties. The University will rectify
the shortcoming in the appointment letter together with

introduction of a proper system of monitoring in future.

Commencement of External Degree Programme

(i) The degree programme was commenced in September 2018.

(i)  Approval of the Finance Committee was obtained on
03.11.2018. And consequently council approval was

obtained.

Releasing Results of the Examinations of External Degree
Programmes

The delayed results of the external degree programme were
released in September 2018.and action has been taken to release
the results within a 3 month period after the examination is done.
A decision is already made by the University not to pay for
marking if the results are released after three months. Further, the
Committee had decided to implement the panel marking in future
in order to expedite the marking of papers and to release the

results within the stipulated 3 months time.

107




(d)

(e)

4.4

Annual Report 2017 | South Eastern University of Sri Lanka

Establishment of Laboratory for the Faculty of Applied Sciences

This building is being used for routine practical classes of earth
science laboratory and as examination hall for the Faculty of
Science. Further, necessary action had been taken to obtain
laboratory equipment to improve the laboratory system of the
Science Faculty. With the laboratory furniture and equipment
which are already ordered, the usage of this building could be

further enhanced.

Working Capital Management
A sum of Rs. 37 million had been invested in a fixed deposit on 1¢
November 2018 for a period of 03 months in order to earn

income to the University out of this investment.

Transactions of Contentious Nature

Action had already been taken to stop the payment of salary to this

lecturer since September 2018. Further, action will also be taken by the

University to forward this matter to a Medical Board for its

recommendations.

4.3 ldle and Under-utilized Assets

(@)

The use of finger print machines to record students’ attendance was
not successful due to many practical difficulties. Therefore, these
machines could not be used continuously for the intended purpose.
But these machines are now allocated for other purposes. One
fingerprint machine had been handed over to the use of the
Library, one is used for master finger (recording) and two are fixed
at the administration building and the remaining machine is

reserved for the replacement purpose (as a backup machine).
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Mismatch Tyres : Action will be taken to surcharge for mismatch

tyres from the persons who originated the PRN.

Idle Tyres: Action has been taken to fix the people who were

responsible in purchasing unnecessary number of tyres.

50% of the stock utilized for the intended purpose, the balance
will be utilized in future. Action will be taken to fix the person
who has originated the PRN to purchase unnecessary amounts of

Paints.

Management Weaknesses

A Stock Register is maintained by the Store keeper and actions are being

taken to update the Stock Register into a computer based system. The

responsible officer will be strictly advised to maintain the Stock Register

identifying the shortcomings, if any. Some of the items which are idling

in the stores will be issued to the mechanical engineering workshop and

laboratories for the use in their practical classes.

Human Resources Management

(a)

(b)

Action is being instituted to fill the vacancies. We have already
advertised for some posts and some interviews were completed
very recently. In some cases, even though we have advertised to
fill the vacancies, the responses we received from the applicants
were not satisfactory due to lack of qualified professionals (i.e. in

filling Chair Professor Vacancies etc.).

Even though we have advertised several times to fill the vacancy,
the responses received were not satisfactory due to lack of qualified
professionals available in the relevant field. In addition, an

ambiguity in the SOR prevented the filling of this vacancy. Hence,
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we have written to UGC to get a clarification on the SOR so that

we will be able to re-advertise the vacancy to fill it.

Achievement of Sustainable Development Goals (SDG)

(a) The Sustainable Development Agenda is a recent development.
University has taken action to include “Sustainability” as a separate
goal in our forthcoming Strategic Plan 2019-2023 addressing the
present shortcoming. The new strategic plan will pave the way to

achieve some targets in relation to the SDGs.

(b) University has noted the observation made in 5(b) and due
consideration shall be paid on cadre revision and staff development

activities in the future.

Accountability and Good Governance

Procurement and Contract Process

Procurements Plan

One of the main reason for highlighted issue was that the Treasury
Department had released the cash during the month of December 2017.
Therefore, the number of payments were to be made out of this cash.
However, to overcome these deficiencies and the issues highlighted in
this report and to maximize the efficiency of the procurement processes,
all the departments/sections/divisions of the University are advised to
prepare their divisional procurement plan/requirement aligning to the

action plan 2019.

Procurement of Multimedia Projectors

(a) The 28 Multimedia Projectors referred in the audit query were

purchased by inviting quotations of Supply of Multimedia




(b)

(0
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projectors. This procurement was only to supply the multimedia
projectors but did not include installation and commissioning. We
received the Multimedia Projector from the supplier at Rs.
69,500.00 each. SRNs were received from user departments and

delivered to the requested departments.

The five multimedia projectors out of six mentioned in the audit
query are used for lectures by the user department on potable
basis. The other multimedia projector issued to the career guidance
unit could not be used since the CGU was to be relocated to a new
place. Therefore, decision has been taken to issue the multimedia
projector to another department which has already requested the

multimedia projector.

The other 10 multimedia projectors mentioned in the audit query
are a part of 28 multimedia projectors mentioned in the query (a).
These multimedia projectors were also supplied without
installation work as it was requested.

However, as per requests of some user departments, bids were
invited for installation work of some of the multimedia projectors
available in the university including some of these multimedia
projectors. Purchase order was already issued to the selected
supplier.  The installation work is going on and are to be
completed by the end of November 2018. Further, we must
mentioned that there is no additional cost incurred inviting bids
only for installation work for multimedia projector separately
when compared to the cost that would be incurred in supplying

and installation of same multimedia projector.

According to the tender, the bidder has installed the multimedia
projectors with VGA cable, power supply cable including Wifi

dongle which can give all the services what can be obtained from
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HDMI, Audio in, Audio Out, RJ 45, RS 232, Mic in. The USB

mentioned in the query is a port.

(d) Supplies division after discussing with the user departments had
processed the procurement for multimedia projector with
necessary specifications since the user departments required only
basic type of multimedia projectors. Therefore, the University
recently has established an IT committee with the objective of
obtaining the advise and services for IT related matters. Therefore,
the University will process all the requests related to IT related
procurements with the advise and guidance of this committee

which will minimize most of the shortcomings highlighted.

6.1.3 Construction of Building Complex for Faculty of Management and

Commerce

(a) Approval of the council had been obtained for the time extension.

(b) It had been paid based on the recommendation of the consultant.

(c) Payments to consultants were made as per the agreement.

6.1.4 Construction of Building Complex for Main Library

It has been paid based on the recommendation of the consultant and

payments to consultants were made as per the agreement.

6.2  Unresolved Matters Pointed out in Previous Audit Reports

This matters was reported to the council. Based on the decision of the
council the recommendation of the sub Committee, a letter has been

dispatched to the UGC to get clarifications.
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7. Systems and Controls

Areas of System and Control

(i) Fixed Assets Management

(ii) Management of Self
Financing Courses
(iii) Control over Agreements

and Bonds

(iv) Maintenance of Student

Attendance Sheet

(v) Personnel Administration

(vi) Stocks Control in

Maintenance Store

Prof. M.M.M. Najim
Vice Chancellor

SEUSL.

Observations
Noted for future compliance, action
were taken to rectify these deficiencies

mentioned in the report

Rectified

Action had been taken and noted for
future compliance

Action had been taken to maintain
conducted lecture records appropriately
by the respective departments.

Action has been taken to limit the
services of visiting lecturers. Filling of
vacancies are also being processed.

The store will be amalgamated to the
main stores and all the transactions will

be done by computerized system.

Cc. Senior Assistant Internal Auditor




